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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“T-ZF ZE-QmNF ZE-1F Z—T-RF| ZB-tF
HK$L[n\illiqw HK$Lr+n\i||io_n HK$LQ1iIIio_n HK$irnillio_n HK$'million
BEBT BEAET BEAET BEAT BERT
Revenue L6 i
Restaurant, food and B RHRLEE
hotel ) 601 488 544 622 713
Property investment and MERERER
development 147 525 126 245 154
748 1,013 670 867 867
Profit Attributable to BAREAA
Owners of the Parent FEMG 8 M 153 196 121 121 127
Basic Earnings BREARZH (L)
per Share (cents) 13.35 16.07 9.66 9.65 10.16
Net Assets BEFE 3,673 3,852 3,818 3,535 3,530
Total Assets BEE 6,483 6,195 6,264 5,834 6,084

Analysis of Revenue
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Attributable to Owners of the Parent
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the
Annual Report of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s turnover was
HK$867,468,000 (2016: HK$867,178,000), roughly the same
as last year. The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was
HK$127,446,000 (2016: HK$121,030,000), increased by 5%
from last year. Excluding property revaluation gain and related
taxes, profit attributable to shareholders was HK$98,892,000,
slightly decreased by 1% from last year. In this financial year
the restaurant, food and hotel businesses had a satisfactory
increment both in turnover and profit and it was also the main
contributor to the growth of profit attributable to shareholders.
However, due to sales of Phase 4 of Grand Lake City in Yiyang
of Hunan has not been started during this year, the reduction
of revenue and operating profit in the property sector offset the
growth from restaurant, food and hotel segment.

Both turnover and operating profit for property division
decreased compared with last year, mainly due to decrease in
property sales revenue for phase 3 of Grand Lake City project
in Yiyang of Hunan Province, since about two third of phase 3
residential units were sold and recognized as income last year,
but phase 4 construction will not be completed and delivered
to buyers until third quarter of 2018 when property sales
revenue will be booked.

The Group’s 50% owned Dongguan Home Town project
progressed satisfactorily. East tower completed construction at
the end of 2016 and will start operation together with west and
north tower by phases from end of 2017. Most of the Home
Town residential apartments was sold during the year. The
properties will be delivered to customers and sales recognized
as income by September to October 2017. In addition, Home
Town owned 30% share of Red Star Macalline furniture mall
which started operation in September 2016 and the rent out
rate was close to 100%.
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The Group’s strategy is to participate in property development
projects in first tier cities of China. On 5 November 2016,
the Group entered into an agreement to jointly develop a city
renewal project at Maguling in Luohu district of Shenzhen.
The project was going to be submitted to government for
redevelopment approval.

Rental income from investment properties decreased by 6%
from last year, mainly due to devaluation of RMB. The Group
aims to enhance the properties asset value and rental yield
incessantly. In April 2017, the Group sold the lower rental yield
6 floors commercial property in Tak Sing Alliance Building and
switch to buy 3 higher rental yield and growth potential retail
shops in Kowloon urban area. On the other hand, the factory
construction in Panyu of Guangdong was completed and
will bring in rental income to the Group from fourth quarter of
2017. For the coming year, the Group will gradually increase its
investment in high growth potential properties so as to strive
for long term rental yield growth and continue to provide steady
cash contribution to the Group.

The performance of restaurant, food and hotel business was
satisfactory. Turnover and segment profit increased by 15%
and 14% respectively from last year. Under the strategy of
cost saving and pinpointed promotion on wedding banquet
and business catering, Carrianna restaurants sector delivered
satisfactory growth in turnover and operating profit. Hong Kong
Delicious Group operated 17 restaurants at year end date
and recorded 13% growth in sales revenue. However, due to
fierce competition in Hong Kong catering market, the growth in
turnover could not lift up operating profit.
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For the coming year, Carrianna restaurants will continue to
tighten cost control and strengthen promotion of wedding
banquet and business dining. Management expects the profit
growth trend can be continued. Delicious Group plans to open
4 to 5 new shops for the coming year. Those new shops will
improve the overall operating profit and the management is
cautiously optimistic on the coming year operating results of
Delicious Group. On the other hand, the Group’s restaurant
business will be more diversified for the coming year as a
Korean and a Vietnam/Thailand cuisine restaurants will be
opened to meet market demands.

For food business, turnover for the year increased by 16%
from last year and operating profit was about the same as last
year. Mooncake sales was still the major contributor for the
growth, in which Hainan province mooncake sales continued
to make a remarkable growth this year. New Hainan food
factory construction was on schedule and it was expected
to start production in second quarter of 2018 while the new
Shenzhen food factory has already started operation. Hong
Kong Profit Smart Group bakery business was satisfactory
and at year end date it operated 18 bakery shops. Although
there was a significant increase in turnover, new shops start-
up expenses and the significant loss from a few shops reduced
operating profit of Profit Smart Group. For the coming year,
mooncake sales are expected to maintain its existing income
and operating profit level. Profit Smart Group will close the
shops with large operating loss and open 4 to 5 new shops.
Profit Smart Group’s operating profit will return to growth in the
coming year.

Turnover of hotel business increased by 3% from last year.
Through improving operation workflow to enhance efficiency,
the operating loss got significant improvement. For the coming
year, the management will continue to strengthen its service
quality and put more effort on catering promotion in order to
continue the growth in turnover and operating cash.
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Looking back at last year, the overseas economic situation was
still very volatile. The slowing down of China growth rate and
the acceleration of Renminbi devaluation reduced the return
of the Group’s investment in mainland. Under this difficult
environment, our Group could still maintain a steady profit
growth. This could only be accomplished through the relentless
efforts of the Board members, the management team and all
staffs.

Despite the challenging environment, the Group will continue
to focus on its real estate business and food and restaurant
business and | am still cautiously optimistic on the prospect of
the overall business outlook.

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my appreciation
to the Board of Directors, management team and staff for their
support and dedication to the Group and to shareholders,
customers, suppliers and other business partners for their
unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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Director and Senior Management’s Biographies

HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MA Kai Cheung, rhD, SBS, BBS, aged 75, is the founder of
the Group. Mr. Ma has been appointed as Honorary Chairman
of the Company and re-designated as non-executive director
of the Board since 1 January 2014. Mr. Ma has more than 40
years’ experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 years’ experience in the restaurant business
and property development. He was a committee member of
the 9th, 10th and 11th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is the Consultant
of All-Chinese Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese,
the Permanent Honorary President of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association. Mr. Ma also serves as
President of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Permanent Honorary President of Federation of
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organizations, Permanent
Honorary President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce Limited and Permanent Honorary President of Hong
Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a
brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Kai Yum, PnD, aged 66, is a co-founder of the Group.
Mr. Ma is the Chairman of the Group since 1 January 2014.
He has been a Director of the Group since 1984 and has
over 30 years’ experience in the garment business. Mr. Ma is
responsible for the daily operation and administration, strategic
planning and business development of the Group. Mr. Ma
was a former member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and also
serves as a Director of the Chinese Manufacturers Association
of Hong Kong, President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu
Chow Public Association, Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce and Vice President of Federation of
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organization. Mr. Ma is a
brother of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

LEUNG Pak Yan, aged 64, is Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Group since August 2015 and October
2015 respectively. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Leung was
a senior civil servant of the Hong Kong government for nearly
30 years, serving various government departments such as
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau, Transport Bureau,
Lands Departments and Education Department. Mr. Leung
served as the first director of the Hong Kong Economic and
Trade Office (the “ETQO”) in Guangdong from 2002 to 2009.
Mr. Leung retired from the Hong Kong government as an
Administrative Officer Staff Grade B in 2009. After his long
and distinguished service at the ETO, Mr. Leung has acted as
the business consultant to numerous companies and trade
associations in Southern China and Hong Kong prior to joining
the Group. Mr. Leung holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Aston, the United Kingdom
and a master’s degree in public administration from the
University of Hong Kong.

10

HiTES

BN+ BRFeoR AEBHEP —
BIMA-B-F—HF—A—R HFEEHE
AEETF -8 - N/\OFREHEAEED
B BRAERKEA=TZFER -HL
TEEREREEEETRIMFE RELAK
SENEKERIF- SELERREREN
WERBE BETERRABASTE TENE
BMregXRE BEBNEEEEMEARE
BHEHEEGREIR FAEER/FNESL
-

RER RF64p BT —RAFNAKTA
ROBEEAEETRAHEEHITES - AN
BARBZA RAEGEIEBSRFERD
BRI =+F REZEBMAENMN  wnig=E
BREKE BEaR WHREBLBEE-R
SCHEA TR _FE TN FERMETE
BREBSMER ([KER])cEFEE-
REER_ZENFREFTARF[EERD
BHBEE REMNCER s RAREMET
e RIMAREERT REEDETERME
REABEARLREE cEBERM RE4E
BFHABRRHEASERIRETEUK
ERRBZ AHITHEBBE LS -



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

NG Yan Kwong, aged 56, is Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since
2000. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ng was the finance
director of a US beverage company operating in Mainland
China. Mr. Ng has more than 10 years corporate and financial
management experience with multinational consumer product
companies in South East Asia and Greater China region. He
also has substantial working experience in public accountancy
practice with a major international accounting firm. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce of the University of Newcastle
in Australia and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.

MA Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS, JR aged 50, is Executive
Directors of the Group since May 2009. Mr. Ma joined the
Group in 1990. He has been the Managing Director of
Carrianna Holdings Limited since April 2002 and is currently
responsible for the Group’s property development operations.
He has extensive experience in the catering industry, as well
as property management and development. Mr. Ma was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003
and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy degree by Morrison
University in 2004. In 2011, he was awarded the Honorary
Citizen by the Shenzhen government. He was the Chairman
of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2002. He is a
member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Advisory Board, a
member of the Standing Committee of Shenzhen Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
the President of Youth Council. He also serves as the Vice
Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce and the Vice President of Kowloon
Federation of Associations. Mr. Ma is an independent Non-
Executive Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, the
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Ma is the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

LO Ming Chi, Charles, aged 67, is independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in 1991. Mr. Lo is a member of the CPA Australia and fellow
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. Mr. Lo is a
Non-Executive Director of Winshine Science Company Limited
(formerly known as Winshine Entertainment & Media Holding
Company Limited) and an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Cash Financial Services Group Limited. He was an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Huajun Holdings
Limited (formerly known as New Island Development Holdings
Limited) from 30 September 2010 to 25 September 2014. All
these companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has more than 30 years of professional and
business experience in financial and investment services in
Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries.

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 56, is independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in July
2004. Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a
consultant of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has over 20 years of
extensive experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and
commercial law. He is also admitted as solicitor in Singapore.

WONG See King, aged 56, is independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in August
2007. Mr. Wong is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
HAGER Asia Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which
is a market leader of selling building hardware products in the
US market and, is engaging for building hardware business in
China and Hong Kong. Mr. Wong had also worked as financial
and business executive in various Australian, UK and US
multi-national companies. He has over 20 years’ of working
experience in corporate finance, building hardware, consumer
goods manufacturing and distribution business in Hong Kong
and China and property development business in Australia.
He holds a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University (Australia) and is a member of the Australian Society
of CPAs.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 41, is the Executive
Director of the Food & Beverage Division (China Region)
of the Company. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of
California, Davis with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil
Engineering and he holds a Professional Engineer license in
Civil Engineering in USA. Mr. Ma has substantial experience in
food and beverage business. Mr. Ma is the son of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung.

ZHANG Ji Yong, aged 48, is the Managing Director of
Carrianna (Hunan) Holding Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang has about
20 years working experience in real estate industry. He has
extensive experience in property sales and development in
Changsha City and Yiyang City of Hunan Province. He also
serves as delegate of Yiyang People’s Congress, vice president
of Association of Industry and Commerce, Yiyang and president
of Association of Real Estate Development, Yiyang. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Hunan University and holds a Master Degree of
Project Management.

CHENG Ka Wah, aged 53, is the Managing Director of
Delicious Group Dining Services Limited and the founder of
the Delicious Restaurant Group. Mr. Cheng has more than 30
years’ experience in restaurant business. He is responsible
for business development and daily operation of the Delicious
Group.

CHU Chun Fung, aged 56, is the Executive Director of Profit
Smart Group Limited and the founder of the Profit Smart
Group. Mr. Chu has more than 35 years’ experience in bakery
business. He is responsible for business development and daily
operation of the Profit Smart Group.

LEE Chor Kwing, aged 50, is the Managing Director of
Carrianna (Hainan) Catering Service Co., Ltd. and Carrianna
(Hainan) Food Processing Co., Ltd.. He has been serving the
Group’s Carrianna (Chiu Chau) Restaurant since 1986. Mr. Lee
has been in charge of operation of Hainan restaurant and food
business since 1993.

PSR MR ATRA R | 20174

Director and Senior Management’s Biographies

EHEREGRERA L E

mRERAR

BB AEF4Mm REARAERER
mB(RPER)RATES - FEEEER
University of California, Davis - I # A + A T
RELTERFEERL R TZMEEER-
BEENERERRER T EREEEER -
BAERBNEEEZRF

RAE BAF8 REEEPFOABEER
ERAREFHELE - RELEFBHETE
BERFNTHEER - LEHEERD M
MBEBETMEEENEHERE R EHKR
tIMEERE N ARRE @B T IEkalx
FhkaBmEEREHRESR -RELES
ENMEARE WEFHEE EEBELEM-

BRE - RFS3 RWEKEZAIMA - BRE
RESEERRBERAANETHLE K
TEREBBEFRERERER REE
REFENEBERLAAFEETE-

K- RFS6R HIEMRRREEFRA
ARTEERMERMEB ZAIMA  KE
EHBEBIBFREHERR RAENE
RnKENEHERIATEE I E-

R RE05%  RIEBREEMBERRYE
ERAFEFAEKE BHEEHFRMABR
RAEFARE b - A NARNEMALRE
BEETEEEEFAMNEZE-BE—NN=
FHERZ R SHEEHEELHERE
K-RMEBFES

13



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”), in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) which became effective on 1 January 2005. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles
and practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Company has complied with
the CG Code throughout the accounting period covered by this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors of the Company. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard under the
Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including four executive directors, one non-executive director
and three independent non-executive directors.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Director and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 9
to 13 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership,
development of sound business strategies, availability of
adequate capital and managerial resources to implement the
business strategies adopted, adequacy of systems of financial
and internal controls and conduct of business in conformity
with applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made
full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the
Board has always acted in the best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are delegated
with respective levels of authorities with regard to key
corporate strategy and policy and contractual commitments.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group with divisional heads responsible for different aspects of
the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing the financial
statements, appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates have been made. The publication of
the financial statements of the Group is also in a timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of the Group
and the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

The responsibility of Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditors, is set out on pages 63 to 72 of the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, the Board met regularly and held four board
meetings. The attendance of the Directors at the board
meetings was as follow:

FEGT )

EH A

EN EESTHEE YRINAESEY
S EENEEECSEMNERNT

Number of

attendance
Directors BE= IR
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (Honorary Chairman) ENEEE (SELE) 2/4
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ma Kai Yum (Chairman) SNREE(XFE) 4/4
Leung Pak Yan (Chief Executive Officer) RAR(ITHAS) 4/4
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong RBNESE 4/4
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BIBR it 2/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkBITES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BABR%S % 4 4/4
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B A 4/4
Mr. Wong See King HEBALE 4/4

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance to
facilitate all directors’ attendance. Regular board meetings
are scheduled to be held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice of a board meeting
is given to all directors who are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. If potential conflict of
interest involving a substantial shareholder or a director arises,
the matter is discussed in a physical meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by written resolution. The directors attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary
assists the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary shall attend all regular
board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information on the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the directors. The Company Secretary
shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all board meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a
package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong.
Updates are provided to directors when necessary to ensure
that directors are aware of the latest changes in the commercial
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

According to the records of the Company, during the financial
year ended 31 March 2017, the Directors participated in the

following trainings:

FE S AT )
EEGOH (50

REARAMFLE RBEE-_T—tF=
A=t—BLVBFER EFELHUT

b=l

Seminar/course Reading
attended materials
Directors 5= HEER/RE BB R
Non-Executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung BNELAE v
(Honorary Chairman) (EEFE)
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. Ma Kai Yum (Chairman) SNREE (XFE) v v
Mr. Leung Pak Yan RAREE v v
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TEC#E%E)
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REMESE v v
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BRE kL v
Independent Non-Executive BIUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles LS TE v v
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam EXHEE v v
Mr. Wong See King BRELEE v v



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. For the year
ended 31 March 2017, Mr. Ma Kai Yum was the Chairman and
Mr. Leung Pak Yan was the Chief Executive Officer, of which the
roles are separated and not performed by the same individual.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always acts in
the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that
the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner. All directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support
of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that
all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at any board
meeting and have received adequate and reliable information in
a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. Their
participation in the board and committee meetings brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management
process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company have been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. According
to Bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company, director
appointed to fill any casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next annual general meeting after their appointment
and shall be subject to re-election by the shareholders of the
Company. According to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, one-third of the directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation (except Chairman or Managing
Director) and shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More than
one of the independent non-executive directors have the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board confirms that the
Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the independent non-executive directors
are independent under the guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to handle particular responsibilities of
the Board and the Company’s affairs. All board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference which have been uploaded to the website of
the Stock Exchange and that of the Company. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999 and
currently comprises three independent non-executive directors,
including Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman), Mr. Lo Man Kit,
Sam and Mr. Wong See King.

A set of written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted by
the Board on 1 September 2004, amended and restated on 26
March 2012 and the contents of which are in compliance with
the Code Provisions and Recommended Best Practices of the
CG Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal
controls and review the Group’s financial statements. The
Committee is also provided with other resources to enable it to
discharge its duties fully.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
the external auditors were in attendance. The attendance
record of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in
the table below:

B

Directors
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EBRZEG @)

EX BREESREMASE  BhaIE
BREMHE - BREE QR SORE L ERS
RN :

Number of
meetings
attended/
Total number
of meetings
HEERRE/

BEBRY

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam
Mr. Wong See King

EXHEE

BRBEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and has discussed auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration to Emst & Young in respect of the audit
service rendered for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
HK$3,400,000 (2016: HK$3,310,000).

The Audit Committee had concluded that it is satisfied with
the findings of its review of audit service fee, process and
effectiveness, independence and objectivity.

BEREEE (L/E) 2/2

2/2
2/2
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April 2005
and comprises three independent non-executive directors,
including Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles and Mr. Wong See King.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in the table below:

MEReREEZHE

FHZEERN —_TTRFMOA—HKIL =
BEIFNITERER BREXERE (£
E) BRBREREBBREE

FR - FHEZEeaF—KXeH -FHEZES

SHRHRBHEBRNT

Number of
meetings
attended/

Total number
of meetings

HE R B
Directors BE= BEIRE
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman) BEXBEE (E/E) 1/1
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BERE 1/1
Mr. Wong See King mRBEE 1/1

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors and key
executives to run the Company successfully. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that the remuneration policies and
systems of the Group support the Group’s objectives and
strategies. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties. A set of written terms
of reference, which described the authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee, was adopted by the Board on 1
April 2005, amended and restated on 26 March 2012 and the
contents of which are in compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

2
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

either:

()  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management; or

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.

This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office of
appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive director who
is a member of the Committee, his remuneration should
be determined by the other members of the Committee;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(i)  to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of Listing
Rules; and

() to report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so (such as a restriction
on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

During the year 2017, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management of
the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the

FHMEEOREEZMN 2 (8

() BEEAEERE CEHRAD 13, 68(I
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remuneration of the members of senior management by band R 7E %ﬁﬁ:%ﬁ—t ZA=t+t—HLFE
for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below: REMWERE D 2 REBABNHSHI

UNNE

Number of
Individuals
AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 % $1,000,0007% 7T 6
HK$1,000,001 = HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 JT £2,000,000/% 7T 4
HK$2,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 2,000,001/ 7T £5,000,0007% 7T !

Further particulars in relation to the remuneration of directors
and the five highest paid employees’ remuneration as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in notes 8 and 9, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 26 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the nomination of Directors with a view
to appointing suitable individuals with relevant expertise and
experience to enhance the constitution of the Board and to
contribute to the Board. In the nomination procedures, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to criteria including
reputation of candidates for integrity, accomplishment and
experience, professional and educational background.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director
and three independent non-executive directors, including Mr.
Ma Kai Yum (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles, Mr. Lo Man
Kit, Sam and Mr. Wong See King.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. FR IRZZEE€AM—AE€F - IEREZEE
The attendance record of the members of the Nomination KB 7 HFE08ku0
Committee are set out in the table below:

Number of
meetings
attended/

Total number

of meetings

HESE R/

Directors BE HEBRE
Mr. Ma Kai Yum (Chairman) BNREE (FE) 11
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BERE 1/1
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B 1/1
Mr. Wong See King HEERBEE 1/1

A set of new written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the Nomination Committee, was
adopted by the Board on 26 March 2012 and the contents
of which are in compliance with the Code Provisions and
Recommended Best Practices of the CG Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Ng Yan Kwong,
who is also the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce
of the University of Newcastle in Australia and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the CPA Australia. Mr. Ng has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules for taking not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is overall responsible for maintaining an effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Group’s assets and its Shareholders’ investments. The Board
oversees the operations of all the businesses units within the
Group and continuously reviews and makes improvements in
its risk management and internal control framework. Suitable
candidates are appointed by the Board to join in the boards of
all subsidiaries and associates operating in key business areas,
to attend the board meetings and to oversee the operations of
such companies. The management of each business area is
accountable for these operation and performance of the business
under its area of responsibility. The Board conducts reviews of
the effectiveness of the system of internal controls as well as the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board conducted semi-annual reviews on the internal
control and risk management system of the Group covering all
material control including financial, operational controls and risk
management pursuant to the Codes and considers that all the
material internal controls and risk management in the Group
are adequate and effective during the year. The Board will keep
review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate.

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships
with the shareholders of the Company, the Company has
established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

()  the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i) updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company’s website at www.carrianna.com to enable the
shareholders of the Company and the investor community
to have timely access to information about the Group; and
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COMMUNICATION CHANNELS (Continued)

@iy the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and
investors.

(iv)  the rights of the shareholders of the Company are set out
in the Bye-laws of the Company.

(v) the shareholders may put forward their proposals or
enquiries to the Board by sending their written request to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual general
meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders of the
Company or other interested parties.

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS (“SGM”)

The Board shall be on the written requisition of shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the SGM, forthwith proceed duly to convene the
SGM (“Requisition”). The Requisition, which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must state the objects of the SGM and
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a SGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which SGM may be convened by the Board, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the aforesaid date of the deposit of the
Requisition.
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CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS (“SGM”)

(Continued)

All reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such a SGM shall

be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Attendance of the Directors at the last annual general meeting
which was held on 22 August 2016 was as follows:

W o o B R R AR Ok & (TR R
Bk el)

RIEEAEFEREBRXBAEHIA
EMELZFEERAL HERARAN
CESTEIEE

BEER_E-—AR"FNAZ+ZBREITZ LR
[RRBAFREMEFEBIOT:

Number of
attendance
Directors BE= IR
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (Honorary Chairman) BNBxE (EEFE) 1/1
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ma Kai Yum (Chairman) BNREE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Leung Pak Yan (Chief Executive Officer) REHRBEE (7TEHAEZ) 1/1
Mr. Ng, Yan Kwong RBENESE 1/1
Mr. Ma, Hung Ming, John BIBh it 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkBITES
Mr. Lo, Ming Chi, Charles BLEA S S 1/1
Mr. Lo, Man Kit, Sam B X E 1/1
Mr. Wong, See King HEBRLE 1/1
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PROPERTY

Turnover for property segment for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$154,691,000 (2016: HK$245,163,000),
decreased by 37% from last year. Segment profit was
HK$125,016,000 (2016: HK$159,821,000), decreased by
22% from last year. Excluding property revaluation gain,
segment profit was HK$96,068,000 (2016: HK$135,835,000),
decreased by 29% from last year. Decrease in turnover was
mainly due to property sales revenue decrease in phase 3 of
Grand Lake City project of Yiyang, Hunan Province. In last
year, about two thirds of the phase 3 residential units were sold
and booked while only one third of the remaining residential
units was booked in current year. This was also the reason for
reduction in segment profit.

During the year, the remaining units of phase 3 of Grand
Lake City were sold. Together with some remaining units from
phase 2, total sales was about HK$70,000,000. Construction
progress for phase 4 of Grand Lake City, Peacock City, was
satisfactory and sales will start in third quarter of 2017. Part one
of phase 4 consists of 514 units, 61,143 sg.m, of residential
property and 57 units, 6,437 sqg.m, of shops. Average selling
price is planned to be RMB4,800 and RMB20,000 respectively.
Total planned sales value was approximately RMB420 million.
Construction is expected to be completed by third quarter of
2018.
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Carrianna Friendship Square
EEMPRHERES
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During the year, the remaining residential
units of Phase 3 of Grand Lake City were
sold.
FA-FEILAEEE =M ILBAAE]F
HRETEMLEHEL -

Construction progress for Phase 4 of Grand Lake City
was satisfactory and sales will start in third quarter
of 2017. Part one of Phase 4 consists of 514 units,
61,143 sg.m, of residential property and 57 units,
6,437 sg.m, of shops.
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For the coming year, rental income will continue to grow
mildly and continue to provide steady cash contribution
to the Group.
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The Group’s 50% owned Dongguan Home Town completed
construction for the east tower at the end of 2016. Export
e-commerce product exhibition and trading centre located on
the sixth floor and exhibition centre located at the basement
floor had started operation. Other floors will be opened for
business by phases together with the west and north tower
from the end of 2017. A total of 789 units, 40,312 sg.m, of
Home Town residential apartments had been sold with sales
revenue of over RMB440,000,000. These units will be delivered
to customer by September to October 2017 and booked as
sales revenue. On the other hand, Home Town owned 30%
share of Red Star Macalline furniture mall which had started
operation in September 2016. Rent out rate was near 100%.
Rental income will grow continuously from the second year of
operation.

On 5 November 2016, the Group entered into an agreement to
jointly develop a city renewal project at Maguling, Luohu district
of Shenzhen (see the Group’s announcement on 5 November
2016). The project was recently submitted to government
for redevelopment approval. If the project is successfully
developed on time, it will bring in substantial property
development profits to the Group in 3 to 4 year’s time.

Rental income from investment properties was HK$83,624,000,
decreased by 6% from last year as a result of RMB devaluation
of 5%. Excluding RMB devaluation effect, rental reduction
was only 1% from last year. The main reason for the reduction
was a major tenant in Carrianna Friendship Square had
new renovation, a rent free period of three months was
granted which resulted in rental reduction of about RMB1
million. In April 2017, the Group sold its 6 floors, 8,398 sq.
ft., commercial property in Tak Sing Alliance Building for
HK$68,648,000 (see announcement on 12 April 2017). The
rental growth as well as yield against selling price were low
for Tak Sing Alliance Building. The proceeds for the sales was
used to buy, at different dates, 3 retail shops with good growth
potential at Kowloon urban area. Rental yield was improved
from 2.6% to 3.2%. On the other hand, construction for the
factory building in Panyu Guangdong province had been
completed and was leased at a monthly rental of RMB300,000
to a tenant who will start to move in by phases from fourth
quarter of 2017. For the coming year, rental income will
continue to grow mildly and continue to provide steady cash
contribution to the Group.
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The Group’s 50% owned Dongguan Home Town completed
construction for the east tower at the end of 2016
EEE50% BN RET S LR [FKESERES] HE
B BE Y201 65F [ 52 A K T BRI

A total of 789 units, 40,312 sg.m, of Home Town
residential apartments had been sold with sales
revenue of over RMB440,000,000. These units
will be delivered to customer by September to
October 2017 and booked as sales revenue.
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77K & S BB B A R#440,000,0007T * #7
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Home Town owned 30% share of Red Star
Macalline furniture mall which had started
operation in September 2016
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RESTAURANT, FOOD AND HOTEL

Turnover of restaurant, food and hotel segment for the
year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$712,777,000 (2016:
HK$622,015,000), increased by 15% from last year. Segment
profit was HK$79,830,000 (2016: HK$69,903,000), increased
by 14% from last year. All restaurant, food and hotel businesses
recorded growth in sales revenue during the year. Operating
results of restaurant and hotel recorded satisfactory growth
while food business operating profit was about the same as last
year. Excluding the effect of RMB devaluation, food business
profit increased by 4% from last year.

Restaurant turnover for the year was HK$335,653,000,
increased by 16% from last year. Carrianna restaurants turnover
increased by 13% from last year. Except Shenzhen Jing Du
shop, all Carrianna restaurants in mainland China as well
as the Hong Kong shop recorded growth in sales revenue.
Delicious Group of restaurants also recorded turnover of 13%
with the growth mainly came from new shops opened during
the year. Due to fierce competition, most old Delicious shops
recorded reduction in turnover from last year. As at 31 March
2017, Delicious Group operated 17 restaurants in Hong Kong.
In addition to Carrianna and Delicious Group of restaurants,
the new ‘ShunYi’(JIEE.) brand of Shunde cuisine restaurant
opened in October 2016 in Shenzhen also contributed
HK$8,000,000 of turnover to the Group’s restaurant business.

For the coming year, Carrianna restaurants will continue to
control purchasing cost, improve operating flow to enhance
efficiency and strengthen promotion of wedding banquet and
business dining. Management will ensure the profit growth
trend can be continued. Delicious Group plans to open 4 to 5
more shops for the coming year. As operating results for old
shops started to improve in second quarter of 2017, together
with profit contribution from new shops, management is
cautiously optimistic about the operating results of Delicious
Group for the coming year. On the other hand, the Group
will open a Korean restaurant and a Vietnam/Thailand cuisine
restaurant in Causeway Bay in September 2017. Together with
the new Shunde cuisine restaurant in Shenzhen, the Group’s
restaurant business will become even more diversified.
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Food business turnover for the year was HK$319,808,000,
increased by 16% from last year. Operating profit was
about the same as last year. Excluding the effect of RMB
devaluation, operating profit of food business increased
by more than 5% from last year. Major turnover and profit
contributor continued to be mooncake sales. Turnover of food
business in the mainland increased by 4% from last year and
increased by 10% in RMB term. The growth mainly came
from Hainan province mooncake sales while sales in Kunming
and Shenzhen were about the same as last year. During the
year, construction progress of Hainan new food factory was
satisfactory. Construction is expected to be completed by first
quarter of 2018 and production at the new factory is scheduled
to start in second quarter of 2018. Profit Smart Group in
Hong Kong had recorded a full year of operating results for
this year while last year had only recorded 9 months. As a
result, turnover increased significantly from the year. However,
operating profit reduced due to new shops opening expenses
and significant operating loss in the Un Chau shop at Shum
Shui Po. For the coming year, the current level of mooncake
sales revenue and operating profit should be maintained. Profit
Smart Group will close shops with large operating loss and
open 4 to 5 new shops. As shops opened in recent months are
contributing satisfactory profit, together with improvement in
factory direct sales profit, Profit Smart Group profit will return to
growth.

Turnover of hotel business for the year was HK$57,316,000,
increased by 3% from last year. Carrianna Hotel in Yiyang,
Hunan Province recorded growth in turnover and operating
cash while operating loss also reduced by 27% from last year.
Turnover of Foshan Carrianna Hotel in RMB term was about
the same as last year while operating results improved by 12%.
For the coming year, the management will continue to improve
service quality and put more effort on sales promotion in order
to continue the growth in turnover and operating cash.
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Hainan Carrianna Restaurant
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Foshan Carrianna Hotel
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Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel
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Gusto (Fanling Wah Ming) Opened in July 2017 | Gsto (Fueh \V/[¥])] dpened in June 2017
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Delicious (Mongkok Bute Street)

Opened in April 2016
RE (EAME) 201654 AR

Pak Lok Bakery (Cheung Fat Estate)
Opened in January 2017
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BREAD TOGETHER

(Nathan Road)

Opened in October 2016
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Empery Bakery

(Lam Tin Sceneway Plaza)
Opened in June 2017
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Construction Progress of Hainan new food
factory was satisfactory. Construction is
expected to be completed by first quarter
of 2018 and production at the new factory
is scheduled to start in second quarter of
2018.
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Turnover of food business in the mainland
increased by 4% from last year and
increased by 10% in RMB term. The
growth mainly came from Hainan province
mooncake sales while sales in Kunming and
Shenzhen were about the same as last year.
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Carrianna moon cake products
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$284,215,000 (2016: HK$158,207,000), which
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Canadian
dollars and United States dollars of HK$166,817,000,
HK$107,989,000, HK$9,278,000 and HK$131,000,
respectively. The Group’s free cash and bank balances,
structured deposits, and derivative financial instrument were
HK$296,427,000. (2016: HK$172,697,000).

The Group’s total borrowings amounted to HK$1,232,344,000
(2016: HK$936,594,000) comprised interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, finance lease payable and derivative financial
instrument. All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear
interest at floating rates. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowings, the Group’s net bank and other borrowings
were HK$1,185,296,000 (2016: HK$832,693,000). Net bank
and other borrowings less free cash and bank balances,
structured deposits and derivative financial instrument were
HK$888,869,000 (2016: HK$659,996,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio, which was defined as the Group’s
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents, structured deposits, restricted cash and
pledged time deposits as percentage of the Group’s total
equity, was approximately 25% (2016: 19%).

The Group adopts conservative treasury policy in cash and
financial management. The objective of the Group’s treasury
policy is to maintain a sound financial position by holding an
appropriate level of cash to meet its operating requirements
and long-term business development needs.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 5 November 2016, Carrianna (Shenzhen) Investment Co.,
Ltd.x (FEZH CRYI) KB BBR A 7)) (“Carrianna Shenzhen”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Cooperation Agreement with Yaohuan (Shenzhen)
Properties Co., Ltd.* (818 ORI EXBR A A) and the
Guarantor in relation to the investment by Carrianna Shenzhen
into the Maguling Project (see announcement dated 5
November 2016).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, Carrianna Shenzhen
has conditionally agreed that it will provide funding in the
aggregate amount of RMB150,000,000 to the Project
Company, which amount will be contributed in stages pursuant
to the actual funding needs of the Project Company. In return
for the investment of RMB150,000,000 by Carrianna Shenzhen,
Carrianna Shenzhen will be entitled to 15% equity interest in the
Project Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 12 April 2017, Goldfield Properties Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Agreement for the disposal of Shops on 1st Floor, 2nd Floor,
3rd Floor and Offices on 15th Floor, 16th Floor, 17th Floor and
18th Floor, Tak Sing Alliance Building, No. 115 Chatham Road
South, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Properties”) with Famous
Charm Limited (Z2#¥ G A7) (the “Purchaser”), at a cash
consideration of HK$68,647,800 (See announcement dated 12
April 2017).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FUTURE
COMMITMENT

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to banks for
mortgage loan facilities granted to purchasers of properties of
approximately HK$183,423,000 (2016: HK$219,800,000).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
properties held for sale, time deposits and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with a total carrying value of
approximately HK$1,542,233,000 (2016: HK$1,492,674,000)
were pledged to secure general banking, trade finance and
other facilities granted to the Group. In addition, rental income
generated in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group was assigned to banks to secure loan facilities granted
to the Group.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi, respectively. Majority of the sales, purchases and
expenditure incurred by the operating units of the Group were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies and as a result,
the Group does not anticipate significant transactional currency
exposures.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group’s staff consists of approximately 900 employees in
Hong Kong and approximately 1,300 employees outside Hong
Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.
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The directors herein present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business, can be found in the Business and
Financial Review set out on pages 29 to 40 of this annual
report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 73 to 233.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK3 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year payable to
the shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 16 August 2017 to Monday, 21 August 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order for a shareholder to be eligible to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 August,
2017.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 25 September 2017 to Friday, 29 September
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting), all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 September 2017.

FESRAE A BRA ] | 201744

Report of the Directors
EFEGREE

EEgRNEERE T —tF=A=1T—
BLFEENESEREEREERMBHRE -

EE-E Y& 3 AN

RRRZ TBEBER/REER - BHTENE
RAEBEBRZFBEHNM B RRM T - R
TR AKEEIEXRB MENEERES -

BEBRAMEDIM RSP R E A B E XK
E— RO BRERASERBKNE
22 2 fix b2 1 B BA DR 3 A 4t DA % A 5 [ 5 7
BARRAIREERBA BN AFRE9EF
A0EMEB LV EEET e wBKRAE

FEWmEEN—Ho-

XH Rk

AEBHE_T—+F=-A=1T—HILFE
B A - A B AN BR B0 R B A B A AR ST B R
B &R F73E £233H °

EEERRBEAFERIBREERE B
BT AR

TiEhEkrAP T
ARAER_FE—tFNA+H (EH=)
2-_Z—+FN\AZ+—H(EH—) &R
MABREN BiRERMNBEZLFE-
REATEEREERRBFAEINE L
YR ERTERFRBEREERERE
R-ZT—+FNA+AB (B8 -) FFMEE
Tt ERARRZEERDBPERL S
REEEBERARARN (MUAABTEE2EA
BRI A M L2 ) WIBBPE F4& -

ARABR -_FE—EFAA-THRA(EH
—ET—tFAA-TAB(EHA) -
EEMABHEAN EERERNBFER
FE-RUAERETEESZZRAKRE (A
FRERBSE RS FERRIE)  FRMA
BERBERBARERER T —LFN
AZ+-H(EHR) TFOR=1+2 &R
RRBZBEBBRNBFELY BREEERE
BRAR it REE LR/ ABRI8IHEAM
222 ) IRBFFE-

41



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Report of the Directors
EROGMEE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table set out below summarises the published results,
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

B %5 & R MR
TERBIIAEBBET AR KEREZE QM
& AE AERIEERED DEEAK
82 GBI RE - b B TR AE
ERMERERZBS -

Year ended 31 March

BEZ=A=1+-HILEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E—+f —T-XE —T-hF —T-NFE —T-=F
TET AT TEL TET TET
RESULTS E4
REVENUE WA 867,468 867,178 670,292 1,013,101 748,479
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 149,725 134,426 157,263 216,314 167,579
Attrioutable to: &1
Owners of the parent BRREEA 127,446 121,030 120,744 195,629 153,427
Non-controlling interests i 22,279 13,396 36,519 20,685 14,152
149,725 134,426 157,263 216,314 167,579
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE -BER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERES
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 6,084,115 5,834,498 6,263,881 6,195,232 6,483,074
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (2554531)  (2299.006) (2,446,303 (2,342,878  (2,810,153)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ FiZf#E % (90,728) (96,744) (183,263 (143,005) (137,991)
3,438,856 3,437,848 3,634,315 3,709,349 3,534,930
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the
financial statements, respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision
of The Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to
HK$271,908,000, of which HK$37,628,000 has been
proposed as final dividends for the year. In addition, the amount
of HK$1,394,299,000 previously included in the Company’s
share premium account may be distributed in the form of fully-
paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$420,070 (2016: HK$144,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s revenue and
purchases for the year respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s total number
of issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social standards to
ensure sustainable development of its business. The Group
has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands
a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in environmental
and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided
high quality products and services to its customers so as to
ensure sustainable development.

A separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report
conducted by a professional third party will be published in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Non Executive Director:
Ma Kai Cheung (Honorary Chairrman)

Executive Directors:

Ma Kai Yum (Chairman)

Leung Pak Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Lo Man Kit, Sam will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Wong See King will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors, and as the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 9 to 13 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Leung Pak Yan and Mr. Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a
service contract with the Company. The contract has no fixed
terms of engagement and is subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws and termination by either
party giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, Mr. Ma Kai Yum and Mr. Ma Hung Ming,
John had no service contract with the Company as at the end
of the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fee are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares”, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Company’s directors, their respective spouse or
minor children to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EFERFEHRAB N RO KM
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN Mk zERRIRE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the R -_Z—+F=A=+—H ARQAGRZES
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, N T EITE A B AN A &) sk E T B2 A A7)
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of (F&ER (BEHFLEEEG) ([ (BAERPE
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of &) 1) EXVER) 2 i fn BRI H M & A+
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded %A Z X MR R  BELRANRAGIRE (&
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant % N EIE1&01) FE352(5 B EBFHFE Z &R
to Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the A : S BE FHH A ZEEFAIZBSITH
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model &ARNGI MBI ZERZFARIT
Code under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES N -
(a) The Company (a) A2H
Underlying Percentage
Number of ordinary shares held shares of the
and nature of interest pursuant to Company’s
Personal Family Other  share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
REEREZ HARR
BREEERYARERNE RERG BRTRE
BEpg &t BAER EQY 4 HibER (HzE1) & BAl
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 248,280,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 - 516,709,197 4.1
BNE interest of spouse and (note 2) (note 3)
benefciary of trust (Hi7E2) (FizE3)
EXEAA REERR
ERXEA
Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner, interest 61,774,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 1,200,000 167,357,300 13.35
BN of spouse and (note 4) (notes 5 &6)
beneficiary of trust (Hizt4) (P zk5%16)
EalAA ERESR
EREXEA
Leung Pak Yan Beneficial owner - - - 9,000,000 9,000,000 0.72
2R3 ExfBA
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 13,000,000 - - 3,500,000 16,500,000 1.32
REK ExBA
Ma Hung Ming, John Bengficial owner, 1,022,000 2,044,000 = 1,000,000 4,066,000 0.32
Hst interest of spouse (note 7)
EniA AREBER (Ht3E7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

ERERFETRABR K &M

R Z R RiRE ()

A2 R (8)
(@) A2 E (#)

GEE

48

(1)

The underlying shares represent interests of options
granted to the Directors and senior executive under the
Share Option Scheme to acquire shares of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of
Ma Kai Cheung.

Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a
discretionary trust which effectively owns the entire
issued share capital of Regent World Investments Limited
(“Regent World”) and 70% of the entire issued share
capital of Bond Well Investments Limited (“Bond Well”).
At the end of the reporting period, Regent World owned
184,121,625 shares and Bond Well owned 75,007,400
shares of the Company.

The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of
Ma Kai Yum.

Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a
discretionary trust which effectively owns the entire issued
share capital of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand
Wealth”) and Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World”).
At the end of the reporting period, Grand Wealth owned
74,651,040 shares and Peaceful World owned 19,050,000
shares of the Company.

Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of
Real Potential Limited (“‘Real Potential”). At the end of
the reporting period, Real Potential owned 7,500,000
shares of the Company. The interests of Real Potential in
the Company are therefore deemed to be the interests of
Peaceful World in which Ma Kai Yum is also deemed to
have interests for the reason as stated in note 5 above.

The shares were owned by Choi Ka Man, Carmen, the
spouse of Ma Hung Ming, John.

Q)
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e b s ARG RN
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EERFETRABR KD KM
R 2R RIRE ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued) R 2R )
(b) Subsidiaries (b) K &A=
Percentage of
the subsidiary’s
issued share
Name of Number of Type of capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held shares shares)
L
ERITREEDL
WEAREE EEpE 54 FrERO#E R 42 &R (EER)
Ginza Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 15 Ordinary 2.5
Company Limited
SUSERARAA e BHEAA gl
Ginza Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 18 Ordinary 3
Company Limited B
¢USHRERAT E EREHA £k
Gartrend Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
REERABRAF BNE ERBAA ERERE N
BIRL
Gartrend Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
FRERERAF BNk ERBEAA BRERE TEA
EIER D
Tak Sing Alliance Limited Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 9,000 Non-voting N/A
R deferred
ENE ERBEBA BRZE Nk
B
Tak Sing Alliance Limited Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 1,000 Non-voting N/A
N deferred
SN EnBERA BRZE TEHA
BRI
EREEREM Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner N/A N/A 15
BRAT ) . .
SNE ERBAA NEm TEH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

In addition to the above, Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and Mr. Ma
Kai Yum have non-beneficial personal equity interests in
certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group solely
for the purpose of complying with their minimum company
membership requirements in prior years.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors and chief executive had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as detailed in note 45 to the financial statements, no
director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries of fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES

2005 OPTION SCHEME

On 10 October 2005, a share option scheme (the “2005 Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the 2005 Option Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group and consultants of
any member of the Group. The 2005 Option Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, would remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES (Continued)

2015 OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company convened on
24 August 2015, the Company terminated the 2005 Option
Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (the “2015
Option Scheme”) with a validity period of 10 years.

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not
already exercised) granted prior to the termination of the 2005
Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2005 Option Scheme.

The principal terms of the 2015 Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2015 Option Scheme is to
grant options to eligible participants, recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group and
will provide the eligible participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivate the eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group,
track and retain or maintain relationships with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group, and additionally in
the case of executives, to enable the Group to attract and
retain individuals with experience and ability and to reward
them for their past contributions.

2. Participants of the Option Scheme

The eligible participants will be eligible to participate in the
2015 Option Scheme. In determining the basis of eligibility
of each eligible participant, the Board would take into
account such factors as the Board may at its discretion
consider appropriate. The Board shall have absolute
discretion to determine whether a person shall qualify as
an eligible participant.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES (Continued)

2015 OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

3.

.O“l

52

Total number of shares available for issue and
percentage to the issued share capital as at 31
March 2017

125,388,753 shares (approximately 10% of the total
issued share capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options to be granted
under the 2015 Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group including the 2005 Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any twelve (12)-month
period shall not exceed one per cent. (1%) of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of Options in excess
of the Individual Limit in any twelve (12)-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall
be subject to the issue of a circular to the shareholders
and the shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting. The number and terms (including
the exercise price) of the options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before the shareholders’
approval and the date of board meeting for proposing
such further grant should be taken as the date of grant for
the purpose of calculating the exercise price under note
(1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option

The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the directors at their absolute
discretion, save that no share option may be exercised
more than 10 years after grant.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES (Continued)

2015 OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

6.

Payment on acceptance of an option

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when
the duplicate notice of grant constituting acceptance
of the option duly signed by the grantee, together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date
as stipulated in the option documents. Such remittance
shall in no circumstances be refundable and shall not
be deemed a part payment of the exercise price of an
Option.

Any offer to grant an option may be accepted in respect
of a lesser number of shares for which it is offered
provided that it must be accepted in respect of a Board
lot or an integral multiple thereof and such number is
clearly stated in the duplicate notice of grant constituting
acceptance of the option. To the extent that the offer to
grant an option is not accepted by the acceptance date
as stipulated in the option documents, it shall be deemed
to have been irrevocably declined.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
eligible participant shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
Option (“Offer Date”);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
(5) Business Days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and

(c) the nominal value of the Shares.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION

SCHEMES (Continued)

2015 OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

8. The remaining life of the 2015 Option Scheme

The 2015 Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 24 August 2015
(being the date of fulfiment of all conditions on the
adoption of the 2015 Option Scheme).

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had granted 20,900,000
shares options pursuant to the 2015 Option Scheme.

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s
share options outstanding under the 2005 Option Scheme

during the year:

B M AR A B ORE (a0

& - B RO B ()

8. ZF-hAFMMkEHET MR
—T-AFBRENEA ST AE)
A-+mE (MRM—T—RFERIE
Rz 2 EIREEER 2 B) AT ER
CEVER

RZE—+HF=ZA=1+—HIE  AQAFER
B —F — R F 8B I 5T 2197 120,900,00017
BE A A o

TEREBFARRAIRE-FTHFBRE
ATEITE T M ARITE B EZES):

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of Exercise
At1 Granted  Exercised Lapsed At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2016 the year the year the year 2017 options share options options options
(Note 1) (Note 2)
- . HKS per share  HKS per share
“E-X% RER RER RER  —F-tF B TEERE TRBRE RERE
mA-H e K3 XM ZR=t-R  BRERH il B RicAH
(W1 (Fi52) .
GRET BRET
Non-Executive Director
188
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 3,000,000 = - 3,000,000 = 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
BENBEE 17-12-2016
Executive Directors
HTEZE
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
BRELE 17-12-2016
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 24-4-2012 31-12-2013 10 0.71 0.71
10-5-2017
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 24-4-2012 31-12-2013 o 0.7 0.7
REXEE 10-5-2017
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 2-7-2013 2-7-2013 o 1.51 1.51
1-7-2016
8,500,000 = - (6,000,0000 2,500,000
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EROQMEE
INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION A B I B0 &R (a0
SCHEMES (Continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At1 Granted  Exercised Lapsed At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2016 the year the year the year 2017 options share options options options
(Note 1) (Note 2)
- . HK$ per share  HK$ per share
= W RER RER RER -8t B TERRE fEBRE RERE
mA-A i [ %% =ZA=t-AH Eﬂ%aﬁgﬁ)} i (ﬁﬁgg RtizAH
et IR

BRET BRET

Independent Non-Executive

Director
BuFgnES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 150,000 - - 150,000 - 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
SRBRE 17-12-2016
150,000 - - (150,000) -
Other employees 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 3-1-2011 3-1-2015t0 1.03 1.03
HitEE 2-1-2017
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2016 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2018
400,000 - - - 400,000 24-4-2012 31-12-2013 10 0.71 0.71
11-5-2017
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 2-7-2013 2-7-2013 to 1.51 1.51
1-7-2016
5,400,000 - - (4,000,0000 1,400,000
In aggregate

EE 14,060,000 = - (10,150,000 3,900,000
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SCHEMES (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’'s TXRBEFAARGIRE T —AFERE
share options outstanding under the 2015 Option Scheme &t &IIE T KR1TF 2 B EZ ) -
during the year:

Number of share options

BREHA
Date of Exercise
At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 grant of price of At grant
April during during during March share Exercise period of share date of
2016 the year the year the year 2017 options share options options options
(Note 1) (Note 2)
HKS per share  HKS per share
7 i
“E-RE RER RER RER  ZB-tF Rin TEERE  TREBRE REBRE
mA-H i % %% =ZA=t-H BRERN il B HHZAM
(K1) (Wig2) )
BRET BhET
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2015 to 15-10-2020 0.81 0.81
BN
Mr. Leung Pak Yan 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 16-10-2015 1-8-2016 to 31-7-2020 0.81 0.81
REDRE 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 16-10-2015 1-8-2017 to 31-7-2021 0.81 0.81
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 16-10-2015 1-8-2018 to 31-7-2022 0.81 0.81
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2015 to 15-10-2020 0.81 0.81
REKEE
12,200,000 - - - 12,200,000
Other employees 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2015 to 15-10-2020 0.81 0.81
Es 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2016 to 15-10-2019 0.81 0.81
1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2017 to 15-10-2020 0.81 0.81
1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2018 to 15-10-2021 0.81 0.81
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2019 to 15-10-2022 0.81 0.81
1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 16-10-2015 16-10-2020 to 15-10-2023 0.81 0.81
8,700,000 - - - 8,700,000
In aggregate
@ 20,900,000 - - - 20,900,000
Notes: B 5

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the 1. BERERE FRMNNBREAFHE L E
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. BEE(THEHOMAKRA

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment 2.  BERRENTTHE R X B 03 17 IR I 3R %

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in AR A RE AR ES MR-
the Company’s share capital.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above during the period under review, no
options under the 2005 and 2015 Option Schemes were
exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had 24,800,000 share
options outstanding under the 2005 and 2015 Option
Schemes. Should they be fully exercised, the Company will
receive HK$20,018,000 (before issue expenses). The fair
value of these unexercised options measured in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies (note 2.4 to the financial
statements) amounted to HK$6,481,000.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was
known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which was required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO:
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LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES Ry 2 8
Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued
Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held share capital
) O IR
BRRERE 514 B &E ZHEBREE ERTREAEST
East Asia International Trustee a 360,330,065 28.74
Trustees Limited EEEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled b 259,129,025 20.67
oorporatlons
XENRER
Regent World Investments Limited Holding corporation b 184,121,625 14.68
:]; HJ‘L /'\
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled © 101,201,040 8.07
corporatlons
XENRER
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation b 75,007,400 5.98
R F]
Grand Wealth Investments Limited Holding corporation © 74,651,040 5.95
T?‘E HJ"- /\
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

Notes:

a.

East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT”) is the trustee of
a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his family
are the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden
Yield Holdings Limited (“Golden Yield”), EAIT was indirectly
interested in 259,129,025 shares of the Company. EAIT is also
the trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Yum
and his family are the objects and through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Wealthy Platform Limited (“Wealthy Platform”), EAIT
was indirectly interested in 101,201,040 shares in the Company.
As at the end of the reporting period, EAIT was effectively
interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of the Company.

Golden Yield by owning the entire issued share capital of Regent
World and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well,
was indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of
the Company. The total shares held by both Regent World and
Bond Well are the same block of shares as disclosed in “Other
interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung under the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” set out above.

Wealthy Platform by owning the entire issued share capital of
Grand Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owning the entire
issued share capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World,
was indirectly interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and
Real Potential are the same block of shares as disclosed in
“Other interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum under the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” set out above.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2017,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company in the register that was
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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East Asia International Trustees Limited
(TEAT ) ABNELAERERKIEAS
mAMKLH —EHE2EELINETIA L
FEBRH 2B B2 RGolden Yield Holdings
Limited ([Golden Yield ]) T B #E #H AR
A)259,129,0250% f% 17 It 51 - EAITIR R B 4
ENREERERKEAR T ATMKILL
—HE2EEANETIA UEBEE2EW
J& A B]Wealthy Platform Limited ([ Wealthy
Platform | ) & # # A A2 51101,201,0408%
A% - NIREEIR EATERBEE AR TA
360,330,065 A% 17 ©

Golden Yield##  Regent World 2 20 2 %17
f& 2 & Bond WellZ 3 B 2 1T & AN 2 70%im
M %A A Qa4 $£259,129,0250% A% 15 °
Regent World & Bond Well& ££#5 5% 1) &
EXTEEREBTHABRBRN RAAEK
PZERRAR | PRGN ELEEZ [Eih
e | PRI ESR ARG -

Wealthy Platform#£ f & Grand Wealth &
Peaceful WorldZ & 2 1Tl A & & B
Peaceful WorldfE# # /5 Real Potential & &,
AT IR AT B AN A §]1101,201,0400%
f% 17  Grand Wealth * Peaceful World 2 Real
Potential& £IFERRNH ALEX [EERETE
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS OF THE LISTING RULES

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATION OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS (RULE 13.18 OF
CHAPTER 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group imposes
specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholders
of the Company:
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TIHETAEEER 2 AR EARR ZE
BERRARERITEEL:

Outstanding balance of Specific

banking facilities as at Final maturity of performance

31 March 2017 banking facilities obligations
HK$ 000

R=-ZB—tHF=A=+—H BITERREEHA BEBTEE
KREBRITERGE
:F/%TE

172,106 12 August 2021 (Note)

= _—F)\A+=H (BsE)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Honorary Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the Company holding 41.21% shareholding interest in
the Company, and Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the Chairman of the Company
holding 13.35% shareholding interest in the Company, undertake to
maintain for a total of at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out in
note 45 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

B 5E -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors; at least 25% of the
Company'’s total number of issued shares were held by public
as at the date of this report.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors of the Company. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard under the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 14 to 28.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles (Chairman), Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam and Mr. Wong See
King.

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the review of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established its Remuneration Committee in April 2005.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lo Man
Kit, Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong
See King. A set of written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the remuneration committee, was
adopted by the Board on 1 April 2005, amended and restated
on 26 March 2012.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish and
maintain an appropriate and competitive level of remuneration
to attract, retain and motivate directors and key executives to
run the Company successfully. The Remuneration Committee
will ensure that the remuneration policies and systems of the
Group support the Group’s objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director and three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, including Mr. Ma Kai Yum (Chairman), Mr. Lo
Ming Chi, Charles, Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam and Mr. Wong See
King.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the nomination of directors with a view
to appointing suitable individuals with relevant expertise and
experience to enhance the constitution of the Board and to
contribute to the Board.
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Report of the Directors
EHEAWMES

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and still considers all of the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to develop and grow while maintaining
its healthy financial position and solid business foundation to
create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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Independent auditor’s report

EY:x

To the shareholders of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 233,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audiitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statermnents section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters
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BH S & B ETE (o)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Bz ERNAEEBRERSEER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangible assets (collectively, the “Intangible Assets”)
BERAMELEERE (7 [BEEE]) T

The goodwill acquired through business combinations
of the Group is allocated to various cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs) for impairment
testing. In addition, the Group had other intangible
assets at 31 March 2017 which represent the rights
to purchase pre-determined lots of land below market
value pursuant to certain legal binding agreements
and related arrangements. Goodwill and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may be impaired.
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We have evaluated management’s impairment
assessment of the Intangible Assets. The audit
procedures we performed on evaluating the
methodologies, assumptions and estimates used in
the impairment assessments included, among others,
the following:

HAE A EERE B EERERNE - BT E
WMEEAZ A BREMEEFET 2 EREF

BRE(EHhEE)ATRE:

° we assessed the historical accuracy of prior
years’ assumptions and estimates made by
management;

e HZMETHERENA
BT R S AEREME

EFEEL ZBRR LG

° we obtained an understanding of the current and
expected future developments of the respective
CGUs and factors that might affect the estimates
of cash flow projections and discount rates
applicable to those CGUs;

e HMETHMEREESBL 2R RIEHARNK
ERAAECEEANZERSELEU R
SREBRBARBREZ M zHEAE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BREZER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMZERNNEEBRELSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangible assets (collectively, the “Intangible Assets”)
BEREMEEEERE (F71F [ BEEE]) TG
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the respective Intangible Assets relate and
whether the recoverable amount of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) is less than the carrying amount.
For the year under review, the recoverable amounts
of respective CGUs have been determined as
appropriate based on the higher of value in use,
using estimated cash flow projections specific to
each CGU and applying suitable discount rates which
reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the respective
CGUs, and fair value less costs of disposal, with the
assistance from a firm of independent professionally
qualified valuers (the “external valuers”).
BELERTHEERETEEERNReELS
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BB AR o

The impairment testing of the Intangible Assets
required management to make certain assumptions
and estimates that would affect the reported amounts
of the Intangible Assets and related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
BREEREASRAEEEHELE TR&E LM
HEZERNGEMBREAZBETLEEZRESE LA
BREE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 16 and
17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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o we evaluated the objectivity, independence,
capabilities and competence of the external
valuers engaged by management of the Group;

e HMETE EEEEREEZEZINE(LERD
ZEREBM BB REREE

o we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodologies used
and certain key assumptions and estimates
made by management, including, among others,
the specific discount rate and long term growth
rate of each relevant CGU, with reference to
relevant external information sources; and
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° we evaluated the adequacy of related
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Bz ERNAEEBRERSEER

Assessment of net realisable value of properties
under development (“PUD”) and completed
properties held for sale (collectively, the “Properties”)
I ERPYE ([ERPYE]) RIFIELERTLY
F(ZHWF]) 25 FE

The Properties are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The determination of the net
realisable value of the Properties of the Group is
highly dependent on management’s judgements and
estimates, including the estimated selling prices in the
ordinary course of business and the estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and to make the sale

£ ;xl%¥27“ﬁ@@mfmﬁ EFZM
B R fhEr BRRNBEEXBERET 2AAEERTT
RTERIHER TEE 2 EEAA -

The Group engages a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers (the “external valuers”)
to perform valuations of the Properties based on
prevailing market conditions and information available
at the time of the valuations, and by applying
valuation techniques considered as appropriate, so
as to assist management in assessing whether any
write-down of the Properties to their net realisable
value is required.
EREZE-—HBYEXSERMEM ([HMNEHE
B ARBIRITHR KRG ER TS éﬂIﬁLE%
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T

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MR BEH N 7 A M HRER M E3R22

The audit procedures we performed on the
assessment of net realisable value of the Properties
included, among others, the following
BPRABYEZAERFERMETIEZETFE
B(HPBE)ATRIE:

° we evaluated the objectivity, independence,
capabilities and competence of the external
valuers engaged by management of the Group;

e HBMETE EEEEREEZEZINELERD
ZEEM BN REREBE:

° we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the valuation techniques,
assumptions and parameters adopted in the
valuations; and

e HBMEEFHMIABHEZXRG R
HMERAZHERE BRELBE: &

° we also assessed certain key assumptions
and estimates including, among others, (i) the
estimated selling prices of the Properties based
on prevailing market conditions by comparing
the estimated selling prices to, among others,
the recent market transactions of comparable
properties; and (i) the estimated costs to be
incurred to completion for PUD by reconciling
the estimated costs to budgets approved by
management and examined, on a sample basis,
the construction contracts and other reliable
evidence available.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BREZER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMZERNNEEBRELSEE

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

1HET IR EY R 2N FlE

Investment properties of the Group are stated at
fair value and are revalued individually at the end
of each reporting period by a firm of independent
professional valuers (the “external valuers”) engaged
by management of the Group. The valuation of
investment properties involves significant estimations
and assumptions, including, among others, the
estimated rental values and discount rates for the
income capitalisation approach and the estimated
market price for the direct comparison approach.
EEECZREMERATEINEERNEREHAR
B EXEEREZE 2B IEXMGERM ([N
BERD ) BRI B EE - REWEMED REKRMGE
MBXRBE (AhaE) WAETMpEZ HETHEE
BEREREARBERLBOEZMEFATE-.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
B BN AR S M RERM I R4 -
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The audit procedures we performed on the estimation
of fair value of investment properties included, among
others, the following:

BRI ERENE L AT EFRET I EZEFE
B (AEREE) U TEIA:

° we evaluated the objectivity, independence,
capabilities and competence of the external
valuers engaged by management of the Group;

e HMEFE BEEEEREEZEZINEGERM
ZEBM BB KB ERE

° we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us on evaluating the valuation techniques
used and assessing the underlying key
estimations and assumptions through enquiry
with management and the external valuers and
with reference to relevant historical information
and comparable open market information;

e FHFMEBBHRMAZAMLEERBHMER
MERERERIIMNEHEMELEARZEGRE
SEEK KA E LR AR TS E BT (4 Pk A
Z AR ETTE LG £ 2 bt RRER

° we performed market value benchmarking
against comparable properties; and
e HBMENFEALBMEEREEGETE: &

° we assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of disclosures in relation to the fair value
measurement of investment properties, including
the fair value measurement hierarchy, the
valuation techniques used and the key inputs to
the valuation of investment properties.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LLoss
ARG E

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=-F—+F=H=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5T FHET FET
REVENUE WA 5 867,468 867,178
Cost of sales $H & AR (471,670) (481,922)
Gross profit E A 395,798 385,256
Other income and gains, net H g A KUz F 58 78,099 101,844
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (183,380) (171,221)
General and administrative expenses — #& & 171 5 52 (134,597) (135,404)
Other expenses, net HEmAX 558 (6,261) (38,199)
Finance costs B 75 K S 7 (36,342) (33,702)
Share of profit of an associate FEAL — a1 BgE & X B Al 47,236 43,198
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B Al V% A 6 160,553 151,772
Income tax expense Frigfimz 10 (10,828) (17,346)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 149,725 134,426
Attributable to: JEAh
Owners of the parent NREA A 127,446 121,030
Non-controlling interests eI = 22,279 13,396
149,725 134,426
HK cents HK cents
B 7L
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEREREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EAaEsRER
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 12
Basic HK 10.16 9.65
Diluted s 10.16 9.64
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A2l R

Yearended37March2077 BE2-F—+F=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FERT FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEER 149,725 134,426
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hft2HE B
Other comprehensive loss to be BREBBHEEHDES
reclassified to profit or loss Bms HM2EESE:
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE:
Changes in fair value N EEE - (130,629)
Exchange differences on translaton B EFINEHKZER ZR
of foreign operations (84,896) (109,053)
Reclassification adjustment on HEGINEB 2 EFTHE
disposal of foreign operations R 39 (508) 622
Share of other comprehensive SMh—EEBE AR
loss of an associate Hib2mEEE (11,130) (7,731)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AFEHM2EEE
FOR THE YEAR (96,534) (246,791)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEEZERAS
INCOME/(LOSS) (B51]8) B8
FOR THE YEAR 53,191 (112,365)
Attributable to: EE(E :
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZ PPN 36,883 (116,912)
Non-controlling interests 3'5? I HE 2 16,308 4,547
53,191 (112,365)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

4o RO TR

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ix=a FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment RN ] 13 587,306 600,060
Investment properties REYHE 14 1,527,202 1,563,410
Prepaid land lease payments A LR E R IE 15 26,384 28,672
Goodwill HE 16 90,318 90,318
Other intangible assets HEm R EE 17 359,394 359,394
Interests in associates ABEE N T 2R 18 553,644 400,936
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 19 267,447 250,969
Derivative financial instrument TESMIA 32 83 =
Financial assets at fair value ERFEYERERERIBEREF
through profit or loss RIBZEREE 20 83,761
Properties under development BRPYE 22 860,955 941,640
Debtors, deposits and prepayments  JEURERFR - & RFEMRIE 24 25,487 27,208
Pledged time deposits BRHE T BT R 26 42,926 86,818
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 4,424,907 4,349,425
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BRPYE 22 101,746 51,239
Properties held for sale RIELEMS 22 817,869 883,195
Inventories ra 23 24,308 25,686
Debtors, deposits and prepayments  JEUERFR - 2 & RFEMRIE 24 225,300 224 655
Due from directors UL = £ IR 25 35,539 13,696
Due from non-controlling JE W IE 2 AR AR 3R 3K
shareholders 45(c) 200 100
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEYERRRERFR
through profit or loss RIBZERMEE 20 79,785 89,946
Structured deposits B MTER 21 12,129 14,490
Restricted cash ZRHIIRE 26 5,077 6,971
Pledged time deposits 2T EEFR 26 4,122 16,888
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFEEEH 26 284,215 158,207
1,590,290 1,485,073
Investment properties held for sale  H{EHE 2R EW ¥ 14 68,918 =
Total current assets mMENEERE 1,659,208 1,485,073
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31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ki FHERT FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade creditors JEE SEBER 27 (88,978) (101,858)
Sundry creditors, accruals and HAh B BR R - FEET
deposits received BRANMEWIZE (356,814) (343,862)
Provisions B 28 (11,972) (13,772)
Due to directors EESEHIA 45(c) (5,434) 1,317)
Due to non-controlling shareholders & 15 3E 42 B% I 58 7008 45(c) (25,795) (36,939)
Interest-bearing bank and B2 RITREMEE
other borrowings 29 (806,528) (652,885)
Finance lease payables FERRmEHRE 30 (18) =
Deferred income EIERA 33 (20,711) (21,962)
Tax payable FETBIR (199,655) (205,227)
Total current liabilities MENBERE (1,515,905) (1,377,822)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 143,303 107,251
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ E#MAERAEBEE
LIABILITIES 4,568,210 4,456,676
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and ez RITREMEER
other borrowings 29 (425,738) (283,514)
Derivative financial instrument MEEFBITA 32 - (195)
Deferred income EERA 33 (151,585) (160,119)
Deposits received Bllite (8,350) (12,157)
Provisions B 28 (2,318) (12,882)
Deferred tax RAERTE 31 (450,575) (453,217)
Finance lease payable ERmERE 30 (60) =
Total non-current liabilities ERB B ERRE (1,038,626) (922,084)
Net assets BEFE 3,529,584 3,534,592
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31 March 2017 —FE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—XF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
EQUITY [
Equity attributable to owners of BIRFIHEBNAEN B
the parent
Issued capital BT A 34 125,389 125,389
Reserves = 36 3,313,467 3,312,459
3,438,856 3,437,848
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 90,728 96,744
Total equity EnBE 3,529,584 3,534,592
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
BN KREX
Director Director

EF EF




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAENEHE

Year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE_-F—+F=H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAEAAEE
Leasehold Avallable-
land and for-sale
Share building Share Exchange Capital investment Non-
Issued  premium  revaluation opfion  Goodwil ~ fluctuation ~redemption  Reserve  revaluation Capital ~~ Reteined controling Total
captdl  account reserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve funds reserve reserve profits Totd  interests equity
HELH AfHE
2% kf  REF  BRE Ef v REEf iRk
Bk EBE  EfEE Rk HREE ROBE BERE GRS Bk EREE  REEA @t BR  ER4E
Notes ~ HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
LGS Tén TEn  TAr  TRr  Tén T TEr  TRn  TEr  TEr  TEn TR TEr TEn
At Apil 2015 RoE-TF
TA-A 124989 1,389,773 56,060 9859 (86,230) 195,760 316 581 172,031 26826 1744350  3,634315 183263 38175578
Proft for the year RERET - - - - - - - - - - 121,080 121,030 13,396 134,426
Other comprehensive FEEEBZE
income/{oss) for the year: WA/ (B8):
Change i fair value AEHERE?
of avalable-for-sale ATEEY
nvestments - - - - - - - - (130629 - - (130629 - (130829
Exchange difierences on BERNEHZ
transletion of foreign ERZS
operatons - - - - - (00204 - - - - -0 B8 (109059
Reclassfication adiustment 3t &I ER
on disposal of foreign JENAE
operations #z 39 - - - - - 622 - - - - - 622 - 622
Share of other ElE-BHE
comprehensive loss of RAZEM
an associate 2EEE - - - - - 7,731) - - - - - (7,731) - 7731)
Totel comprehensive income/  REFH2E
(loss) for the year WA/ (B8) - - - - - (107313 - - (130629) - 12100 (116912 4507 (112365)
Deregistration of subsidiaries ~ HEMEAT 39 - - - - - - - - - - - - (4517) (4517)
Acquiston of subsidiaries ~~ KEEHEAT 38 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,239 2239
Contribution from non- FERRRTE
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 292 292
Acquiiton of non-controling ~ WEERHBAFZ
interests in subsiciaries SRS - - - - - - - - - (80 - 480 (53729 (101,749
Dividends paid to non- BRFERR
controling shareholders BEZBRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (B35 (35,351
Issue of shares upon exercise BT EBRIE
of share options [EGL] 34() 400 4526 - (1,630 - - - - - - - 329 - 329
Equity-settled shareoption ~~ (WIEREE 7
amangements BRERH - - - 2780 - - - - - - - 2780 - 2780
Transfer of share option IR
resene upon forfetwre of BB ERIERE
share options - - - (1944) - - - - - - 1,944 - - -
Final 2015 dlvidend —Z-1f
5 I - - - - - - - - - - Eem e - e
At 31 March 2016 RZF-RE
ZR=t-A 125,389 1,394,209 56,060" 0065" (86,280  8844T 316" 581 41402 1,188 1,829,707 3437848 96,744 3534592
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GanEEk
Year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
NG EIN.
Leasehold Available-
land and for-sale
Share  building Share Exchange Capital investment Non-
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill fluctuation redemy Reserve luati Capital ~ Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
B AfHE
BEf Rt kBT BRE EX Eus REEf FER
Bk BEE  EfRE R HERE RERE FERE AR ff  EAEE  REEF &t BE  BEAE
Notes | HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ik TEn  TEx  TER  TEr  TEn  TEn  TErn  FEx  TEn  TER  TEr  TEn  TEn  TER
At1 Apri 2016 RZE-1&
mA-A 125389 1,394,209 56,060 9065  (86,230) 88,447 316 581 4402 (1,188 1,820,707 3,437,848 96,744 3,534,592
Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - - - - - M6 127446 22219 149725
Other comprefensive KEEEMH2E
incomefloss) for the year: WA/ (B%) :
Exchange diferences on BEENERL
translation of foreign EXZE
operations - - - - - (78,925) - - - - - (78,925) (5,971)  (84,89%)
Reclassification adjustment
on disposal of foreign
operations - - - - - (508) - - - - - (508) - (508)
Share of other
comprenensive loss of
an associate - - - - - (11,130) - - - - - (11,130) - (11,130)
Total comprehensive income/
(loss} for the year - - - - - (90,569) - - - - 127446 36,883 16,308 53,191
Contribution from non-
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 12,401 12,401
Dividends paid to non- BRFERR
controling shareholders BEzkS - - - - - - - - - - - - (4725 (34725
Equty-setied share option ~~ MEREE 78R
amangements ERH - - - 1,741 - - - - - - - 1,741 - 1,741
Transfer of share option Al b
reserve upon forfeiture or 2
expiry of share options BhRiEGE - - - (5,005) - - - - - - 5,005 - - -
Final 2016 dividend ZE-X
1 - - - - - - - - - - (31616 (37,616) - (37,616)
At 31 March 2017
125389 1,304,209 56,060 5801 (86,80  (2,116) 316* 581 41,4020 (21,188 1,924,542 3,438,856 90,728 3,529,584
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * It 55 7% 8 BR3,313,467,000/8 T (ZF — X
of HK$3,313,467,000 (2016: HK$3,312,459,000) in the % :3,312,459,000/ 7T ) E BB 7 & BT 15

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22\ N =X
AR E
Year ended 31 March 2017 BZ2=-F—+F=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXKFME2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 556 AT g A 160,553 151,772
Adjustments for: FHER:
Finance costs B 7% 8 A 7 36,342 33,702
Share of profit of an associate JRE f — BT B o 2 =) 0aR ) (47,236) (43,198)
Bank interest income RITH B U A 6 (2,828) (5,475)
Investments interest income ®EF BWA 6 (4,465) =
Other interest income H At F 24 A 6 (10,476) (10,428)
Dividend income from available- AHHEREZ
for-sale investments f& B U A 6 (6,948) (21,358)
Dividend income from financial ERAFEYERERNERE
assets at fair value through FREZEMEEL
profit or loss ISR PN 6 (2,585) (1,996)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEZ W
properties 6 (4,059) (7,729)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME  HBEREE
items of property, plant and BE BB
equipment, net (Mz=) F8E 6 246 (316)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHKMBARZ
2% 6 - (20,885)
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of M E AR 2
subsidiaries BB (M) 6 (530) 354
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEERE (W) -
FER
Financial assets at fair value BAFEYERER
through profit or loss BafREZ
TREE
— Held for trading -RHEEER 6 (12,515) 11,152
— Designated as such upon - R TR Z
initial recognition BRETE 6 (209) 2,036
Derivative instruments PTEIAR
— Transactions not qualifying —TREEHFER
as hedges % 6 (6) 33
Fair value adjustment of FAREBRAFERE
contingent consideration 47 - (2,908)
Depreciation e 6 42,036 42,038
Changes in fair value of KEMERNTE
investment properties, net ) HEE 6 (15,830) (23,985)
Change in fair value of DERFELHEZ R
an investment property WEMEANTEE
classified as held for sale 6 (13,118) -
Impairment of debtors, net FEUREBRF 2 BB« FEE 6 4,100 28
Recognition of prepaid land lease XATTER L
payments S I8 2 R 6 740 782
Provision for onerous contracts EEEE HRE 6 - 24,124
Release of deferred income BT AR BR 33 (54) (269)
Equity-settled share option N EE
expense B R R 2 1,741 2,780
124,899 130,254
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HAVeWER
Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=-F—+F=H=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FHExT FHET
Increase in properties under TERYE ZEM
development (28,388) (89,745)
Decrease in properties held for RIELEMHEL
sale RS 47,679 73,469
Decrease in inventories FERL 162 3,994
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, FEUERF - 12 & R TEN
deposits and prepayments RIER A (3G h0) (3,387) 30,250
Increase in amounts due from JFE IR B8 =5 3R T 3 0
directors (17,981) (10,390)
Decrease in trade creditors BB B BRFUR D (10,254) (11,584)
Increase/(decrease) in sundry H b ERERR
creditors, accruals and EstEARERIZS
deposits received #m,/ CRd) 18,675 (40,673)
Increase in deferred income IEAE WA 2 38 10 181 681
Increase/(decrease) in amounts ERTE SRR
due to directors #m,/ CRd) 4,243 (10,643)
Decrease in provisions B (12,058) =
Cash generated from operations KREEBMB RS 123,771 125,613
Interest element of finance lease MEMEHESNRZ
rental payments MEE D 7 - (12)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EEREH K (1,313) (181)
Oversea taxes paid B8N IR (4,412) (10,700)
Net cash flows from KEXEBEZ
operating activities HEemEFHE 118,046 114,720
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—%

—tFZA=F—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZH2HRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BRER1TH B 2,828 5,475
Other interest received H b B U F B 10,023 15,346
Realised fair value loss on derivative T4 ¢ R T EZ D #IHA
financial instruments ?TE B
— transactions not qualifying as TREHEPEERD
hedges X5 (271) (1,355)
Dividend received from available- BT HEE EH
for-sale listed investments BERE 6,948 19,455
Dividend received from available- Bl S
for-sale unlisted investments ELTIRERE - 1,903
Dividend received from financial BUIEAFETIRERE
assets at fair value through profit =mPEEseREER
or loss B 2,585 1,996
Purchases of items of property, BAME HER
plant and equipment HEIEE (62,123) (55,741)
Purchase of investment properties B AR &M% (49,166) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - KE &
property, plant and equipment RIEIE B TS RIA 3,660 1,066
Purchases of financial assets at fair B AR A F{EFIEE K&
value through profit or loss RBRPEIEZ
TREE (114,609) (95,260)
Proceeds from disposal of financial & & A F{EFIEE K&
assets at fair value through profit RBRPEIEZ
or loss TRLE EFTS A 53,733 30,504
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investments (18,448) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B Bt B8 A A 38 - (21,110)
Proceeds from disposal of HER é%%ﬁﬁ SR
investment properties 34,965 55,259
Decrease in pledged time deposits Eﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁf R 43,892 2,026
Decrease in restricted cash /v\ SRHIBEE 2 m A 1,548 3,204
Investment in structured deposits HEBMETFRERE (12,129) (5,903)
Redemption of structured deposits B‘“’ O] & 18 117 3K 14,021 65,046
Investment in an associate ®E— R E R A - (54)
Repayment of a loan to m—HEE A AREEER
an associate - 45
Advances to an associate R 1) /N . (111,683) (45,556)
Prepayment for prepaid land lease i‘E ﬁ THREMLEE
payments FKIA (1,819) -
Net cash flows used in KREFBMAZ
investing activities REMEFHE (196,045) (23,654)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZABLMER
Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=-F—+F=A=+—HIFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FExT AT
CASH FLOWS FROM BMETHABZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AT R Em T
upon exercise of share options AR {7 Fir 15 ;K18 - 3,296
New bank loans FILIRITE K 1,283,590 528,051
Repayment of bank loans EERITEX (981,682) (574,513)
Acquisition of non-controlling W BE FEE R M 2
interests - (11,381)
Contribution by non-controlling IR AR T E
shareholders 12,401 292
Changes in balances with non- FEVERR IR R EREE &
controlling shareholders, net VR RE (11,136) 9,808
Capital element of finance lease BEMENBSNRD
rental payments BARED - (595)
Dividends paid BEEE (37,617) (37,617)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEERR R R B
shareholders (34,725) (85,351)
Interest paid =ENEEE (35,522) (33,200)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEERBME (A2
financing activities REeME T 195,309 (151,210)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReERBAEEEER
IN CASH AND ®gm O B8
CASH EQUIVALENTS 117,310 (60,144)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRRLEE
beginning of year BHH 174,102 244,238
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFHNTE FHE
changes, net (3,075) (9,992)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F#ZHR&R
AT END OF YEAR HE&EEEH 288,337 174,102
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES ReRBELEE
OF CASH AND CASH HEERZDW
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as REMBRRARANZES 2
stated in the consolidated RekRSEFBEEE
statement of financial position 26 284,215 158,207
Time deposits with original maturity 4 & % R 21| HA B >
of less than three months when R=E A ZEB\FR
acquired 26 4,122 16,888
Bank overdrafts RITEX 29 - (993)
Cash and cash equivalents as HRERERERANEYZ
stated in the consolidated RekRSEFBEIEE
statement of cash flows 288,337 174,102
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31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

84

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located
at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in investment holding, property investment and
development, and the operations of hotel, restaurant and
food businesses.

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

2 al J & B R

FEEMEEFZERERAG (ARA])
m—HREBREAMEKZ 2 BR AT -
AR AR =B AR Canon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda -

FR AR REMBAR (5 [ RE
BDMERXRBRREER MERE
REBERIANGEBE BN RmER -

ARAREEMBAR ZFHBWT:

follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration Class of equity registered interest attributable to
Name and business interest held share capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ BRITEE/ ANREGRE
a8 AR e FriisRiERR AR AS BAL FTEER
2017 2016
ZE—+E [ ZTXF
Amica Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Property investment
DEMEZBRAA Bk LER 28T WERE
Carrianna (BVI) Ltd.* British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
RBRAHEES EER E REER
Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$8,000,000 73 73 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Limited?
EZH AN BERERDA B8 LRk 8,000,000/ 7T i Ha
Carrianna Chinese Food Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$900,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
EERRARR (FE) B EEk 900,0007% 7T BRAER
BRAR
Carrianna Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$25,000,000 100 100  Property investment
and development
EEMEEFERAR B EERk 25,000,000/ 7T MERBRER
Carrianna (Shenzhen) People’s Republic Registered capital HK$80,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*® of China (“PRC")/ and property
Mainland China development
E2H ORI ERE FEAREAE AMER 80,000,000/ 7T RABRRMERE
BRAFO (rR@El)/
N3
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

1.

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

AE REBEE R (@)

Wt B 2 &) M B & R s

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration Class of equity registered interest attributable to
Name and business interest held share capital the Company Principal activities
EMmmL, BRITEE/ ERFEERE
a8 MR EE L FisRERS R A BA TEER
2017 2016
ZE—tE | ZTRF
China East International Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 83 83 Investment holding
Materials City Limited
ERABRMEAERAR B Eak 1,000,000/ 7 REZR
Crown Tech Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKS$1 100 100  Investment holding
Limited
ERREBRAA B EER 1B REZR
Delicious Group Dining Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,733,601 60 60  Restaurant operations
Services Limited*
REEBERRBERAR BF LRk 10,733,601 7T i $a
Earn Fame Group Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
NEEEBRLA EBRAHEES il EY REER
Elite Brave Development British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares USs$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited*
BRERBRAR" HERLHE LER 1% RAEER
Goldfield Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100  Property investment
FEEXARLA £ LER 28T NERE
Huge Moral International British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares USs$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited*
EREERBRAR RERLHE LEk 17T RAEER
Profit Smart Group Ltd* Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$5,598,059 60 60  Food business
MERREEERAR B4 ERK 5,598,059/ 7T ARAE
Tak Sing Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$200 100 100 Property investment
BE LRk 200 7T NERE
Non-voting HK$1,000,000 - -
deferred
shares
BRRE 1,000,000/ ¢
EERH
Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital HK$51,000,000 100 100  Property investment
Company Limited*
ENTERREGRAFA O R/ hEAE AR 51,000,000% 7T MERE
EE (L) E PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB14,700,000 100 100 Hotel and restaurant
BERRAFR operations
HE/REARE FEff B A AR H14,700,0007 BERBREE
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1.
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— - E & b
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AalREBEHR (o)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W 2 & A BB R (s
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration Class of equity registered interest attributable to
Name and business interest held share capital the Company Principal activities
KL/ BRTLE/ AN A AL R
£ AR R EER BN ARk TEER
2017 2016
ZE—tE | ZZ—RF
FIEEMBERER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB5,000,000 100 100  Restaurant operations
BRRAE
RE L REARE BallEEw AR #5,000,0007 i3
BEEEHRBERAA®  PRC/Manland China  Registered capital ~ RMB31,000,000 65 65  Food business
HE/REAKE HREA AR%31,000,0007C AREE
R EEREREEERE PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital ~ RMB100,000,000 90 90  Hotel operations
BRRAC
RE L REARE g & AR 100,000,000 BERE
Carrianna (Hunan) PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital ~ RMB385,000,000 92.21 9221 Property investment
Enterprise Co., Ltd. and development
(*Hunan Carrianna”)®©
EEBORE)EXERAR RE/ HEKE BallEEw AR 385,000,000 MERERER
(MHEEEH]) e
EFERE R PRG/Mainland China  Registered capital US$46,000,000 83 83 Property investment
(EEB)BRAF and development
RE L REARE FEff B A 46,000,000 7T MERERER
FIEZPHRRERAF*®  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB6,000,000 68 68  Restaurant operations
HE/REARE HREA AR %6,000,0007 il
SEEEFERRSE PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB50,000,000 65 65  Restaurant operations
BRRF
RE L RE AR BallEEw AR 50,000,0007 i
EREZHRHBMAET  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital US$2,000,000 75 75 Food business
RE/REARE HREA 2,000,000% T RRER
Sleek Treasure Ventures British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares US$77,200 60 60  Investment holding
Limited’
IEE IR BER AR EREXES Limik 77,200% 7T REZR




1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
* Direct subsidiaries of the Company

i The statutory financial statements of these companies
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
@ Sino-foreign joint venture companies

@ Domestic enterprises

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group, as well as certain investment
holding and other companies, which in the opinion
of the directors, are of specific importance to or for
specific purpose for the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

88

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
leasehold land and buildings, investment properties,
derivative financial instruments, and certain financial
assets which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

2.1 HWEE

AZERNMBHRRDRBEBGTNAE
(FEETEAE]) Bz BEME®
FEA([BEAMHREER]) (B
FIBEREMBREER BAEGER
(IFEgstE) RRE) BEAR
S RAINREE R RED 2 BERE R
H-PMBRMRRMELKAERE
AR FEREZETHEL W NET
REME MTESRTIARETERE
ERIN - ZEMBEBRRTIABITES)
BRRBHA ABEEDCARERED
ZTTTe

GEAEE
REMBBRREBEARARENE AT
BE_Z—+F=A=+—HIEFEZ
MBHREK -WBRARRANRBEEXME
BEEFINER (BREBLEER) - EX
SEAXKFEL2EKREHREBHE
MR O R A A BBERENHRE
D (AT AKRERAENTEREY
KEBAHNRFEN) FEZFER
B - BERS #22 il % o

AR EEAMEEREEFINRELHR
REZHORFZIEUER AIAREER
AAEREHRAHREHRNENE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

OPERATING CYCLE

The operating cycle of the Group for the property
investment and development business is the time
between the acquisition of assets and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents. Due to the nature of such
business, the normal operating cycle is longer than 12
months. The Group’s current assets include assets (such
as properties under development and properties held for
sale) which are sold, consumed or realised as part of the
normal operating cycle for the property investment and
development business even when they are not expected
to be realised within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

90

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Aoplying
the Consoligation Exception

2.1 4 W # (@)

CE SR
AEENMERERBEREGEXBEY
RUEBEEEEEZR AR EE
BERA/LEZER -BREEBHMEE -
HEXBHBEAM2EA -KNEEY
ERERBREGNRDEEBRE—
BEEFLXBHALE HREREZR
MEE (PINBERFVERFIELEY
%) AMEEMZEFEETSERE NN
RIEO12{EH A RER -

AEBDRANFE 2 B IR ERERN
THIFTR] MRIERT BB a2 -

ERMBREEN REFE:
FI0% BAEBE  EAEEAKHY

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Clarification of Acceptable
Methodis of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised standards
has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Transfers of Investment
Property?

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

Forejgn Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for early adoption

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018, except for the amendments to HKFRS
12, which are effective for annual periods on or after 1
January 2017

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

92

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of
the Group’s interests in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and certain financial assets at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

24 FEHGHBRKEZHME

LEAFIEE @)

REHEBANTEEMBZREES
B (REEAENMER) 2T ikElI &5
MEE - WRESELXSEN CREEAEN
AR 2 AT B S R BREE - BIfERR

BEEE S BAERZBEBET
SREZHMRED -
MEEE T EERcELEM (HRE

?E%ﬁ@ﬂb&%ﬁ B ZEBG—

7 RIREE LS 2 BER - GRMH
ﬁiﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁkiﬁ2$ﬁﬁiﬁ
HEBRTHEZAEREBEMEERH
2@%@@&%% B RS EEBME

HEtE -

2P s E
AEERNSHEHRIZATFEFEER
ﬁ%% ERITETANETEREE -
NHERMS2LEENAEBHERF
RHFHEBEMPRZERIEERER
ﬁ%iﬁzﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁgm%
RUEEEXHERBBEIRINEER
BEXEMSREEZIEMHERT
Wﬂéﬁiﬁﬁmﬁﬂ@ MIGHET
TERZABEMHARANKENEA
ZhiG - BESREZAFETIREBR
MG2EENEEXRBEEERS UK
BN SITEE



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

98

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets,
investment properties and non-current assets classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

100

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Hotel properties Over the lease terms
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Leasehold land

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Over the lease terms
2.5% to 3%

5% to 20%

10% to 20%

15% to 20%

20% to 25%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Investment property is transferred to non-current assets
held for sale when it is expected that the carrying amount
will be recovered principally through sale rather than from
continuing use. For this to be the case, the property must
be available for immediate sale in its present condition,
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
the sale of such property and its sale must be highly
probable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

For the sale to be highly probable:

° the board of directors must be committed to a plan
to sell the property and an active programme to
locate a buyer and complete the plan must have
been initiated;

° the property must be actively marketed for sale at a
price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value; and

° the sale should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as
held for sale are presented separately as current items
in the statement of financial position. On reclassification,
investment property continues to be at fair value.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL) (Continued)

Intangible assets of the Group represent the rights to
purchase pre-determined lots of land pursuant to legal
binding agreements. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Intangible assets are amortised to properties
under development as part of land costs in accordance
with the actual acquisition patterns of these pre-
determined lots of land.

LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
SO as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees
and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to the sales proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion or by management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation and the loss arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt
investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or
loss. Debt investments in this category are those which
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may by sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investrments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investrments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the
asset using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: () the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss.

FES AR A BRA ] | 201748

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
AW WOk

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

24 FEHGHBRKEZHME

bR 2w A

TRBENRABEZEERERIIUEX
B RS 48 | FERR -

WREERAEHR-BELI R TIRIE
RZHEMEERRA KINBAEZHEK
REREBE AZEEFRETRIER
LTHERRBERERNEE SKREE
ZEBNIEERER

& TR a9

B RITRA FHAITEVEE RN EHE T
REBYABRFAELELEE JEE
BENEEBERKETR SREE
AREBAES EEREKE  WETHIR
R AAFERETIIR ©

frEem LA

R TV EX il
AEBERITES BT ANFEZAM
s R R AR - ZOTES BT AZY)
SHRABEA WL 2 AT EREE
ARFEER - HTETAZAFERE
BRP AEE MATEABBALA
Bffe

74 T A A TR 31 B2 s U
AEEBEANRRKR.

119



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
AW WOk

31 March 2017 Z—F—+#=H=+—H

24

120

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value on an individual property basis.
Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable
borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of properties sold in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses or by management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of
profit or loss.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions/
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INCOME TAX (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the statement of profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
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revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties’ ownership
are transferred to the buyers, which is when the
construction of relevant properties has been
completed and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

from the sale of goods (other than properties), when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

income from restaurant and food businesses, at the
point of sale to customers;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

hotel, property management and other service
income, in the period in which such services are
rendered;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

()  interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and/or rewards to eligible
participants (including the Company’s directors and
other employees of the Group, any consultant, advisor
or agent engaged by or business/joint venture partners
of any member of the Group) who render services and/
or contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) and advisors of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees/advisors render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions with non-
employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the services received at the date they are received. Where
the market information for the services provided by non-
employees cannot be reliably determined, the fair value of
the share options granted at the date when the services
are received is applied as a surrogate measure. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 35 to the
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”)
operated by respective local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll expenses to the CP
Schemes to fund their benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the CP Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the CP Schemes.
Contributions under the CP Schemes are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CP Schemes.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of
properties held for sale as disclosed in note 5 to the
financial statements. The assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to buyers requires the examination of
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer of risks and rewards coincides with the date when
the equitable interest in the property vests with the buyer
upon release of the respective property to the buyer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements,
the Group provides guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties. These guarantees will normally be
discharged upon issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates which are generally available within three
months after the buyers take possession of the relevant
properties. In order to obtain mortgages, the buyers have
to settle no less than 20% of the total contract amount
in accordance with the related PRC regulations upon
signing the sale and purchase agreement. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that such settlements
provide sufficient evidence of the buyers’ commitment
to honour contractual obligation of the bank loans. In
addition, based on the past experience, defaults of
mortgage facilities by the buyers which resulted in the
bank guarantees being called upon were rare and the
financial impact was immaterial. Further, as disclosed in
note 48 to the financial statements, the credit risk of the
Group under the circumstance that a purchaser defaults
on the repayment of its mortgage loan during the term
of the guarantee is very low. Accordingly, the directors
believe that significant risks and rewards associated with
the ownership of the properties have been transferred to
the buyers upon the delivery of the properties to them.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management in
determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention of holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties.
During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under
development if the properties are intended for sale after
their completion, whereas, the properties are accounted
for as investment properties under construction if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost,
while the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to investment properties and
are subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Estimates for net realisable values of properties

under development and properties held for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and properties held for sale according
to their net realisable values based on the realisability
of these properties taking into account management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion (including land
costs). As at 31 March 2017, based on management’s
best estimates, there was no material impairment for
properties under development and properties held for
sale of HK$962,701,000 (2016: HK$992,879,000) and
HK$817,869,000 (2016: HK$883,195,000), respectively.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount
of goodwill at 31 March 2017 was HK$90,318,000 (2016:
HK$90,318,000). Further details are given in note 16 to
the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group engaged independent professionally qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the investment
properties of the Group at the end of the reporting period.

In the valuation, the valuers consider information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) the direct comparison approach and reference to
the recent transactions for similar premises in the
proximity; and

(b) the discounted cash flow analysis which discounts
the projected cash flows generated from the
properties at an appropriate market rate of return to
arrive at the fair values of the properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2017 was HK$1,527,202,000
(2016: HK$1,563,410,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of contingent
consideration

A business combination of the Group during the year
involved post-acquisition performance-based contingent
consideration. The Group recognises contingent
consideration at its fair value which is determined in
accordance with the terms under the relevant agreement
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement
is required to determine key assumptions (such as the
growth rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in
the estimation of post-acquisition performance of the
acquired subsidiaries. Changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect the amount of future liability. Contingent
consideration shall be remeasured at its fair value resulting
from events or factors which emerge after the acquisition
date, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to CIT in the PRC. As a result of
the fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been
confirmed/determined by the relevant tax authorities,
objective estimates and judgements based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies,
and interpretations and practices in respect thereof are
required in determining the provision for income taxes to
be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have an impact on the income tax and tax
provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for
LAT is based on management’s estimates and according
to their understanding of the requirements of certain
PRC tax laws and regulations, and interpretations and
practices in respect thereof. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the relevant tax authorities
upon the completion of the relevant property development
projects. As the relevant tax authorities have not yet
finalised their LAT assessments for certain property
development projects of the Group, the final outcome

could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Recognition and allocation of construction costs
on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to properties held for sale
upon completion. An apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss upon
the recognition of the sales of completed properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the completed
properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as the
costs of such phase. Costs that are common to phases
are allocated to individual phases based on the estimated
saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged
in restaurant and hotel operations and the provision
of food and beverage services; and

(b)  the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties
and the leasing of residential, commercial and
industrial properties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income, certain fair value gains
or losses from the Group’s financial instruments, finance
costs as well as corporate and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the agreed prices.

4.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. a7 &R ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2017/At 31 March 2017 BE-Z—t+tE=A=+—-HLEES
R=—ZB-—tHF=A=+—8H
Property
Restaurant, investment
food and and
hotel development Total
RERERE REE )
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER
Segment revenue: AHBA:
Revenue from external customers RENPRE 2 WA 712,777 154,691 867,468
Intersegment revenue SEE WA 231 5,411 5,642
713,008 160,102 873,110
Reconcilation: 80 -
Elimination of intersegment revenue WisH 53Rz WA (5,642)
Total revenue BIRA 867,468
Segment results DEE 79,830 125,016 204,846
Reconciliation: S
Bank interest income TR SWA 2,828
Unallocated other income and gains, net k2 EE MU A R Uiz - B8 19,603
Corporate and other unallocated expenses (2% & Eftt R 5 AL H (30,382)
Finance costs LR (36,342)
Profit before tax BR A A Al 160,553
Other segment information: Hittn HER
Changes in fair value of REME A VE
investment properties, net 2E) . HE - 15,830 15,830
Change in fair value of an investment DRARENE—E
property classified as held for sale REMF L ATEE - 13,118 13,118
Gain on disposal of HEREY SR 2 s
investment properties - 4,059 4,059
Fair value gain on financial assets BRRATEFIRRRERS
at fair value through profit or loss, net REGHEEL
ATEKE T8
- unallocated Sl 12,724
Fair value gain on derivative instruments T4 TE 2 AFEKE
- transactions not qualifying - THEEHERZ
as hedges, net R5
- unallocated Vol 6
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2017/At 31 March 2017

FES AR A BRA ] | 201748

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
AW WOk

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

gE7WER @

BE-—Z—t+tE=A=+—HLEE

(Continued) R-ZEB—tF=A=+—H (&)
Property
Restaurant, investment
food and and
hotel development Total
RRRALR RERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Other segment information: (Continued) E#t 2 HEH : (&)
Share of profit of an associate JE{h —FE B & 12 A A - 47,236 47,236
Utllisation of provision for onerous contracts 1 518 1 & 45 1 - 10,128 10,128
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary FH-HERBAR . WE 530 - 530
Equity-settled share option expense NEREE 2 BRERS
- segment — 0 E - 503 503
- unallocated —-xDHE 1,238
1,741
Investment interest income BREMBWA - - 4,465
Other interest income HiF 2 A
- segment — & - 4,918 4,918
- unallocated vl 5,558
10,476
Impairment of trade debtors, net B SRR RE FE 4,100 - 4,100
Recognition of prepaid land BREMN B EFIE
lease payments 740 - 740
Depreciation e
- segment - 36,056 4,156 40,212
- unallocated vl 1,824
42,036
Interests in associates REE D B 173 553,471 553,644
Capital expenditure BRAX
- segment — & 76,488 35,353 111,841
- unallocated —RDHE 233
112,074*

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment, excluding assets from the acquisition of

subsidiaries.

* BARXBRAENE BEIRE
TEREKRENBARIMSEE-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Fo
g

7 w0 & R a0

Year ended 31 March 2016/At 31 March 2016 HE-_T—R"EZA=t+—RHLFE/
RZE—XRF=A=+—H
Property
Restaurant, investment
food and and
hotel development Total
g MERE
RBRBE RER @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT FTET TET
Segment revenue: ok 1 ON
Revenue from external customers KEBEREZBA 622,015 245,163 867,178
Intersegment revenue AEE WA 1,507 4,651 6,158
623,522 249,814 873,336
Reconciliation: A7 -
Elimination of intersegment revenue WisE P ERE L2 A (6,158)
Total revenue BRA 867,178
Segment results DWHEE 69,903 159,821 229,724
Reconciliation: Eil
Bank interest income SRATH B WA 5,475
Unallocated other income and gains, net K2 B E U A Rz F8E 997
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % R EM A DB X (50,722)
Finance costs B AR (33,702)
Profit before tax FR 750 A A 151,772
Other segment information: Hitt o HER
Changes in fair valug of RENEZATHE
investment properties, net 28 38 - 23,985 23,985
Gain on disposal of s E&,éf E A€
investment properties S 7,729 7,729
Fair value losses on financial assets BRATEYRRABREF
at fair value through profit or loss, net REZEBEEY
ATEEE F8
- unallocated —-XHE 13,188
Fair value loss on derivative instruments ~ $TE LA Z A FEEE
- transactions not qualifying = T\ﬁé\ﬁ HEEZ
as hedges, net X5 FE8
- unallocated Y 33
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2016/At 31 March 2016 BE-ZE—AE=ZA=+—-RHLEE
(Continued) R-ZB—-XRE=ZA=+—-R8 (&)
Property
Restaurant, investment
food and and
hotel development Total
il MERE
R RBE REE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTEL T
Other segment information: (Continued) Hft 2 &R : (&)
Share of profit of an associate JE G — R & R AR A - 43,198 43,198
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries TN E AR ER 354 - 354
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RAHBARz Wa - 20,885 20,885
Provision for onerous contracts BREANEE - 24,124 24,124
Equity-settled share option expense DREGEE  BRERS
- segment -nE - 412 412
- unallocated Sl 2,368
2,780
Other interest income HiF 2 A
- segment 2k = 4918 4918
- unallocated vl 5,510
10,428
Impairment of trade debtors ERESERZRE 28 = 28
Recognition of prepaid land EREM L EERE
lease payments 782 - 782
Depreciation il
- segment — 7 35,214 4,572 39,786
- unallocated vl 2,252
42,038
Interests in associates iNAYNCIA 2 174 400,762 400,936
Capital expenditure BARX
- segment — 7 50,876 12,035 62,911
- unallocated vl 824
63,735

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment, excluding assets from the acquisition of

subsidiaries.

* BARXBRAENE BEIRE
TEEEBREARMSEE-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

144

(a)

Revenue from external customers

KE7WER @

15 % K
(a) KEMFEFZWA

2017 2016

—E—+tF = AS

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FH T FHET

Hong Kong BA 341,027 281,669
Mainland China B K FE 526,441 585,509
867,468 867,178

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

B AERTIRIER PRIE 2
& M 5E °

(b) JEin B & E

2017 2016

—E—+fF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Hong Kong BB 223,352 254,292
Mainland China PR K B 3,781,851 3,730,138
4,005,203 3,984,430

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

No revenue from any single external customer accounted
for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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REVENUE 5. WA

Revenue represents gross restaurant and food business WAEBERNBERRMEBRALER
income and net invoiced value of goods sold, net of PEEEMBEEFEREBEEENLES
relevant business tax and allowances for trade discounts; P BB S R E MRS 2 WA
income from the rendering of hotel and other services; HEMEMSHIE: ke W kEY 24
proceeds from the sale of properties; and gross rental W ALEEE-

income received and receivable during the year.

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTIT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Income from hotel, restaurant HIEBERRMBEFRA
and food businesses 712,777 622,015
Gross rental income HaeW AL 83,624 89,261
Proceeds from sale of properties HEMEFTE IR 71,067 155,902
867,468 867,178
I\ A V. ‘\\
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. & # an il
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBMATEF R, (GTA) T
(crediting): KIE
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FTET
Cost of inventories sold and EEFENERHERERE
services provided X 7 471,670 481,922
Depreciation T 13 42,036 42,038
Recognition of prepaid land HRIEN L HE R E
lease payments 15 740 782

Minimum lease payments under /A B T M F AL &
operating leases for land and MOz &xEHEE
buildings 74,321 44,268
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. Fx B a0 A e
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt &E FHExT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B % BN 4,108 4,020
Employee benefit expense EERMAX
(excluding directors’ (EEHM (M)
remuneration (note 8))*: BRON) *
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& e &IEsL 195,229 170,586
Equity-settled share option AR 2
expense ERER 581 1,020
Pension scheme contributions 3Rk 4 5T 2| 7
(defined contribution (FREHFKEED
schemes) 7,280 6,527
203,090 178,133
Foreign exchange ME N Z50 58
differences, net 1,024 13,998
Impairment of trade debtors, net JEUWE SRR ZIAE  FRE 24 4,100 28
Direct operating expenses e s IEMEELE
(including repairs and LEEEETY
maintenance) arising on (BIE#EBERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 1,886 2,108
Provision for onerous contracts ~ E18 14 & 4945 - 24,124
Changes in fair value of KEMEATEEE
investment properties, net ikl 14 (15,830) (23,985)
Change in fair value of DEARBIELHEZ
an investment property —BEREWELTE
classified as held for sale =) 14 (13,118) =
Fair value losses/(gains), net: FEEE (K -
FRE
Financial assets at fair value BATESRE
through profit or loss RERFEEZ
— held for trading —REEE (12,515) 11,152
— designated as such upon — R TR 2
initial recognition BEEE (209) 2,036
Derivative instruments PTETIER
— transactions not —T/E
qualifying as hedges HHEBRZRS (6) 33
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. Fx B i Al s
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FHExT FHET
Bank interest income RITH B U A (2,828) (5,475)
Investments interest income JEF BWA (4,465) =
Other interest income H b B HA (10,476) (10,428)
Dividend income from available- At B &E#&E ~
for-sale investments & B U A (6,948) (21,358)
Dividend income from financial &2 F &% KRB
assets at fair value through BEECZEMEEL
profit or loss % 8 A (2,585) (1,996)
Gain on disposal of investment &R E Y E 2 W
properties (4,059) (7,729)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME  WBE&EHE
items of property, plant and BB 2R (W)
equipment, net ik 246 (316)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M B A a2 W - (20,885)
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of s $EMIB AR 2 EE,
subsidiaries (Ha) 39 (530) 354
# Inclusive of an amount of HK$146,979,000 (2016: i PESHEREEFERERERBE 2

HK$125,209,100) classified under cost of inventories sold

and services provided.

X ZAK146,979,000/8 7T (=& — /KN F:

125,209,100/ 7T ) °
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBBA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Interest in respect of: ME:
Bank loans, overdrafts and RITER BEXR
other loans HA & ®R 41,098 36,988
Finance leases BEMBLD - 12
Total interest expense on W IEZ N FES R RN ERFR
financial liabilities not at fair BREZERBEZHNE
value through profit or loss Fl X 1858 41,098 37,000
Less: Interest capitalised B AREFE (4,756) (3,642)
36,342 33,358
Other finance costs: HAth B S AR AS
Increase in discounted amount RERTERIAREZ
of contingent consideration arising Y738 & KR N
from the passage of time - 344
36,342 33,702




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to The Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
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EHM e

BEEEHAERIMERARESLET
MAI(TEMARL) BB REIEHE
383(1)(@)" (b)* () (xR EBEH AR (HEE
BEERRER) RO FE2RRBEAFEE
EMEaT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Fees wE 600 600

Other emoluments: E A%

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 9,038 8,988

Bonuses paid and payable* 2 R ERTEAT 3,300 2,594

Equity-settled share option expense  MAREZS 4 E 7 BEIAERI X 1,160 1,760
Pension scheme contributions IRIRET B R

(defined contribution scheme) (REH-RETE) 220 218

13,718 13,560

14,318 14,160

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled
to bonus payments which are approved by the Group’s
remuneration committee with reference to the Group’s
current year profit and the individual performance of the
directors.

In prior year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Y RRBETHTESTARG ZIEAR
REAEEZHFMEZESRHERZER
SEEFENBEE[ARBEMETE

£ ETESEHFEERE  BA
NI B AR i — 3
AR 5 R M 35 - R AE Y
ATE (ERBBRAZESRBER)
NERTAWHE HEHAKEEH
BERZ RETDQEE LR ESEHS
-
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. #HEMEL =)
(Continued)
(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE A) BarFpiTES
DIRECTORS
The fees paid to independent non-executive AFEEENBLIENITESHRES N
directors during the year were as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Fees Fees
we e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT AT
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BABRED S A 200 200
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B BEE 200 200
Mr. Wong See King HEEBEE 200 200
600 600
There were no other emoluments payable to the RNEE I B EAD BB FENITE
independent non-executive directors during the year ENHH(ZZE—RFE |

(2016: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EHFM2L (w)
(Continued)
(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND A B) RITEER —MNFEHITESF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Salaries Bonuses  Equity-settled Pension
and paid and  share option scheme Total
Fees allowances payable expense  contributions  remuneration
g1t NREREE Bie
& REH ZBRE 3 e
ne 41 A WX # BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TER TER TER FER FER
2017 ZE-tF
Executive directors: WIES:
Mr. Ma Kai Yum ENREE - 2,448 1,485 - 70 4,003
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REXKE - 1,983 825 - 62 2,870
Mr. Leung Pak Yan** REARE™ - 2,537 990 1,160 18 4,705
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BB EE - 605 - - 18 623
- 7,573 3,300 1,160 168 12,201
Non-executive director: FniTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung ENBLE - 1,465 - - 52 1,517
- 9,038 3,300 1,160 220 13,718
Salaries Bonuses  Equity-settled Pension
and paid and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances payable expense contributions remuneration
i 2t NEREE BRiRE
& RIEH ZERE el [ilka
ik =13 AT 53 xR Fok
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
2016 —E-RE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Yum BENREE - 2,355 1,264 299 70 3,988
Mr. Chan Sheung Lai, Jimmy* ~ BRi#& L 4" - 931 35 135 6 1,107
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REAEE - 1,990 665 498 62 3215
Mr. Leung Pak Yan** RERRE™ - 1,645 630 828 10 3,113
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John SBHELEE - 612 - - 18 630
- 7,533 2,594 1,760 166 12,053
Non-executive director: FniTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNERE = 1,455 = = 52 1,507
- 8,988 2,594 1,760 218 13,560
* Resigned as executive director on 31 July 2015 - RZE—RFEA=+—HEF
B=
**  Appointed as executive director on 16 October * RZE-—RFTATSBEZRE
2015 RITESE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RENZBI I EM LT ABESTNE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. KRB NELMEME -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2016: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2016: one) non-director and highest
paid employee are as follows:

9. IfisiMmxmzEE

REAFE AEBLUGEFHESBRE
mE(ZT—RF OR)EF EHM
HEHIN EXHFE8 BT —R (ZF
—RFR)WEEREEHEELZ
FMFIRT

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries e 1,383 1,025
Equity-settled share option expense AP {7 45 & B8 AL AE S - 421
1,383 1,446

FEEZEaHEERAFE 2B
BZ 721,000,001 7% 7T £1,500,000/% 7T #8
BA(ZF—/"F:1,000,0018TE
1,500,000/ 7T ) °

Fii 13 B
ERFEBRBE AR EEEE 2 M
5 B SR B FIIR16.5% (=B — A -
16.5% ) 2 B H G - o B AFEFERR
Biad 2 B Ty R B A 2 ARRAIR 7T
BiEHH o

The remuneration of the non-director highest
paid employee for the year fell within the band of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (2016: HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000).

10. INCOME TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable in Mainland China have been calculated at the
relevant rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China.

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Current — Hong Kong BNE— & B

Charge for the year REFEEXZH 1,426 1,296

Current — Mainland China BVER — A B K e
CIT EMSH 30,252 43,166
LAT T IR ETR 459 3,476
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (20,106) (10,453)
Deferred (note 31) BT (F3E31) (1,203) (20,139)
Total tax charge for the year RNEEHIBX LA 10,828 17,346
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10. Fi 5 Bt (a0

BB AT R B E AR RS A
ZHRBRAXERERNRAE IR

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax

charge at the effective tax rate is as follows: SHERMT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit before tax B 152 Bl A 160,553 151,772
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory BREBEEHE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) —E—RF:165%)
FAAHEZHIA 26,491 25,042
Higher tax rates of specific provinces $57E & 108 & R E 2
or enacted by local authorities B xR 16,728 15,150
Adjustments in respect of MBEHEZ
current tax of previous periods & HIF IR (20,106) (10,453)
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax Ht 3B+ Hiff 2 & £ 18
of previous periods {EL & - (17,473)
Profit attributable to an associate T 15 fE B & A &) ) (7,794) (7,128)
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (23,635) (23,459)
Expenses not deductible for tax I MFH X 9,470 13,188
LAT T IRER 501 3,208
Tax losses utilised from FERBTHR
previous periods THIEE 18 (3,000) (6,257)
Tax losses not recognised RERNTHIAEE 12,173 25,528
Tax charge at the Group’s BAEEERME
effective rate SFEHES N 10,828 17,346

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting o1 FEAE — [ & A R F1 182,215,000
to HK$2,215,000 (2016: HK$19,488,000) is included T ( ZZF — 74 119,488,000/ 7T) E &

in “Share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

NGR=RiE
o

S5k [ FE(E —RlB & R Ra A
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11.

12.

154

DIVIDENDS 11. k8
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Proposed final - HK3 cents (2016: 3% & H — T A% & @ IS L
HK3 cents) per ordinary share ZE—RF B 37,629 37,617

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,253,887,536 (2016:
1,253,734,531) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

12.

REFZZHRYRBAFARARR
REIG AR ZBRBFE NS LHER
JTAIEE

B 7% 6] % 5 6O\ T A
i Ik % A

SRERZFIREG QR EERAER
EABREARFEEZFRFASEITER
IR 2 An#E 19 $1,253,887,536% (—F
— N4 1 1,253,734,5310 )5t & -

BREER N HRES QR EBEER
BARBGAERGENTE -ETERPT
RA BB ARG ESRE
REMARABZFARNCETE B
B ARG BITENBRMEBLHET
AR BRERRREBERITNY
BRI 8
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12. B 5] %8 Bk B A O\ A4S
5Kk &E A )

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREERATIRBEATSIER
are based on: (=i
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Earnings EF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ~ AR EERE R R #E
holders of the parent, used in the Bz QR EmE
basic and diluted earnings per share  #8& A &5 )% 7
calculation 127,446 121,030
Number of shares
grg g
2017 2016
—2—tF —EF-RK
Shares )

Weighted average number of ordinary AR st EGREREF] ~
shares in issue during the year used FRNE 277 E @A
in the basic earnings per share g H 8

calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average #8 2 F/ 2 — @M%

number of ordinary shares: T E
Share options =i

1,253,887,536

196,978

1,253,734,531

1,357,670

1,254,084,514

1,255,092,201
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—E—+F=ZA=+—H

13. % %~ B B3 I ak s

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Hotel Landand  Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction
properties buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
g BER B
BENE 1uREF NEEE #E RERRHE EH ERIR aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FEL
31 March 2017 —E-tF=A=+-H
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—RF
at 1 April 2016: =A=+-BRk
—E-REmA-A:
Cost or valuation BRAESREE 395,163 229,717 160,167 41,258 90,833 24,576 5,981 947,695
Accumulated depreciation ZEMERRE
and impairment (90,235) (56,278) (93,116) (17,973) (69,647) (20,386) - (347,635)
Net carrying amount EEFE 304,928 173,439 67,051 23,285 21,186 4,190 5,981 600,060
At 1 April 2016, net of accumulated  RR=ZF—FEA—A -
depreciation and impairment BB 2 ERAE 304,928 173,439 67,051 23,285 21,186 4,190 5,981 600,060
Additions NE - 14,845 15,253 1,201 8,937 996 21,687 62,919
Depreciation provided FRFERE (i5H6)
during the year (note 6) (10,845) (7,553) (11,665) (2,890) (6,971) 2,112) - (42,036)
Disposals HE - - (2,495) - (787) (624) - (3,906)
Exchange realignment EXAR (16,406) 8,717) (2,764) (500) (413) (125) (806) (29,731)
At 31 March 2017, net of RZE—+F
accumulated depreciation and ZA=+t-8"
impairment EHBREHNERRE 277,677 172,014 65,380 21,006 21,952 2,325 26,862 587,306
At 31 March 2017: RZE—t%
=R=1+-B:
Cost or valuation B ESEE 373,592 233,997 164,148 40,546 95,146 23,565 26,862 957,856
Accumulated depreciation and ZATERAE
impairment (95,915) (61,983) (98,768) (19,450) (73,194) (21,240) - (370,550)
Net carrying amount BEFE 277,677 172,014 65,380 21,096 21,952 2,325 26,862 587,306
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. % %~ Wk B Je ik e (50
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor ~ Construction
properties buildings - improvements machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HE ET &l
EENE  IHREF  DERE KR KERRAE B 0 ERIR e

HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKSO000  HK$O00  HK$'00  HK$'000
TAR TAL TAR TAL TAR TAL TAR TAL

31 March 2016 —F-REZAZ1-A
At 1 April 2015; RZZ-R§MA-H:

Cost o valuation BRABRMEE 418,987 187,643 145,811 36,178 88,451 26,156 41,566 944,792

Accumulated depregiation ZETERAE

and impairment (83,770) (47,676) (98,107) (15,968) (73,121) (20,224) = (338,866)

Net carrying amount REFE 335,217 139,967 47,704 20,210 15,330 5,32 41,566 605,926
At 1 April 2015, net of accumulated R=ZF—AFEMA—A"

depreciation and impairment BABREHNERAE 335,217 139,967 47,704 20,210 15,330 5,932 41,566 605,926
Additions RE - 4,961 29,383 3,859 11,787 1,000 12,745 63,735
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U EEH B2 Al (Hi3E38) - - 725 2,845 1,057 609 = 5,236
Transfers E - 46,534 - - - = (46,534) =
Depreciation provided FRTERRE (Fi6)

during the year (note 6) (11,486) (10,144) (8,817) (3,034) (5,568) (2,989) = (42,038)
Disposals HE - - (30) ) (342) (180) (193) (750)
Exchange realignment EHAZ (18,809) (7,879 (1,914) (590) (1,078) (182) (1,603) (32,049)
At 31 March 2016, net of RZZE—REF

acoumulated depreciation and =A=1+-B"

impairment EHBREFHERAE 304,928 173,439 67,051 23,285 21,186 4,190 5981 600,060
At 31 March 2016: RIE-RF

=A=t+-AR:
Cost or valuation BRAESEE 395,163 229,717 160,167 41,258 90,833 24,576 5,981 947,695
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERAE
impairment (90,235) (56,278) (93,116) (17,973) (69,647) (20,386) = (347,635)

Net carrying amount RE#E 304,928 173,439 67,051 23,285 21,186 4,190 5,981 600,060
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13.

158

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at 31 March 1995, by independent professionally
qualified valuers at open market value based on their
then existing use. Since 1995, no further valuation of the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings has been carried
out, as the Group has relied on the exemption, granted
under the transitional provisions as set out in paragraph
80AA of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from
the requirement to carry out further revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment which were stated at
valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, their total carrying amounts
would have been approximately HK$941,467 (2016:
HK$1,044,000).

At 31 March 2017, certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$23,259,000 (2016: HK$24,199,000)
were pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 44).

The net carrying amount of the Group’s fixed assets
held under a finance lease included in the total amount
of future, fixtures and equipment at 31 March 2017 was
HK$78,000 (2016: Nil).

13. % 5%~ W5 R ak fir (80

BUEXAERGEMBIRERRAA
B EEZAAMER—AALAF=A
=+—HHEASEETHELHWRETF
BOER -B—HWALAFE AEEZH
ErHMPEFUEETE-—SEGH R
EALSEFBREE ST ERE16
SR - B R AR E80AARR FTE 2
BEGEE L 2R HZERERIRGE
BIRZYE - BEREEETE—F
BHZBRE-

Wz EHE i REFIUE LKA
2 TEREMBERBEAKR HB8
EEE4) 5941,4678 T (— T — /R F:
1,044,000/ 7T) °

R_TE—+FE=ZA=+—H Xx&H
HAERMEFEL23,259,0008 L (=&
— N4 124,199,000/8 7T ) 2 & T %
BWEREBEBEER EATEEERSE
FIRITEE 2 ER (KizFa4)

R-B—tE=A=+—H AKE
ARG KRERRBEBCREHEET
A 2 B & EREFER78,000%8 T
T RFE)
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. R & %
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FExT FET
Carrying amount at beginning of REH 7 EREE @ ZIEE
year, at valuation 1,563,410 1,602,847
Additions R 49,166 -
Disposal & (30,906) (47,530)
Net gain from fair value NP ERABEEZ
adjustments W a5 6 28,948 23,985
Exchange realignment ME H 3 # (14,498) (15,892)
Carrying amount at 31 March, at A=A=+—H ZKmA&E"
valuation ®ibE 1,596,120 1,563,410
Less: Amount classified B D BRRERE 2 28
as held for sale* (68,918) -
1,527,202 1,563,410
* In the current year, the Group entered into certain - RAFE  NEB B 5F = A8
sale and purchase agreements with independent third K 1868,918,0008 Tt E ABRHER
parties to dispose of certain investment properties 68,918,000/ 7T 2 & TR MEHE Z &
located in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying MELETEERZE-
amount of HK$68,918,000 for a total consideration of
HK$68,918,000.
The above assets, which were expected to be sold within FEHR —_F—tF=A=1+—H
twelve months from 31 March 2017, were classified BTFZEAALEZEEE»BEAR
as investment properties held for sale as at 31 March ig—‘tiiﬂ =+ —HABELEEZ
2017 and were presented separately in the consolidated WEYEI RN IFE M BIRARAEE
statement of financial position. EIK
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14.

160

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment properties consist of three
classes of asset, i.e., residential, commercial and
industrial properties, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 March 2017 based on
valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$1,527,202,000 (2016: HK$1,563,410,000). Each
year, the Group’s management decides to appoint
which external valuers to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s investment properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for
financial reporting. Certain investment properties are
leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 42(A) to the
financial statements.

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying amount of HK$1,229,473,000 (2016:
HK$1,257,094,000) were pledged to secure certain
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on pages 234 to 243.

14. K& W% )

ARREZERBEZMEZIME  FiE
REBEBEEAEBRENEH=-"BEE
Bl (AMEE - mERIEME)EK-
WN_ZE—+F=ZA=+—HB AEEZ
KWEYERBERBELEFES ERGER
AT B R EER AR A R#IT 2 1h
EE 4 /51,527,202,000/ 7T ( ZF—7X
£ :1,5663,410,000/70) - HFFE - A&
ErEREBAEZREINSGEMEBER
SEREME I EHE - TEEL B
FEmisMH B2 BUMKELHERFE
XEE-REBERERM SR RE
TiEEREGEMNREERR RGE
ER-BETREVMEDNREEMEERT
F=H E—IHREFBEDHRUBER
=T FE42A)A

R-TE—+tF=ZA=+—8 AEBE
M1E1,229,473,0008 7T (= F — /N F
1,257,094,000/ 70 ) 2 L E W E EEE
HERAEBEERETRITEECE
R (KI5E44) -

AEBREMEZE-—SHBIR
5234%243H °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. B &Y ¥ (@)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 2 F 18 R
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINTAEEREMEZ A FEFE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: JE AR :

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2017 using
R-B—tF=A=+—H
FAUTEBETZATENE

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTE EBATBEE EAFIUEER

ZHE BAE BAE

(F—-4) (E=%) (=) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THT THT
Hong Kong: B
Commercial properties HENE - - 95,618 95,618
Industrial properties T¥EmE - - 97,075 97,075
Mainland China: B AR
Commercial properties FESES - - 1,394,181 1,394,181
Industrial properties TENE = = 9,246 9,246
- - 1,596,120 1,596,120
Less: Commercial properties BN EARELEL
located in Hong Kong fIRE#RZ
classified as held for sale [EER/ES - - (68,918) (68,918)

1,527,202 1,527,202
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continved) ~ 14. & & % % (s
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) ARSEIED

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2016 using
R-ZE-—AE=ZA=1—H
FRATSEETZATENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERME  BEAUEE EALUER

ZHE BAE BAE
(B4 (B=8) (£=R) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THBT TR THRR

Hong Kong: A
Commercial properties EEXES - - 64,500 64,500
Industrial properties TEME - - 87,463 87,463
Mainland China: =)l N3
Commercial properties FHELES = = 1,401,668 1,401,668
Industrial properties TEYE - - 9,779 9,779
- - 1,563,410 1,563,410
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER BIEEBRNMEME —REFZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no B2 AFEAERTELFE=RPEA

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). FEE(ZT—RF:|) -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. K &YW ¥ (=)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) 2 F 1 g .%&
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised Em BHRE= EFTE A2 AT EET
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: EHER:
Hong Kong Mainland China
E# HE KB
Commercial Industrial  Commercial Industrial

properties properties properties properties

EES/ES IRN= [EES/ES IRN=E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FHT THT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2015 ~ R-ZE—HFMA—HZ
REE 63,200 77,548 1,451,730 10,369
Net gain from fair value RERBRZ A TEAE
adjustments recognised Wz 38
in profit or loss 1,300 9,915 12,770 -
Disposal HE - - (47,530) =
Exchange realignment B XA - - (15,302) (590)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 1 —Z— 74
and 1 April 2016 :H‘+ ARk
—E-RENA—H
ZRHEE 64,500 87,463 1,401,668 9,779
Additions NE 45,410 - 3,756 -
Net gain from fair value RNERERZ L TE
adjustments recognised AEWEFE
in profit or loss 16,614 9,612 2,722 -
Disposal HE (30,906) - - =
Exchange realignment i 5 AR - - (13,965) (533)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2017 R-Z—+%
ZR=t-BZEKEE 95,618 97,075 1,394,181 9,246
Less: Commercial properties B EARELEZ
located in Hong Kong fInE#EZ
classified as held for sale EE3/E (68,918) = = =
26,700 97,075 1,394,181 9,246
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. B &Y ¥ (@)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) 2 F 8 & (s
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and TRE M EYEGER 2 (GERM
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: REBHAE:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
EERN EATUBREBAE #E
2017 2016
—E-tE “E-REF
Hong Kong:
BE:
Commercial properties Direct comparison approach Estimated market price HK$5,200 to HK$4,320 to
(per square foot) HK$15,500 HK$12,000
BEME BERLIBE fhEt B (B FHER) 5200872 | 432081E
15,5007 7T 12,000 7
Industrial properties Direct comparison approach Estimated market price HK$1,730 to HK$1,450 to
(per square foot) HK$2,850 HK$2,750
IEYZE BREBE fhstmE (B TRER) 1,730BRE | 14508 L%
2,850 1t 2,750 7T
Mainland China:
hEIAR:
Commercial properties Direct comparison approach Estimated market price HK$19,626 to | HK$19,716 to
(per square metre) HK$75,768 HK$78,238
BEME BERLIBE fhEt & (B FAK) 196268 7TZ | 1971612
75,768 T 78,2384 L
Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$56 to HK$60 to
(per square metre per month) HK$226 HK$241
KWABRE st BE (8 TAAEA) 5678 7T 2 60T E
2267 1T 24158 7T
Discount rate 8.5% 9.5%
%
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$14.0 HK$14.4
(per square metre per month)
TEM% WABRLE fhEtRE (BTAKEA) 1407 14487
Discount rate 7.5% 7.5%
RRE

Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is
estimated with reference to the recent transactions for
similar properties in the proximity with adjustments for the
differences in transaction dates, building age, floor area,

12 [

etc. between the comparable properties and the subject

properties.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Under the income capitalisation approach, fair value is
estimated by taking into account the current rent passing
of the property interests and the reversionary potential of
the tenancy.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental
value and the estimated market price per square foot/
metre in isolation would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the discount rate in
isolation would result in a significant decrease/increase in
the fair value of the investment properties.

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
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14. K& W% )

2 F 18 % ca)
BEMAE AR DEEDEEZY
L AAESKEREE HRE
hfkiste

fEEHRE R T E (SFAR /) %
BAEEN, HO B EHREWEN A
FEAMERN, HD o 7R EEHAN
0D B HIR AR AT EX
OV

15. FAft L M & &% 18

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHT

Carrying amount at beginning of year R %] 2 BREIE 29,437 32,023

Recognised during the year (note 6) A FE AR (KizE6) (740) (782)

Exchange realignment bE 5 E (1,590) (1,804)

Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZEEE 27,107 29,437
Current portion included in debtors,  ENEAZE > B i1 FEURBR 2X -

deposits and prepayments e REMNRIEZRN (723) (765)

Non-current portion JEBNEAER 5> 26,384 28,672
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16. GOODWILL 16.
31 March 2017

=
s

B-tF=H=+-H

HK$’000
FHExT
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017: R-E—X<FEMA—AR
—T—+F=f=+—8:
Cost B 95,269
Accumulated release upon sale of HECERVERTELD
developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment R2iTRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 90,318
31 March 2016 —E—-RE=ZA=+—H
HK$’000
FHT
At 1 April 2015: RZE—RAFWMA—H
Cost B 77,096
Accumulated release upon sale of HEEERMERTED
developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount FREFE 72,145
Cost at 1 April 2015, net of accumulated RZE—RAFOHA—HZKA
release and impairment Wk REFHETR MRE 72,145
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) I BEFT B A &) (P 3E38) 18,173
Cost at 31 March 2016, net of accumulated RZEBE—RF=ZA=+—HZ
release and impairment AN - kR 2L KRB 90,318
At 31 March 2016: RZE—XRF=ZHA=+—8:
Cost PR 95,269
Accumulated release upon sale of developed HECERVFERTELD
properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment Z2FHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount FREFE 90,318
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16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. 1 & (#)
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL HE Z WA
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is MEBEHAIEB L EEEIREAT
allocated to the following cash-generating units (group of MEEEEN (BAAR]) AERME A
units) for impairment testing: Sy
e Mainland China restaurant, food and hotel; e HEXEREE RERBE:
e Hong Kong restaurant and food; and e FHEHEBBKERM: K
e Property investment and development. o MEKRERER-
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each cash- NEESRESEABMN (BUAER) 28
generating units (group of units) are as follows: EREBENRT:
2017 2016
—E—tfF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Mainland China restaurant, PEAREEE R RB/E
food and hotel 8,721 8,721
Hong Kong restaurant and food BEEEERRM 50,207 50,207
Property investment and development #) ¥ &% & & 3 & 31,390 31,390
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—BZ2KEE 90,318 90,318

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
(group of units) for which the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to each of those units (group of units) is
significant in comparison which the Group’s total carrying
amount of goodwill have been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets/forecasts covering a five-year period/
the expected development project period approved by
senior management. The discount rates applied to the
cash flow projections range from 11% to 13% (2016: 7%
to 17%). The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the Mainland China restaurant, food and hotel
cash-generating unit and the Hong Kong restaurant and
food cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period
range from 3% to 5% (2016: 3% to 5%).

AEREEE S RESELBEN (B
AR 2 BeEABMN (BEMER) 2
AWESEEMEL s TEBER MAE
ErmBRAELECRERREEA
BHtEZRFH FEHREEBEH BB
MKEE BAFERAReREEAGFE
ZEREEET-REREEANER 2
WIBENF11%E183% ( ZT— /K F:
T%ZE17%) c BB A FHZ P B AREH
B RANBERSELEBENURES
HERRARAESELEBENZHEREMN
BEENTI%EE% (ZT—RF:3%
5% ) HEITTER -
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16.

17.

168

GOODWILL (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the remaining cash generating
units was determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal using the income approach which was within
Level 3 fair value measurement.

Assumptions were used in the recoverable amount
calculation of the above cash-generating units for 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue/gross margins — The basis used
to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
revenue/gross margins is the average revenue/gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget/forecast year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements and/or expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

16. ¥ & (g)

8 2 0 B s

HRTREELE uZTHéZ@i%EJH;zﬁ
)EHJE%:%& ¥15u+£|9ﬂ2”&)\/£u
HAFEREEKRAERTE -

FE_FE-—t+tF=A=1+—HEKZE
—NFZA=Zt+—HZLHlBeELSE
fZz A e SRR BEFARR -EBE
&ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%Lﬁﬁﬁﬂ@%W%
KBS EEMBEHMAOT -

ﬁ%%k/é@%ﬁ—%#%iﬁﬁ%
A& %ﬁ%?iﬁﬁzgﬁ AE
&%%/ﬁw —FRBZFHUK
AN BB ER IEME%&K&%&
SRIEHTHERMAS -

PR —FER 2 TR R AR HIAR
MRMRERBEMCAR S ERR -

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS HibhEE & E
HK$’'000
FAET
Cost at 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, R-_Z— ﬁi@ﬂ B -ZZ—RF
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, =A=+—RH-ZT—X"FMW™A—H
net of accumulated amortisation F—E—+F=A=+—HZKA&"
kR ZET# Y 359,394
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, R-ZE—AFEMA—B —E—~F
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 =A=+—8 =—%— /\imﬂ*El
E—_E—+F=HA=1+—H
Cost B AR 533,559
Accumulated amortisation EETEEE (174,165)
Net carrying amount IRAFE 359,394

*

As further described in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the amortisation was included in properties
under development as part of the land costs.

* o BTSRRI T2 4P —
BHCERB D LA AFT AZRT
YES
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18, B & 4 A 2 0

2017 2016

—E—+fF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Share of net assets DIREEFE 96,751 65,564
Due from associates f g R/NE] 327,777 206,256
Loans to an associate BT —EBERRZER 129,116 129,116
553,644 400,936

The amounts due from associates and certain loans to
an associate of HK$47,156,000 (2016: HK$47,156,000)
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these balances
are considered as part of the Group’s investments in the
associates.

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, a loan to an
associate amounting to HK$81,960,000, secured by
the pledge of the entire share capital of South China
International Purchasing Exchange Centre Limited (“SCI”),
bearing interest at 12% per annum and in the opinion of
the directors, is not expected to be repaid within next
twelve months, has been included in non-current assets.

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

JE B =
RAIZETER

Bl ZRIBA R GG T — Fﬁﬂﬁ%%

747,156,00078 7T (=

— N 1 47,156,0007% 7T ) A A T
TFENHB -BEERA %4
BWRAREFBRB L NRIRE 20

SRR EE

7 e

iRz

=A=+—8”"
ﬁiﬂéﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁl,
A ([FEEER])

= /\E_H_+_E|&:§ +
—fEBE R A2
ﬂmﬁ%?&%qﬂ/uﬁﬁﬁﬁ
2 ERAEE IR - IREF

ﬂzm%?r%H%%i@%ﬂﬁi,ﬁ%@ﬁx
+ @B RNEE ZE R AE81,960,000

BILEIIAERBEE -

FTEBEN

BIFFBMT

Place of Percentage of
Particulars incorporation equity interest
of issued Business and attributable
Name shares held structure business to the Group Principal activity
HEMBL KR
£ HECRITROEE E3 20 EES R rEERGERERIL TEEH
2017 2016
ZE—tf | ZT—R%E
SCIF Ordinary shares (unlisted) Corporate Hong Kong 50 50  Investment holding
ERER L@k (L) AT BE REER
“ Not audited by Erst & Young, Hong Kong or another * BREBLKEMEBMAL ﬂ<
member firm of the Ermnst & Young global network & n‘l' MEBMENER s EMKES
FHEDE S PTEZ

169



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A MW M

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

SCI is considered as a material associate of the Group
and is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements. SCI and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “SCI Group”) are mainly engaged in
property investment and development.

170

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the SCI Group adjusted for any

18. B & A E Z R ()
R s A E — R B A
2 WG A B ISR AR E AR
g ERE R AN BA R (0 [ 8 E
S )T EREMLBERBRER

TRINRERBEREE M BERTE
(EMEABRZEMNEREHARE) K

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the BB RERANEABESER:
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets REEE 1,656,417 631,512
Non-current assets FEREBEE 782,559 963,529
Current liabilities BB E (1,615,145) (1,152,859)
Non-current liabilities EMBBEE (599,504) (290,789)
Net assets EEFE 224,327 151,393
Less: Net assets attributable to B IR E R G EEFE
non-controlling interests (1,316) (596)

Net assets attributable to EmEBREB A

owners of SCI IR EEFE 223,011 150,797
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest 823t ASER BN EE 2 AN EH

in the SCI Group included in non- REMBEREE 2 R

current assets:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ B A7 & #E 2 Lt 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEBERLBE AR Z

associate EEFE 111,505 75,399
Unrealised interest income eliminated 7k 8438 #1) B 4 A ¥ 85 (14,754) (9,839)
Amount due from the associate JrE Lk B o R B FRIE 327,602 206,082
Loans to the associate mTBENTZER 47,156 47,156
Carrying amount of the investment & & EREE 471,509* 318,802*
Revenue WA - -
Profit for the year NEE 94,473 86,396
Other comprehensive loss Hib2HEEE (22,259) (15,462)
Total comprehensive income REEEZEWABE

for the year 72,214 70,934

*

Excluded a loan to the associate amounting to

. T EIELE T A FIE 5£81,960,000/%8

HK$81,960,000 (2016: HK$81,960,000). 7L (=& —754 : 81,960,000 7T ) ©



18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

19.
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18. B & A Z R ()
TEIRAEE AR REA Y LA )

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s associates that are not 2B IS E R
individually material:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBERARIZERZ
Group’s interests in the associates RERTEE 175 174
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 19. i & & &
INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Listed equity investments in REB EMRAEE
Hong Kong, at fair value /NI 222,347 222,347
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ 3F_ F M IRAIRE » IRk A 45,100 28,622
267,447 250,969

EHRAREEAEER ERRIERA
RARZ 2B EE HEERAHLE
TREENREBETEINMAXTEAE-

The listed equity investments represented the Group’s
entire equity interests in China South City Holdings
Limited which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.
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19.

20.

172

+tE=H=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

During the prior year, the gross loss in respect of the
Group’s available-for-sale listed equity investments
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$130,629,000.

The fair values of these listed equity investments are
based on the quoted market price.

As at 31 March 2017, unlisted equity investments
with a carrying amount of HK$45,100,000 (2016:
HK$28,622,000) were stated at cost less impairment
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does
not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

19. Tt ERE a

20.

REFA AEERE M2 ER AR
ZAHEEE ETRARE ZBIEQEA
130,629,000/ 7T ©

ZELTBRAREZ A
AHE

NHERT IS RE

RZE—+tF=ZA=Z+—H EFM@
& 545,100,000 0 (=T — X F:
28,622,000/ 7T ) Z IE E TR AR B 1%
AIBRRESY R AEBE AT EME
HEBANEZUBEERAELAFEE
AR RFTE - ANEETEANA R AR
EHFELTRARE -

1A 50 Bk R R 4R & R

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS HzemEE
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Listed equity investments, ETRAEE mWmE
at market value 59,889 51,233
Listed debt investments, FTHEBRE RME
at market value 73,088 7,134
Unlisted investments, at fair value JEEMIRE  BAFE 30,569 31,579
163,546 89,946
Less: Current portion B BNERER (79,785) (89,946)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL > 83,761 =
The listed equity and debt investments at 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF= ﬂ =F+—HEZZE—RX
and 31 March 2016 were classified as held for trading. FZA=+—H EmRAREBHEE
DERRFHEE %“ =o



20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

21.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The unlisted investments at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016 were, upon initial recognition, designated by the
Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss as they are managed and their performances are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy,
and information about the investments is provided on that
basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The fair values of the listed and unlisted investments
were based on the market values/fair values provided by
financial institutions or quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period.

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$83,761,000 (2016:
HK$16,492,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 44).

STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

Structured deposits were stated at fair value and
represented several deposits placed with banks. The
Group designated the structured deposits as investments
at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 March 2017,
the aggregate fair value of the structured deposits was
approximately HK$12,129,000 (2016: HK$14,490,000)
and no realised and unrealised fair value gains (2016:
HK$46,000) were recognised by the Group during the
year.

The fair value was based on the market values provided
by financial institutions at the end of the reporting period.
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20. % A F 18 5 Bk B R 18 5 R

21.

Mz & E (s
RZB—+E=A=+—RARZZ—X
FZA=1+—RH ELMRETIRIZL
R R A REIEE /R A FEIIRR
REZTRECEREE RARZE
BREDNDREREzAREERRER
B A FEEEEENEARE
MABZEREZERTIRZEERAK
SET2ERABREM-

MR EETRE 2 R FETIZS R
BREHEZTE R TFEIRREHRZ
miSmESELE-

R_ZTE—+E=ZA=+—H Xx&H
{E18 A83,761,000/% 7T (=T — /N F :
16,492,000 7T ) 2 & A F AR IR
BT RECSREEC/FERBT A
AEEMERRBRITEEZER (MF
44) o

R R

ERUEGTRNEAFEERRIEFER
RITZHETR - AEBDBEBET
FIETERBIEAFEYIR RN IBEF EE
ZERE-R=_Z—tF=A=+—8"
BT B AFEA%12,129,000
7T (ZZF— 7N 114,490,000/ 7T ) LA

T—/N%F 1 46,000/87C) ERFARBRALE
ERER -

NPHEDREEEERREHRER
mEAREE-

173



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
AW WOk

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

22. PROPERTIES UNDER

22. BRPWERFHELEY X

174

DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTIES

HELD FOR SALE
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRP Y X
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At beginning of year REH] 992,879 1,260,173
Additions = 28,388 39,745
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) & —EH B AR (KiFE39) - (69,477)
Transfer to properties held for sale  EEEH{EREYE (25,384) (195,794)
Exchange realignment M 5 F B (33,182) (41,768)
At 31 March M=ZA=+—8 962,701 992,879
Properties under development TEEIRN A THIR % T 2 B R
expected to be completed: ER
Within normal operating cycle BERRBEEZ ARKLE
included under current assets* FEERA 101,746 51,239
Beyond normal operating cycle BEERBEEZHBLE
included under non-current assets* A Ef 860,955 941,640
962,701 992,879
Properties under development FEHRUTHERKLERN
expected to be completed within BT KAUgE 2 2R A5
normal operating cycle and
recovered:
Within one year* —F R - -
More than one year* il —F 101,746 51,239
101,746 51,239

*

senior management.

The Group’s properties under development are located in

Mainland China.

Included in the Group’s properties under development
are land use rights with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$502,939,079 at 31 March 2017 (2016:

HK$558,594,000).

Based on the current best estimates made by the Group’s

*

BREAEESREREELE 2 REKX

i thaf

REB 2 BRPYEMRH BIARRE-

SFAREBZERERAYWELEN -
—+F =A==+ HEFEEEYDY
£502,939,0798 T (ZE— /R~ F:

558,594,000/ 7T ) 2 - Hb {5 FE#E o
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22,

PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale are located in
Mainland China. As at 31 March 2017, properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$158,691,000 (2016: HK$91,183,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
44).

22. BRPWERFHELEY X

(%)

FEHEYD ¥
AEEBFELEMEMN P B RE-
R-E—+FE=ZA=+—H EHEEL
B %9158,691,000/8 70 ( =& — /)N F ¢
91,183,000/ L) Z F{EH B M EE1F
KH - (EAAEEMERSE TRITEE
Z R (MI5E44) -

23. INVENTORIES 23. B &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Food and beverages B Lt 24,308 25,686
24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 24, JEWHR 2K ~ % & R T £ s |
PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$47,087,000
(2016: HK$83,757,000) representing the trade debtors of
the Group.

HEEREIFE4T,087,0008 7T ( ZF—7R5F

e
A °

83,757,000 7T) BASE 2 FEWE Sk

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Trade debtors JEUE HER 75,443 109,393
Impairment E (28,356) (25,636)
47,087 83,757
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24.

176

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

An aged analysis of such trade debtors as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

T B K~ 4% & R T AT Ak IR

)
R|EMKR BRERKWE HRFIZER
BRI BB Z Rk DT

—_

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Current to 30 days BNHEZ=30H 9,962 9,120
31 to 60 days 31E60H 789 3,223
61 to 90 days 61E90H 516 628
Over 90 days FB3BI0H 35,820 70,786
47,087 83,757

CREDIT TERMS

For hotel, restaurant and food businesses, the Group’s
trading terms with its customers for the current year are
mainly on cash or credit card settlements, or payment in
advance is required. For property sales, credit terms vary
in accordance with the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. All trade debtors are recognised and carried
at their original invoiced amounts less impairment of
debtors which is provided when the collection of the
full amount is no longer probable. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding debtor
balances. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade debtors relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is generally no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group has received a
guarantee from a third party in respect of certain trade
debtors amounting to approximately HK$26,750,000
(2016: HK$50,729,000) as at 31 March 2017. Other than
the above, the Group does not hold any collateral or
credit enhancements over these balances. Trade debtors
are non-interest-bearing.

f5 B i 3%

SBE ERERRERME  AKER
AEREERFZE SR —BRARE
FERREEERT  HABENK Y
RHEM= FEGRAUZERESEAR
ZIRRMETE - e RWE 5 iR Th iR
HRHZSHRIFNTE ARG
SRR R < RUE Z RO B IR TER
BB - NS B = SR E 5 R EE B
RAGEHRETHRBREE - SREEETE
MR AR ETTER -

ERLRBRARAEERKEZER
FRRAERZBEERNRRE - H—KM
ErTEREREESEYTRB - AKEE
WEIRBE=ZFHER BEAR_-Z
—tF=A=+—"HNETESEK
BR 7 4926,750,0008 7T (— T — /N4
50,729,000 7T ) ° B £ SCRT i A - AR
SRV ERZEEHRFTETANEESE
ERA-BIHIERBIRZHABETHE -



24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 24.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
debtors are as follows:
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FEWCBR 7%~ % &k TA fF 3 E
(%)
BORKERZBEREZEHHNT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

At beginning of year REF) 25,636 29,387
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) AR E &2 (I 5E6) 4,101 28
Amount written off as uncollectible ~ {EA&-~A] Uk [B] 7 i $4 & 58 9) (2,279)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6)  JREET B & @ (Hf:E6) (1) =
Exchange realignment ME i A (1,371) (1,500)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 28,356 25,636

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade
debtors of HK$28,356,000 (2016: HK$25,636,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$30,408,000
(2016: HK$30,797,000). Such provision was determined
after taking into account the ageing of individual debtors’
balances, the creditworthiness of the debtors, the
repayment history and historical write-off experience.

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

PGB TRERREZERZRERES
BRENERERERRKEZERIELZ
1 {%28,356,0008 7L (=& — N &F:
25,636,000/ 7T ) * 2 F MR 2 BB
Al B T & /530,408,000 7T (= Z —
£ :30,797,000% L) - 2B 2 B &
KBEZRMEMNEFPEWKEREHR 2R
EWERF C ERFTR - B RiB
TMERSR T E-

BAERBE 2 BRUCRFKERE DT T

2017 2016

—E—tfF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET F&T

Neither past due nor impaired K HAs R RE 10,240 9,120
Less than 1 month past due @Y DR — 1R A 663 3,187
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z= =& A 396 664
Over 3 months past due mHAER B =18 A 33,736 65,625
45,035 78,596
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24.

205.

178

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of trade debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of debtors that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the balance of debtors, deposits
and prepayments is an amount due from a third
party of HK$33,820,000 (2016: HK$23,900,000),
which is unsecured, bears interest at 18%
(2016: 16%) per annum and repayable in
March 2018 (2016: December 2016).

DUE FROM DIRECTORS

Particulars of amounts due from directors, disclosed
pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

24.

2.

ME W BR Ak - 4% @ B TR A AR
(4)

FEA B B RO Nl BN | R AR 8k 2
RERWE ZERF BFRF /RN
ARBUE

EBHERBECRBEEZRASEZH
EASERFRIFEGBRBEZEBA
REBERR ARRESAR HZF
REHBEME BRNEEERYRBELEEK
2E) AZEFERDAIBBKE - WHE
FRUEVE AR E R o

SFAEWERR e REMNRIBZ £
BB — & 55 = 5 71833,820,000/8 T
(== — 74 123,900,000 7)  H A
I IREFT18% (ZFE— N F:
16% )8 WEAR-_E—NE=A (=
E—RF ZFE—RF+-A)EE-

ME W 3 % Sk IR

IR IR 2 7 (501 383(1) () R B
AR (RBEF N AR RII23H 2
RERE 2 EREFRERBNT

Maximum

Maximum At amount

At amount 31 March outstanding
31 March outstanding 2016 and during the At
Name 2017 |during the year 1 April 2016 prior year 1 April 2015

—E-RF

WAEE =ZA=1+-H REER
RZB-tF HAEE RZIZ—RF BAEE RIT-RF
HH ZA=+-H ZEEEHE MA—A ZEEEHE mA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR FET THx
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung ENBRE 34,195 34,195 12,259 12,259 3,031
Mr. Ma Kai Yum ENSisE - 17,036 - 972 -
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BRHLE 1,344 1,437 1,437 1,437 275
35,539 13,696 3,306

The amounts due from directors are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

EWEEFIARERT %8 LEEE
B
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 26. e kBl 2FHEH  ZRH
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED Re ke K EHFx
TIME DEPOSITS

2017 2016
—E-HF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHEF 280,014 164,659
Time deposits TE BT 56,326 104,225
336,340 268,884
Less: Pledged time deposits for B RERRITER
long term bank loans B2 EHEFER (42,926) (86,818)
Restricted cash (note) ZBRHI3E 2 (HEE) (5,077) (6,971)
Pledged time deposits for RETIRITEE
certain banking facilities and RHRITERERZ
short term bank loans TE B3TF 3K (4,122) (16,888)
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkREFEMEER 284,215 158,207
Note: According to the relevant contracts, property MizE: RBEBEYN AEBEZMELERE
development companies of the Group are required to NRIAGH—TE&BERIETERTA
place at designated bank accounts certain amounts as AR RIRIBHRACETYWEER
deposits for potential default in payment of mortgage REER %A R 17 %’X 2E
loans advanced to certain property purchasers. Such ERITEBEEREEMRIZYR
guarantee deposits will only be released either after the BRMIBITEEHIRBERTFH
property ownership certificates are submitted to the T RRRR o

banks as collateral or when the property purchasers have
repaid the full mortgage loans to the banks.
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26.

27.

180

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi amounted to HK$107,989,000 (2016:
HK$85,474,000). The Renminbi is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE CREDITORS

An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

26.

27.

BekBleFmmEH- 2 RH
Bl R v 4 E M AF K (a0

REBEMR AEEUARKEGE
WREERTEFREHFRAE
107,989,000 L (=& — N F -
85,474,000%7C) - AR IERTER K
BRABHMER A BEPBEKELN
CHNEE B GBI 2 45 B - S IE R EE
BIRHRE)  AEEEESBETE
TINEEB 2 RITHBRARK BEME
b,k’go

RITR BB RRITERNEZZEH
RKERBAE -RFAEB KBRS F
KB HAERFRZHARS— N F—
BEZEATEF A EZEHEDR
TFREREA R - RITETF REHEFRTF
BN EFE BT A E QSR aiRTT
o

ME T 8 5 Bk 3K

RBEHR ENEZRRREZTAH
ZRREOMOT

2017 2016

—EB—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Current to 30 days BIEAZ=30H 73,955 92,849
31 to 60 days 31£60H 5,086 3,331
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,479 1,580
Over 90 days H#BB90H 4,458 4,098
88,978 101,858

Trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally
repayable within the normal operating cycle.

RNEZERREHEMERARER
LERMANEE-
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28. ¥

Provision for

28. PROVISIONS

Provision for

onerous restoration
contracts costs Total
EREEHNRE EERKIEE HEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET AT
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFNA—H 23,584 3,070 26,654
Addition provisions g e 38 720 758
Amounts utilised RENSH &5
during the year (10,128) (1,930) (12,058)
Exchange realignment M 58 (1,064) - (1,064)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF
—A=+—H 12,430 1,860 14,290
Portion classified as NEAETEAE
current liabilities Z BB (11,642) (330) (11,972)
Non-current portion IEME 2 BB 788 1,530 2,318

The provision for onerous contracts is made for
obligations under non-cancellable onerous operating
lease contracts when the underlying properties are not
used by the Group and the least net costs of exiting from
the contracts exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received under them. The provision is expected to be
utilised over the terms of the underlying operating lease
arrangements up to 2018.

The provision for restoration costs relates to the Group’s
obligations to reinstate its leased properties to their
original state or to a condition, as specified in the
respective tenancy agreements, at the end/upon the
termination of the relevant lease terms.

The provision for reinstatement costs was determined
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by
the directors of the Company with reference to past
experience and available information. The assumptions
and estimates are reviewed, and revised where
appropriate.

EHEBYMETERAKEER BS54
ZHRBEKENANFEBBE QA TEY
R WER 2 EE A BRI AR TS A
ER2HEANET ZEEELEBRLE
BRBRE - BERMSREE-_ZT )N
FZHEBREMER T 2 GHREFA -

BRAABEEARER A BHEMSER
SRIERBEEEMEREEAHEE
Bt 2 ZRMAESIMRRZEEH

ERKNABEBL2EBERRRLATES
BERYREBEARBDEEAELZE TR
R fhETMEE - % FRR I TIA
BRI RER] (WEA) -
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

182

20. HEZMAT R K fbfe &

OTHER BORROWINGS
2017 2016
ZE-tF EAF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000
1o ilks BRME
(%) ZIHEA THET (%) EH#AB TAT
Current
B
Bank overdrafts — secured - - - 29-31  Ondemand 993
RITBEY-CHA - BREX
Bank loans - secured 22-6.6 by March 2018 410,883 22-6.6 byMarch 2017 410,917
RITER-CHEA “Z2-N\FE=ZRH “E—LF=AR
Current portion of long term 1.4-8.0 by March 2018 151,003 12-4.9 by March 2017 139,055
bank loans - secured
ROARTERZ AR, -2ER “ZE-N\E=ZRH ZE—tE=AR
Long term bank loans repayable 1.4-39 ondemand 222,092 1.9-34 Ondemand 78,068
on demand - secured
REXKEERARTER REX REKR
-BER
Other loan - unsecured 8.5 ondemand 22,550 8.5  Ondemand 23,852
Hin ER—miE A BEX BEX
806,528 652,885
Non-current
J BN
Bank loans - secured 1.5-8.0 2019 - 2025 425,738 12-49 2017-2025 283,514
HitEH-cHR “Z-NEE I
—E-RE —T-hF
1,232,266 936,399




29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
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9. M B2 #AT R H b fa & (a0

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Analysed into: pai
Bank overdrafts repayable HARERKFEEZ
on demand RITEX - 993
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFGENE
Within one year or on demand —FANHILZBEREEE 783,978 628,040
In the second year FE_F 61,440 99,677
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFRF
(EEMF
BEEAN) 290,585 162,273
Beyond five years AEMNUE 73,713 21,564
1,209,716 911,554
Other borrowings repayable: AR THEAEREZ
HiEE:
Within one year —F R 22,550 23,852
1,232,266 936,399

Included in the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are borrowings with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$125,152,500 as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$66,786,000) which are denominated in Renminbi. The
remaining interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are secured by the pledge of certain assets
of the Group as further detailed in note 44 to the financial

statements.

RZE—+tF=A=+—H A&
B cRITREMEEFBER
8 £125,152,5008 Tt (ZE — /RN F:
66,786,000/ 7C) 2 fEEAARKEEHE -
HeW o RITREMEELNE T
B

$§,‘%%?W%Zﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%%ﬁ%
— %8

BEHAEBETEERER #
B E B TS AR A 44
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30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases an equipment for its restaurant, food
and hotel business. The lease is classified as a finance
lease and has remaining lease term of 5 years.

30. FEft R E M E
AEBRHESR BB MEEESmE
E-—EXEBE - ZHERBEARERE
% NEE A5 -

W-F—tF=A=+—R RAAE
AT 2 SRR E N R R A

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease
payments under the finance lease and their present values

were as follows:

M

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payments payments
2017 2017
SEBAEMK
HEBEERNK 2B AE
—E—+F —FE—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Amounts payable: R B S 2 5RI8 -
Within one year —F R 18 18
In the second year B F 18 18
Third to fifth years, inclusive EFE=FEFRF
(BHREREMF) 42 42
Total minimum finance R EHE N RRRE
lease payments 78 78
Future finance charges REBMEER =
Total net finance lease payables EN R E T E R IHAFEE 78
Portion classified as current liabilities 9 48 A& i ) & & 30 (18)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 2 60
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. 3% & B
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year AEEELERBEGE BT :

are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES i B IH £
2017
—E—tF
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in  adjustments
excess of  arising from Revaluation
related acquisition of of investment
depreciation  subsidiaries properties Total
L2
BREHEHE  QAREEZ REMZE
NITERBE  ATERER Eff @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TERT TET
At 1 April 2016 RZE—"$MA—AH 24,228 239,931 190,499 454,658
Deferred tax credited to AERBRRPITAL
the statement of profit o loss ERERIE (F13E10)
during the year (note 10) (1,287) (2,039) 682 (2,644)
Exchange realignment B 5 B - 126 (1,565) (1,439)
Gross deferred tax liabilties RZE—+F&=HA=1+—H
at 31 March 2017 ZEEHERGERE 22,941 238,018 189,616 450,575
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. 3 5 BLIE (a0
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS % S B & E
2017
—E—tF
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
AJ A LA B R 3R
FERBREF
Kz E18
HK$’000
FERT
At 1 April 2016 R-ZZE—XEMA—H 1,441
Deferred tax charged to the statement of RERB@mRPHR ZIELERHIE
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (M$3E10) (1,441)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2017 R-E—+tF=ZA=+—HZ
BRI EERE -
For presentation purposes, the deferred tax assets and HEIME EERBEEERBEER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of RE MR RTR AT A
financial position.
2017
—E—tfF
HK$’000
FERT
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the Rire M BRARERZ
consolidated statement of financial position RIEF BB EFEE 450,575
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. 3% 2t TA (a0
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES % R IE A fE
2016
—E-RF
Depreciation Fair value

allowance in  adjustments
excess of arising from Revaluation
related  acquisition of  of investment

depreciation subsidiaries properties Total
A B
BREMNTE QRREEZ REMF
WIERHE LTERE A st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAL TRT TRT THT

At 1 April 2015 R-E-TEMA-A 24,37 059,502 192,696 476,615
Deferred tax credited AEEERRPIHALZ

to the statement of profit or loss ~ EERIE (K E10)

during the year (note 10) (99) (19,740) (503) (20,342
Exchange realignment B X RHE - 79 (1,694) (1,615)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—R"E=A=1+—H

at 31 March 2016 JERTHaRERE 24,228 239,931 190,499 454,658
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. B IE (&)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 0% JE B I & E
2016
—E—RF
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
A A LA B2 5R 2R
JE AR A g
i 2 E51E
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2015 R-E—REMA—A 1,644
Deferred tax charged to the statement of AEEEmRFT IR
profit or loss during the year (note 10) EFERLIE (MEEE10) (203)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2016 RZZE—R"FE=ZA=+—RH2
BEEIEEEMLE 1,441
For presentation purposes, the deferred tax assets and HEIME BEEHBEEERAGEER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of FREPBARRKRATIAEE
financial position.
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET

FEMBRARER L

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the AR
consolidated statement of financial position R IEEEFEE 453,217




31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$266,697,000 (2016: HK$255,991,000), subject
to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has estimated tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$211,391,000
(2016: HK$180,035,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Other
than as disclosed above, deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is
currently not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 March 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$960,945,000 at 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$819,688,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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31. % 2 B TA (a)

AEEEREEAZHEEBSIB
266,697,000 L (ZF — XN F:
255,991,000/ 70) - BREEENBE B
ML EEE T ER A A EE A E
B2 AR B2 R E R 5 A K 8 o
AEBETNEREPBEKRE ZGEHIE
E518211,391,0008 T (=& — /N & -
180,035,000/ 7T ) * i bt F B8 Al R
—FERFANINE - 7] B AR ER
P sm AR SH o bR EXFrIREEE SN - AR E
A 3R AT A] BEEE A B 4 2 FE AR B 71 R
ERE AT B A 2 L ST IBEE - BURSE
G EEBERERECRIBEE-

BE (PRGEMSTOR) - NP BEARE
PRI 2 SNERBIMIEET R 2R -
ARBKI0%EHNH - BEREE -F
ENF-A-—HBER WEAR-F
TEFET_A=+T—"RBAELEZA
) o fiaf P B K B B IF SMR B E P8 B
R BEARBRG AT RBKE
TR R - AR B 2 BA L F R5%K
10% ° Bt - NEE BB FRHE K
R B AR — T NF—H—
FEEL 2 BFM DK ISR IEN
o

R-ZE—+F=A=+—8 ~A&EEIL
KA B RFER Y B BB ENH 2
i A Rl A ME LB ERZ BN
RELEHE -BERE ZSHBRARR
ARARDEZSERBFZEE T KR
—T—+F=ZA=+—H8 \BHFEK
EHBARZIRERB BRI EE
4 £ #9960,945,000/% 7T & R FE R B IR AT
HEEE(ZF—/SF 819,688,000/
TT) °

A7 T ) EL R BOR (< R B 3 4 A 18
G

189



Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A MR M

31 March 2017 Z—F—+#=H=+—H

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

2. fikem LA

INSTRUMENT
Asset

BE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Interest rate swap F &= 4= HA 83 =
Portion classified as non-current DR AIERNE 2 H (83) -
Current portion Bl ER &6 > - -

Liability

=L
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Interest rate swap FI Z 4= HA - 195
Portion classified as non-current DR AIERNE 2 E - (195)
Current portion BN EREE 5 - -

During the year, the Group used an interest rate swap to
minimise its exposure to movements in interest rate in
relation to one of its floating rate term loans with a nominal
amount of HK$60,000,000 (2016: HK$55,000,000). Such
swap did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

This derivative is not designated for hedge purposes and
is measured at fair value through profit or loss. A fair value
gain of derivative financial instrument of HK$6,000 (2016:
loss of HK$33,000) was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss during the year.
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F - AEEFE R %% £ 560,000,000
70 (= ZF — 7N 4F 1 55,000,000/ 7T ) 2
I == 4 5 LU R ) 2= O B 36 — 18 A BR Hf
FERERZFE - ZIBBU A
2B

ZTETAVEETEEERRERER
FEREETEEANGTE - ZITES
BT A2 RQFEKZS0008T(ZF
—7N4F 1 E51833,000/8 7T ) BE R EREFA



32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

The above derivative financial instrument was measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period and was
determined based on interest rate yield curve.

33. DEFERRED INCOME

The deferred income represents cash subsidies received
from a government authority in respect of a property
development project in Mainland China. Deferred income
of HK$54,000 was released to the statement of profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
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32. firEeMm T H

REMTEEMT ARREHRZAFE
FTERENN R W R RETE

33. B A

EIEW AR R U BT EBPI RN — 1B
BAEMEERAEIZESHY -HE

T—+H=AH Z+—E¢¢? B
%EPLUW\%M 000/ 7T (ZZE— 7~
£F 1 269,0005 7T ) °

HK$269,000).
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. kA
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Issued and fully paid: BT R
1,253,887,536 FIEE0I0B T
(2016: 1,253,887,536) T mAR1,253,887,5360%
ordinary shares of (ZE—RF:
HK$0.10 each 1,253,887,5360% ) 125,389 125,389

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the movement in
share capital was as follows:

(@ The subscription rights attached to 4,000,000 share
options were exercised during the prior year at the
subscription price of HK$0.824 per share (note 35),
resulting in the issue of 4,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration
of HK$3,296,000. An amount of HK$1,630,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to share
premium account upon the exercise of the share
options.

HE_Z—R"F=ZA=+—HILETFE
N AR ARZEE T -

(@)  B&RT 4,000,000 B AX#E 2 R

EEREXFIRREESTR0.824%

JCF LATTME (B 5E35) - B 1T

4, ooo O0ORX B EE0AB T Z 51

Ak - HeRERTER3,296,000

ﬁérc RITFEERER &8

1,630,000/ 7L E. F i AR i R s 88
BERGEER-
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 34. kA& ()
A summary of the transactions during the prior year with REFA - BREAARRREETRA
reference to the above movements in the Company’s BRI RGMENT

issued share capital is as follows:

Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRT
ROHE EBRORE KROEER @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TET TET FET
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-h%F
mA—A 1,249,887,536 124,989 1,389,773 1,514,762
Share options exercised BT BRE (a) 4,000,000 400 4,526 4,926
At 31 March 2016, RZE-—RE
1 April 2016 and ZA=+—-8"
31 March 2017 N
MA—AK
“E—tF

=A=1—H 1,253,887,536 125,389 1,394,299 1,519,688




35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operated two share option schemes (the
“2005 Option Scheme” and the “2015 Option Scheme”)
during the year for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Schemes include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees
of the Group and consultants of any member of the
Group. The 2005 Option Scheme expired on 9 October
2015 and the 2015 Option Scheme became effective
on 24 August 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
permitted to be granted under the 2015 Option Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant of the 2005 Option Scheme
and 2015 Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to
approval by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. If the number of share options of the offer
to directors or any of their associates, is in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, the grant is subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting
in which the grantee and his associates shall abstain from
voting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount payable
on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors.
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35. Wk Mz HE &t

FAARFIREWEARRETS (=
TTERFREEAS ] KT —0FE
PiEEE])  REAREEBIEL AR
ZEERZEERBETE R - ZET
HZABER2EEREARAES (B
EBUIFNTESR) AEBHEMETR
AEBEIMKE AR ZER - —FFHh
FHEREAEER_ZE—RFTANB
fEim M —E-RAFBERESIEN -
E-RFENAZTEBERRER MK
FERTTHBEHER K EZBERETFR
FBEX-

RIE-_F R FRERES HERY
ZRARITERRE LR ERNEITEE
RRRAEDEITRDAE210% - —
TR FBREFESIN_—FT-—AFRER
BBz BREER2EEREBERE
AT ERAEA 1218 A RS
BBARRTRDEITRAZ1% [
E- RN BREBBIRE AIF
REREBRRAS LitE MARSHE
ENEBBAENERE-

BRTESERENTELESANEE
VIEHTEBREWIRE FTESNKE
ERMBMBAZERESE BBEAAR
B B B 1TIRAD0.1% e F 1218 B Hi
M-REE(RETEHEBEARFZRK
{8) %8 185,000,000 7t © BIIR H /B8 &
ERRNREEREAZ EE MEARAK
HEBABNARE EHERE-

BRI REE RR2BRANEXRE
ENBRERTNRIBEREBT - KTH
BENTTENHESEE -
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39.

194

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the shares stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
2005 Option Scheme and 2015 Option Scheme during

the year:

5. W Mk HE w81 (a0

BREZTEEIHESTEE VAR
UTEEZ&SE  \ARARONER
A (ZBLAREER) RERXAEAR
WERMI 2 WTE: (RDNEERE
ZHHFTAEE X B RBREHRE
RO 2 FIGUW B R (i) 0 i fE -

PR IR T 5B AR ERUR S 3K
RERAE LRR-

ERFER _STERFERETEIR
TE-RFBREFETRRITEZE
PEmELNT ¢

2017 2016
—E-tF =

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

mEFY ETH

TEE BREZA TEE BREHE

HK$ HK$

per share per share

Shigx BRBT
At beginning of year REA 0.97 34,950,000 110 25,050,000
Granted during the year REREH - - 0.81 20,900,000
Exercised during the year RERTE - - 0.82 (4,000,000)
Forfeited during the year RERZK - - 1.02 (7,000,000)
Lapsed during the year RERKM 1.38  (10,150,000) = =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 0.87 24,800,000 0.97 34,950,000

No share options were exercised during the year. The
weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options during the prior year was HK$0.97 per
share.

MEBRERFARITE-REFA-
RATIERRAHE B 53 2 IR P A B (B 4%
RBRO.97TETT
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. M 1% #E EF B a)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REEREARITER 2 BRIEZITEE
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period RATEHARRAT
are as follows:

2017 —E-tF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE" TEBEH
HKS$ per share
sBRET

1,000,000 1.030 3-1-2016 to 2-1-2018
2,900,000 0.710 31-12-2013 to 11-5-2017
6,000,000 0.810 16-10-2015 to 15-10-2020
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2016 to 31-7-2020
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2016 to 15-10-2019
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2017 to 31-7-2021
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2017 to 15-10-2020
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2018 to 31-7-2022
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2018 to 15-10-2021
1,000,000 0.810 16-10-2019 to 15-10-2022
1,000,000 0.810 16-10-2020 to 15-10-2023

24,800,000
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31 March 2017 —ZF—+#=H=+—H
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. B Mk HE S # (m
2016 —TE-RF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREE TEE THEHE
HKS$ per share
BRAET
4,150,000 1.300 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
1,000,000 1.030 3-1-2015to 2-1-2017
1,000,000 1.030 3-1-2016 to 2-1-2018
2,900,000 0.710 31-12-2013 to 11-5-2017
5,000,000 1.5610 2-7-2013to 1-7-2016
6,000,000 0.810 16-10-2015 to 15-10-2020
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2016 to 15-10-2019
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2017 to 15-10-2020
1,300,000 0.810 16-10-2018 to 15-10-2021
1,000,000 0.810 16-10-2019 to 15-10-2022
1,000,000 0.810 16-10-2020 to 15-10-2023
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2016 to 31-7-2020
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2017 to 31-7-2021
3,000,000 0.810 1-8-2018 to 31-7-2022
34,950,000
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* The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

No share options were granted during the year. The fair
value of the share options granted in the prior year was
approximately HK$5,662,000 (approximately HK$0.27
each), of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$1,741,000 during the year ended 31
March 2017.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
in the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

| ERAORNIRARREURY

2o

%3?

\o

REABERTIERE- REFREZ
%%%Zﬂ%@%ﬁ&%zwﬁﬁﬂm
FR027HET) ERAEEREE-F
—tF=ZA=+— Eiif‘ﬁi‘ﬁﬂ%ﬂx
RS2 1,741,00078 7T ©

REFETZBRBERE ZBREZ AT
BEURTHE 2 —AABEALTEETE
PHE 2 5 R RARAF IR AR R - TR
PrERZEN 2B AE R

2016

—TE-RF

Dividend vyield (%) % B K (%) 3.76
Expected volatility (%) ?EHH/&" & (%) 442 -57.3
Historical volatility (%) J_EE/&’ & (%) 442 -57.3
Risk-free interest rate (%) B ) 2= (%) 1.731
Expected life of options (years) Eﬁ Hx T’EEZ?E HB B (F) 3-5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) MEFHRE (KRBT 0.81



35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

No share options were exercised during the year. The
4,000,000 share options exercised in the prior year
resulted in the issue of 4,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$400,000 and
share premium of HK$4,526,000, as further detailed in
note 34 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
24,800,000 share options outstanding under the 2005
Option Scheme and 2015 Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 24,800,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$2,480,000,
and share premium of HK$17,538,000 (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5
May 2017, the subscription rights attaching to 400,000
share options were exercised at the subscription price
of HK$0.71 per share, resulting in the issue of 400,000
shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$284,000.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 24,400,000 share options outstanding
under the 2005 Option Scheme and the 2015 Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.95% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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35. W Mz FE w8 (a0

B 2 REA R AR BT £ 8RR
RBIRAIBEH R M TTERER - FBHIK
e 2 AR /R SE R IR AT FEUR R SR8 E 2 R
& A TEERER-

WER T ARFEFE 2 B RUER
o

FAMEITEBAZNE - 4,000,00017 B
BN EFEITHE - BEEE174,000,0008%
AN 7] i A T A% A8400,0000%8 T &
B 15 4 (B 4,526,000/ 7T (4087 75 R 2% K
FES4FTHE — L) -

RBEBRR RE-_STHFERE
FER-—E—RAFERESE  AQ
7] H24,800,00017 B8 I #E 8 R 1T fF o
BEARRRITRALEE 2ETE
MR AT IR 2 B IR S B BN A R BB A
2% 1724,800,0000% i@ % - BN A B
2,480,000/ 7T * I8 17 4 (B /317,538,000
BT (FIBR TR AT ©

WEPERE R-_T—+FRARB
B& BT 70400,00017 & It i 2 REBHEC %
REBESRO7TIE T TAITHE  BEEH
77400,0008% f% 17 - M R BEEEE (N
FA 2 A1) 284,000 7T °

REHETBERRED RE_-F
THEBREAER T —RFER
T2 R RA T H 24,400,000 BE A% 4
BARITHE (RARBE BEBETRDL
1.95% o
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36.

37.

198

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 78
and 79 of the financial statements.

The reserve funds of the Group represent the non-
distributable statutory reserves of the Group’s subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China. The transfers to these
reserves are determined by the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations. The reserve funds can be used to offset
against future losses or to increase the capital of the
subsidiaries.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

36.

37.

faf

AEBBERFERAFEZ HHERE
LiFmREHE 27 RM B RRET8RT

AEBZF#HEEANEENPEAEE
BZMBREITRED IR ZIEERE - M
BRRZESERRETEMBBEEZR
EHREERSTRHE LEFESTER
Rz EIE ST $H A VR NP B & R 2 BX
7 o

MAEREEREZZES
% W & 2 =

AEBEBERERFERER ZHE AR
2B

2017 2016
—E—tE | —TA%
Percentage of equity interest held W EER 2 TR RS
by non-controlling interests of FEREZB DL
Hunan Carrianna 7.79% 7.79%
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIESWITH 37. A& A EBNEHSZ 2 IE2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING & W B 2 6] (s)
INTERESTS (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit for the year allocated to non- D ECEREZH K
controlling interests of Hunan HiBE A A
Carrianna and its subsidiaries (the (MAmEEEPEE]) 2
“Hunan Carrianna Group”) PR 2
R Z 5 A 373 2,951
Dividend paid to B HmEENEE
non-controlling interests of IR RS 2 AR B
Hunan Carrianna Group 3,459 -
Accumulated balance of non- REE BH 2 AmEEREE
controlling interests of Hunan 2 IR R 2 REH AR
Carrianna Group at the reporting
date 83,732 89,207
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIESWITH 37. i H & kERk#ER 2 k2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING & Wt B 2 El s
INTERESTS (Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised TRINTHEEERER 2 FENBE
consolidated financial information of the Hunan Carrianna B Z -MiXE 2R R EMAREE
Group. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- SHAT 2 88 -

company eliminations:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Revenue WA 83,681 160,774
Profit for the year R E i A 4,792 68,168
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ ANFEZEWA (E18)
for the year HBEE (25,881) 41,969
Current assets mENE B 646,353 623,990
Non-current assets, including goodwill FEEB) & E - B IEREE 947,218 1,011,772
Current liabilities mENBE (207,103) (245,131)
Non-current liabilities EmBBE (299,131) (233,025)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KB EEE, (FA)
operating activities REMBFHE (45,654) 105,604
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEEE,(FTA)
investing activities REREFHE 3,733 (6,478)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEEAE (FTH)
financing activities REMBFHE 35,167 (90,883)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HRE&&REFEIER
cash equivalents #n,/ CRd) FE (6,754) 8,243
* The above summarised consolidated financial information * UESGREUBESSMED RMKESE L
has reflected the effects of acquisition accounting, including TR OERERATEAE-

goodwill and fair value adjustments.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

PROFIT SMART ACQUISITION

On 1 July 2015 (the “Profit Smart Acquisition Date”),
the Group completed the acquisition of 60% equity
interest in Profit Smart Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as “New Sheen Holdings Limited”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Profit Smart Group”) for a
cash consideration of HK$20,400,000 to the Chu Chun
Fung (the “Profit Smart Acquisition”). Profit Smart Group
is engaged in the production, wholesale and retail of
bread, cakes, pastries, Chinese pastries and pies in Hong
Kong. Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 28 May 2015 and
1 July 2015. As a result of the business combination,
goodwill of HK$17,411,000 was recorded in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position during the
prior year. The goodwill arising from the Profit Smart
Acquisition pertains, but is not limited, to the expected
synergies in the Group arising from the acquisition.

As part of the Profit Smart Acquisition, contingent
consideration is payable depending on whether the profit
after tax of the Profit Smart Group for the first financial
year commenced from 1 July 2015 (“Profit Smart First
Financial Year”) or the average profit after tax for the
Profit Smart First Financial Year and second financial year
commencing from 1 July 2016 (“Profit Smart Second
Financial Year”), whichever is the higher (the “Profit
Smart Calculated Profits”), exceeds HK$5,400,000 and
is calculated by taking the excess of the Profit Smart
Calculated Profits over HK$5,400,000 (the “Excess”)
multiplied by a price-earnings (“PE”) ratio of 6.4 and 60%.
The contingent consideration is subject to a maximum
amount of HK$5,000,000. Based on an assessment of
the relevant facts and circumstances and the possible
outcome by the Group’s senior management, no
contingent consideration was recognised at the Profit
Smart Acquisition date, 31 March 2016 and at 31 March
2017.
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38. £% A b

Il B% W W IR
R-_E—RFtA—B([FEBKEB
H 1) ANEE AR 2 K 820,400,000
TT[A) < SR I 52 A Uh B ) B6 SR B IR B IR
Aal (ATFE [FRERERAE])RE
B AR (SR FIEERE]) 60%M#E
([MEWEEE]) -FIREEFERE
REBEE HELTEMES F-#M
Boh A AR W E B 2 —
THBEHRARAFTAPA-_ZT—RHER
A+t \BER-ZE—RFtA—HZA
AN mREBE P 17,411,000 7T
ZEEBEREFHAREB ZGEEM
MAER -FBERBEEELE EER B
(BETRMA) AEE G WEBES 2 TEHR
[Fl R ek o

ERFBEKEER , — 5 KARE
RENBURRASEESEEE S —AF
+tA—ARRKRZE —EMERFE ([F
BE—EVMREE])NBRBEEFERE
MEgEFE—EAMRFERBE S —Ft
A— Bk E_EMBEE ([F8
FE_EAMBRFE])HEARBETEE
FHERSE ([FBTEFE]) 258TH
5,400,000 7T & Tz R FII 55 51 & 7 B8
15,400,000/ T B 58 75 ([#BEE] ) I LA
MAX([TAX]) 6.4(5 X60%+ & -
FARE 2 &= © 5 A5,000,000%8 7T ©
BEAEESREEEREHETNRS
R Al AE RAIE D 2 fhaT - R FIBE IS
BE - —F—ARF=_A=+—HBEK=_Z
—+tF=ZA=Z1+—8 BEEIIAR
{go
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38.

202

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

In addition, as part of the Profit Smart Acquisition, the
seller shall compensate the Group if the Profit Smart
Calculated Profits are less than HK$4,000,000 and the
compensation is calculated by taking the excess of
HK$4,000,000 over the Profit Smart Calculated Profits
multiplied by a PE of 6.4 and 60%.

On 30 November 2015, the Profit Smart Group acquired
a 60% interest in Bright Million Limited (“BML”) at a
cash consideration of HK$762,000 from an independent
third party (the “BML Acquisition”). BML is engaged in
the bakery retail business in Hong Kong. As a result
of this business combination, goodwill of HK$762,000
was recorded in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position during the prior year. The goodwill arising
from the BML Acquisition pertains, but is not limited, to
the expected synergies in the Group arising from the
acquisition.

The Group had elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in the Profit Smart Group and BML at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the respective
acquirees’ identifiable net assets.

38. ¥ A B (m)

N tERFBEKREBEER Y — 59 i
A 86 =t & R 4> 174,000,000 7T B 5
5 B AN E - T ¥ E 32 884,000,000
TTHBHFSEAERNEz cBRUATAE
6.41% & 60%5T & o

R_E—AF+—A=+H FH%BEEHE
AR &R (B762,000/8 TR — BB H =
7 Y B Bright Million Limited ([BML )
60% 2 x5 ([BMLUEEEIAE ] ) - BMLRA
BEENEEDTEEL - AREBEH -
REEZGREMBRRARREF NG
FE762,000/8 7T - BMLKBEEEES 2
HEEHE (BTRR) ANEB B WEEE
Z FEH R A o

AE B OB IR S B 5 AT R
BEFEMNIFERERDLL A 275
EE NBMLAYIEIERS fE 2



38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the respective acquirees at the respective acquisition

dates are as follows:
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38. ¥% A b (w)
A BUEE B S IS T 2 AT

BERBBEZAFERT:

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

Fair value recognised on acquisition

RUEERER 2 A FE

2016
VAN
Profit Smart
Group BML Total
M Bk & BML meE
1 July 30 November
Acquisition date WiE B H 2015 2015
—T—hHF ZZE—HF
+A—H +—A=+8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
Property, plant and equipment S E RN
(note 13) (BIEE13) 5,011 205 5,236
Inventories e =1 167 4 171
Debtors, deposits and BRI & &
prepayments B FRIE - - -
Cash and bank balances e RiRTTH 50 2 52
Trade creditors FETE SRR - S S
Sundry creditors, accruals and HEb TR
deposits received ezt B8R KB WiZE - (231) (231)
Total identifiable net assets EAFEFEZ
at fair value AR E R E AR 5,228 - 5,228
Non-controlling interests JEIER = (2,239) = (2,239)
2,989 - 2,989
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) UK BE i 2 pg &
(KMizE16) 17,411 762 18,173
20,400 762 21,162
Satisfied by: Xt
Cash B 20,400 762 21,162
Contingent consideration HARE - - -
20,400 762 21,162
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38.

204

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

In the prior year, the Group incurred aggregate
transaction costs of HK$509,000 for the acquisitions.
These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions
is as follows:

38. ¥ A B (m)

REF AERERLBEEFRELERS
A H509,00087T) - WERXHE
EAEH  WIAZERBERZ — K
RITHRERS -

BRBESHEZRSRESTW T

2016
3
Profit
Smart Group BML Total
MBS BML B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHT
Cash consideration HerE (20,400) (762) (21,162)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EUERE KRS SERE 50 2 52
Net outflow of cash and cash AAREES
equivalents included in cash flows ReEMEANZRER
from investing activities ReSBEBEEMLFE (20,350) (760) (21,110)
Transaction costs of the acquisition AAREES RS
included in cash flows from operating MEAZWESE
activities RHKA (509) - (509)
(20,859) (760) (21,619)

Had the Profit Smart Acquisition and BML Acquisition
taken place at the beginning of the prior year, the revenue
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the prior year
would have been HK$889,570,000 and HK$135,982,000,
respectively.

fis 7 B2 W B8 E 18 ABMLIKEE = THE X
EFENET AEEZHRAREAEE
2@ X FE 5 Rl /889,570,000 7T &
135,982,000/ 7T °
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39. DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. s 85t B A5 Kk 1 & — [ I

AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY &/ &)
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES ot 8 Wt B 2 vl
2016
N3
Profit Smart
Group BML Total
MBS BML B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Cash consideration ReERE (20,400) (762) (21,162)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BlEReRREEEREE 50 2 52
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AREEE 7 HE
included in cash flows from investing MEAZRAER
activities ReZEEARLFSR (20,350) (760) (21,110)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included 5+ A& 428 2 B4
in cash flows from operating activities MEAZWESEL
RHKA (509) - (509)
(20,859) (760) (21,619
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY & — & B 2 6l

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its equity interest A =E  KEFERE — L IFLBREHEH
in a non-wholly-owned subsidiary to one of its non- WM —RIIER2EHE A G 2 IAE - KT &k
controlling shareholders and the net assets disposed  z% > % & & +5 BE T {8 4969,477,00055 70 2
thereof comprised certain properties under development = FzZxEch2  HR B D BB NE N
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$69,477,000 3k 47z f& j& 55 2k 18 4 < o

and the consideration was settled by an increase in the

amount due therefrom.
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40.

41.

206

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following major non-cash
transaction:

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired an additional 3.46% equity interest in Hunan
Carrianna from one of its non-controlling shareholders
and the deemed consideration therefor of approximately
HK$90,362,000 was settled by offsetting the amount due
from that non-controlling shareholder.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

40.

41.

i

3

GEI e E RN

FERHSRS
BRREMBRERAMCEHFABRBEEN
AEBEUTEEFRERS:

REBE-_Z—XRE=A=1+—HILtEE
N AEEBE—ZIEERR R KE YN
FEE B 2 BBIN3.46 %A% HE - HABIER(E
#790,362,000/% 7T i i3 1K 88 FE U 5% FE 1
R AR R IB LT -

KA A iR

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RI|BERAR RINAMBHREZIAE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: (EQUNNE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Guarantees given for mortgage MRETBEMEERZ
loan facilities granted to property RIBERRE mED
purchasers R 213,934 219,800

The Group have arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of their property units and provided
guarantees to secure the obligations of these purchasers
for repayments. The guarantees terminate upon either
(i) the Issuance of the real estate ownership certificates
which will generally be available within one year upon the
completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction
of mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties.

AEEC/ETERZMREMRZHR
TRE UREERUBRZEZERE
TEREE -BRERR(FHEREE
(—RRERELTKE—FR)EHL
% HMEERENRBEFTIRKL -



41.

42.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default
in mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with any accrued interest and penalty
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and
the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and
possession of the related properties. The guarantee
period starts from the dates of grant of the mortgages.
The directors of the Company consider that the fair
value of the guarantees is not significant and in case of
default on payment, the net realisable value of the related
properties will exceed the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest
and penalties. Therefore, no provision has been made in
the financial statements for the guarantees.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(A) AS LESSOR

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

41.

42.
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R EE

RIBFERIGH - WxFERBRIZIBN
FRAEEAREEERNREEZR
BAD  BRRXREREMNERTZEMA
A A B REIF MRTTAEEREERH
MEEEMERNERE -ERTB
BRI ARG - ARREFRA -
BRZAFEELAEXR B HEERAN
RIER BREME IR FEHES
e A ME R IR IR AN € 38 B FE 51 A B N BT AR
ZIE R o B B O B 7S R A BLPE AR
TR R -

KeME %k

(A) ;% it HL 5
AEBRIFEEEERYHBERR
B (FE4)  SEBEEE
BEN AN B+ BE
R — R B AR E AL R
& R A A B TR R R

A
& °
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

208

(A) AS LESSOR (Continued) (A) ERHMET (8
At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future RZE—+tF=A=+—H ' &&
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable EREEE R R 5 AR E 2
operating leases with its tenants falling due as Z AR S T E AT B 18 B UER
follows: JEREHERENT
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year R—FR 66,741 75,228
In the second to fifth years, RE_FERF
inclusive (BREERME) 133,021 179,569
After five years RAFE 41,048 63,852
240,810 318,649
(B) AS LESSEE (B) 1k BRMH
The Group leases certain of its properties under AEERBKEHERHHERET
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties M - M EME LR RIEN 2 HR

12 BEME %M x

are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 6 years
and rentals are normally fixed in accordance with the
respective tenancy agreements.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

NFE—ZRF-HEe2E8E RIB

BEHIHEES

HETE

RZE—tF=A=1t—H &%
BRI R T 51 HARE 2 A 2 N AT S8
REMEERRAXN ZRERE

BEEIT

2017 2016

—E—+fF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FExT FTBT

Within one year R—FR 61,255 54,694
In the second to fifth years, RE_EZERF

inclusive (BEERMTE) 73,265 62,101

After five years RAFE - 1,243

134,520 118,038




42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)
(B) AS LESSEE (Continued)

The operating leases of certain properties also called
for additional rentals, which would be based on a
certain percentage of turnover of the operations
being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the respective
tenancy agreements. As the future turnover of these
operations could not be accurately determined
as at the end of the reporting period, the relevant
contingent rental has not been included above.

43. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 42(B) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
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42 BEME L @)

B) fEBAHM TG (50
RIEEBEEE RG] PIRR R AE
H ETYENKERLORTIER
EhmEexBsnliazmsTa
DEEBBEEIINE S AR ZEFEK
B 2R PR UG 2 70 ¥R 2 HA OR 4 A YE R
EE th ERWARTAEBEIAR

AN
E °

43. k& i

REEHIER - B HIR £ XM sE42(B)sE it
ZIEBHEAEN REBBUTER
AHE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: EHEACESEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& 68,727 2,657
Purchases of land use rights EE i A 241,224 238,260
Properties under development BRPYE 125,872 3,885
435,823 244,802

In addition, the Group has rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land in the PRC pursuant to certain
legal binding agreements. The commitment under such
legal binding agreements amounted to RMB214 million
(2016: RMB200 million).

o AEEEEE TRERZR N ZH
ZARETEBERE I AE
?i%zmg%%*lé?zﬂﬁﬁgﬁiéj)\ﬁﬁ%
214,000,000c (ZE—RF: AR
200,000,0007T ) °
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11,

45.

210

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties held
for sale, time deposits, structured deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss with a total
carrying value of approximately HK$1,542,233,000 (2016:
HK$1,492,674,000) were pledged to secure certain
banking, trade finance and other facilities granted to the
Group. In addition, rental income generated in respect of
certain investment properties of the Group was assigned
to certain banks to secure certain loan facilities granted to
the Group.

44.

& E A
R EBR NEBE £ *ﬁ HEETEZU
1,542,233,0008 0 (=& — /N F ¢
1,492,674,0008 70) 2 & TW % - HE
%&ﬁ&%ﬁ%%?ﬁf)ﬁﬂhmﬁ FEH
EZME - FTHRER - EBUETHRARL
E@iﬁﬂ%&%ﬁﬁ$?ﬁ2iﬂé
ECEER (EAASEMERSE TR
T -BESMEREMERE ZER M
AEEEFESTREMECHESWRET
AETRIT EAREBMERETER
BE R

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ~ 45. 5 M# A+ % 5
(@ In addition to the transactions, arrangements @ KREZRSFRIBHREREMMTERLN
and balances detailed elsewhere in these R LRk ﬁ%ﬁ\\'$’§éﬁiﬁ
financial statements, the Group had the following FEANTRFARNEITTIINRS:
transactions with related parties during the year:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FERT FHET
Rental paid to a director &K —UES (i) 147 156
Gross interest income —MEHERRZ
from an associate F 8 Hﬁl?\“ ) (ii) 9,835 9,836
Rental paid to key NHEEHRETEEEASR
management
personnel (iii) 1,755 731
Rental paid to related NHEESHLBERT
companies (iii) 1,946 1,480
Sales of goods to related  [AIEE R RHEE
companies (iv) 7,276 5,766
Transportation income —MEERAR ZEH KA
from a related
company (V) 241 -

()  The rental paid to a director was determined
based on mutually agreed rental rates.

(i) The interest was charged to an associate in
respect of a loan advanced thereto, details of
which are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

0 BRELFAZZESEERZNE
=lg-

(i) SRS QEHERUWEF S
HEFRHR M mARM 18R



45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

(i)  The rentals paid to key management personnel
and related companies were made based on
mutually agreed terms. The related companies
were controlled by a director of a subsidiary of
the Group.

(iv)  The selling price was determined based on
mutually agreed term. The related companies
were controlled by a director of a subsidiary of
the Group.

(v)  The transportation fee was charged based on
mutually agreed term. The related companies
were controlled by a director of a subsidiary of
the Group.

In addition, a member of key management personnel
and also a shareholder of Carrianna (Hainan)
Catering Service Co., Ltd. and Carrianna (Hainan)
Food Processing Co., Ltd. has issued guarantees
to the Group in respect of certain trade debtors
amounting to approximately HK$26,750,000 (2016:
HK$50,729,000) as at 31 March 2017.

Other transaction with related parties:

In the prior years, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in Hunan Carrianna (the “Acquisition”)
from Messrs. Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum,
the substantial shareholders and directors of the
Company. In respect of the Acquisition, Messers.
Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum have given an
undertaking to indemnify the Group against monetary
losses up to RMB216 million arising from the failure
of Hunan Carrianna to acquire any portion of the pre-
determined lots of land and the excess of Hunan
Carrianna’s cost of acquisition of any portion of these
pieces of land over the pre-determined price.
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45. GHEANLER S ()

(@

(&)

(i) REBEEFRABZERIZNT
FTEERBABRBERRZ
He BEQARIABAAEE
—ENBRARIz —RESE
) o

vy REETRBZGREEE
B -BEARAAEE—H
MEBARZ —REEEH-

v) RIBETRE 2 GERKEE
WEM-BELRIHAER
—EBRARZ —REFE
il o

AN B EEBERREERA
ANEEEEPRMBRATN—
ZEEEBABRBRRERR_Z
—+tF=ZA=+—HHWETES
JiE U BR 3Kk #926,750,000 ( —Z — /X
1 50,729,000/% 7T ) [ 2N & & 3%
LR -

HMEBMEATHETZRS:

RBEFE  AEBERARAGZE
EREREEFENELEREN
8K 5 A B O Fa 1 3 P55 % 1 2
(TEEEIE]) B EIEMS -
BNBEAERSNRCEREAE
& A R #216,000,0007T &) R @
EARS E BN EEP ALK
FEE TR E R RO EZE 5B
W B 1 1 O (E (] B0 5 B A AN 8 1 T8
FEEEENESD -
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

212

(Continued)

(©)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

()  The amounts due to directors are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

(i)  The amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(i)  Details of the amounts due from associates
and loans to an associate as at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(©)

45. GHEAN LR S ()

HEMEAT 2 REEGSR:

) ENEFFER/EEM %
B 3 4 B TSR SR o

(i) FEURHEAT FETE AR AR 3R 3B
BEEE - © 8 R EE T E
/¢

(i) B R HA R B B 1 B K
BRET - HBERRCE
RN S
18

AEBETZEBRAB ZHM:

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Short term employee benefits 52 HAE E 42 F 18,895 16,581

Post-employment benefits BRIREF 256 255
Equity-settled share option NS AENERERS

expense 1,638 2,395
Total compensation paid to MEZEEAB Z BRI

key management personnel 20,789 19,231

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

EXME 2 E - SRIBERN AT
RS o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. BNz em T H
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of T RE—RENERTARRERR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period B BR E 1A

are as follows:

2017 —E—tf
Financial assets EREE

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BAFEIER
REBETEENSREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for  Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables assets Total
RER
HAE EXR THHEZ
RUtEE RFEE PR tREE st

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TER TER TER

Loans to an associate BY-RBERRZER - - 81,960 - 81,960
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - - - 267,447 267,447
Financial assets at fair value RATEFIRRRBET

through profit or loss RENSREE 30,569 132,977 - - 163,546
Financial assets included in debtors and HABRKER kiZE

deposits LEREE - - 111,469 - 111,469
Derivative financial instrument TEERMTIA - 83 - - 83
Due from directors & 5 508 - - 35,539 - 35,539
Due from non-controlling shareholders FEMGEERR R R R - - 200 - 200
Structured deposits BEEEER - - 12,129 - 12,129
Restricted cash XRHHEE - - 5,077 - 5,077
Pledged time deposits BEEATHER - - 47,048 - 47,048
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBR&EEER - - 284,215 - 284,215

30,569 133,060 577,637 267,447 1,008,713
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. B Bz 28 T R (a0
CATEGORY (Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of T RE—RENERTARRERR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period FEREE: (&)

are as follows: (Continued)

2017 =E—tF
Financial liabilities =L
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LU 8%
RAFHER
EA =i
HK$’000
FET
Trade creditors BB ZERR 88,978
Financial liabilities included in sundry creditors, T AE A AT ER R
accruals and deposits received B ERRER
ReZemEE 141,565
Due to directors JERTE FRIE 5,434
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE 1~ FE 12 IR AR BR K18 25,795
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bt B2 RIT R
Hib g & 1,232,266
Finance lease payables ENREHEE 78
1,494,116
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

Notes to Consolidated F]"nancial Statemenfs
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46. % M o 2 & @ TR )

TR RBENSBITANBERR
MBREE - (&)

are as follows: (Continued)

2016
Financial assets

—E—RF

TRMEE

Financial assets at

fair value through
profit or loss
BRTFEFIRER
RERTRENSREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables assets Total
RER
iglisd Exk AfHEr
RILIEE BIEEE RIS BR 3 SREE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TR TR TER
Loans to an associate BT -RBEARZER - - 81,960 - 81,960
Available-for-sale investments A HERE - - - 250,969 250,969
Financial assets at fair value BRTEIIERAERS
through profit or loss RENSHEE 31,579 58,367 = = 89,946
Financial assets included in debtors and HARMERRKIES
deposits JERBE S S 234,699 - 234,699
Due from directors EWEEHRE - - 13,696 - 13,696
Due from non-controling shareholders FEM IR R AR 3R KB - - 100 - 100
Structured deposits BTN 14,490 - - - 14,490
Restricted cash ZRERS - - 6,971 - 6,971
Pledged time deposits BEETHER - - 103,706 - 103,706
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEBEER - = 158,207 = 158,207
46,069 58,367 599,339 250,969 954,744
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

46. MmN 2 & @ TR )

TR RBENSBITANBEHRR

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period WEREE: (&)
are as follows: (Continued)
2016 —E—RF
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss — Held amortised
for trading cost Total
NS
RREz=Ep
BIEHEE LA 85
BfE— ARG EH)
RKIEEE EREE BER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Trade creditors FERTE 5 BR X - 101,858 101,858
Financial liabilities included in sundry — &F A K fth FEAF AR 3K~
creditors, accruals and deposits AT ERREK
received ResemAaRE - 171,273 171,273
Due to directors ENEERIE - 1,317 1,317
Due to non-controlling shareholders — J& {+f 3428 A% A% 38 7 8 - 36,939 36,939
Interest-bearing bank and other 22 RITR
borrowings Hi g & - 936,399 936,399
Derivative financial instrument TEeRmIA 195 - 195
195 1,247,786 1,247,981




47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, management analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by management.

Management has assessed that the carrying amounts of
financial assets included in debtors and deposits, loans
to an associate, amounts due from directors, amounts
due from non-controlling-shareholders, restricted cash,
pledged time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade creditors, financial liabilities included in sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received, amounts due
to directors, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and finance
lease payables reasonably appropriate to their fair
values largely due to the short term maturities/no fixed
terms of repayment of these instruments or the effect
of discounting is not material. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for finance lease payables and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings at 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate fair values:
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity and debit investments
classified as available-for-sale investments/financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and structured deposits that are stated at fair
value are based on market values provided by financial
institutions. The directors are of the opinion that the fair
value of the unlisted equity investments classified as
available-for-sale investment cannot be measured reliably
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
counterparties, principally financial institutions with good
credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
interest rate swaps, are measured using present value or
similar calculations, incorporating significant observable
inputs.

47.
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2017
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47. M TR A FH k2 FHE

EEEE

5 F i 8 4
TREAREESRTAZ AV EFE
B :

A FEEZ S E:
R=-B—+tF=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHRER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERTS EXTEE EXFUEE
ZHE BARE BABE

(5-8) (%5=8) (B=8) okl
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR T FHER
Available-for-sale investments AHRLERE
— listed equity investments - IRAERE 222,347 - - 222,397
Structured deposits EEUER - 12,129 - 12,129
Financial assets at fair value through RATESRERRBET
profit or loss REZEBEE 132,977 30,569 - 163,546
Derivative financial instrument: PTESRIA:
Interest rate swap Fl& 5 - 83 - 83
355,324 42,781 - 398,105

As at 31 March 2016

RZF—NFZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

N BERARE EATAEE
ZHE EIUN 6 BABE

(8—E) (5-E) (B=E) fek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL TET FEL TEL
Available-for-sale investments AfRLERE

~ listed equity investments —EmRAKRE 222,347 - - 222,347
Structured deposits EEMER - 14,490 - 14,490

Financial assets at fair value through RATESRERRBET
profit or loss RESREE 58,367 31,579 - 89,946
280,714 46,069 - 326,783

219



No’oes to Consohdqted Financial Statements
HAMBHREME

31 March 2017 —ZF—+F=A=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 47. WM T HZAFHE R A FH
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL J& B ()
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) NEEER m)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value: EAFHAEZEMATHE:
As at 31 March 2016 R-F—NFZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFHEHEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

iSEY ik BEATHE EATABE
ZHE AR BAHE

(F—F) (8=FB) (5=F) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TRL THEL TR

Derivative financial instrument: fTESMIA:
Interest rate swap il &8 4 - 195 - 195




47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 47.

48.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value:

(Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:
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eMITHRZAFHEA I
J& & (@)

£ E=ERNATEIESBIOT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year F9 - 2,564

Addition NE - _

Gain recognised in the statement of i8R ER 2 Wz

profit or loss - (2,908)
Interest expense recognised in RIBRRER M EREZ

the statement of profit or loss - 344

At 31 March R=A=+—H - -

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade debtors and
trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

RER HeMAERSMEETE
BRSNS - ERE-ENZATE
HERTEMASSERREE=ES
Bl (T )

Bt B R B PR H R R OBR

AEBZTESRTA (BRITETEIN)
BEMEZRITMAEMEE UNES
EBReFERB ZFeMITAZER
BEMRRAAREXBEEET AKHE
NELZRERHFEHRELEZEMERME
ENBE PINEKE SRR NENE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group also enters into derivative transaction,
including interest rate swap. The purpose is to manage
the interest rate risks arising from the Group’s sources
of finance. The Group’s accounting policies in relation
to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates risks relates primarily to the Group’s
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest
rates. The effective interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group are
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements. Interest
rate risk is managed on an ongoing basis with the primary
objective of limiting the extent to which net interest
expense could be affected by adverse movements in
interest rates.

The Group has put in place an interest rate swap
arrangement for one of its floating rate term loans to
limit the variability in cash flows attributable to changes
in interest rates. This involves fixing portions of interest
payable on its underlying borrowings through derivative
instruments. Details of the interest rate swap are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

48.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

Assuming the bank borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year, a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest
rates would decrease/increase the Group’s profit before
tax for the current year by HK$11,545,000 (2016:
HK$9,364,000) and increase/decrease finance costs
capitalised by HK$778,000 (2016: Nil).

The sensitivity to the interest rate used above is
considered reasonable with the other variables held
constant.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities
and transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Majority of the sales,
purchases and expenditure incurred by the operating
units of the Group were denominated in the units’
functional currencies and as a result, the Group does not
anticipate significant transactional currency exposures.
The Group has not used any derivative to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets,
which mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits, structured deposits, restricted cash, financial
assets included in debtors and deposits, loans to an
associate, amounts due from directors and other quoted
and unquoted financial instruments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

For properties that are still under construction, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection
with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount
up to 80% of the total purchase price of the properties.
If a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
loan during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding
the mortgage loan may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposits and sell the related
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
bank. Unless the selling price would drop by no less than
20%, the Group would not be in a loss position in selling
the property out and in this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is largely
mitigated.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

48.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
by considering the maturity of its financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
and other borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
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i B & 2 Fa
AEBHEEEeRAERABNINA
URESRSRERERHLE AR
BB -

AEENBERAEBERRITREME
§ HEESHBEEEL M 2HERET
figo

TRAAEERBREMRNEHAGE
REHRFTRAFTE BB HITR

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2017
—Z-tF
Within 1 year
or on demand 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
—FUTF —fF
RRERE ERF BFEHNE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHER TR FER
Trade creditors ERESER 88,978 - - 88,978
Financial liabilities included in sundry creditors, st AR A EREER - BT E R
accruals and deposits received REWZREZEBERE 134,146 6,619 1,731 142,496
Due to directors ERES 5,434 - - 5,434
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE JEIERR AR R 25,795 - - 25,795
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Mt Sz RITRAMBEE
(note) (Bi3E) 806,528 352,025 73,713 1,232,266
Interest payments on interest-bearing Mt Bz RITREMEEZ
bank and other borrowings SR 30,698 83,738 3,541 117,977
Derivative financial instrument fTESRMIA - - - -
Guarantees given to banks in connection with ~ SEIEEREREEM
facilities granted to property purchasers mRITIEL ER 213,934 - - 213,934
1,305,513 442,382 78,985 1,826,880
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. M % by & H R R R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) B &2 E s
2016
—ERE
Within 1 year
or on demand 1105 years Over 5 years Total
—FEHT —£
FREKE ZRF AENE ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THx TR TiEx
Trade creditors ERE SRR 101,858 - - 101,858
Financial liabilties included in sundry creditors, st AR ERTERF  [EZT B A
accruals and deposits received kEbkezemar 164,248 6,309 716 171,273
Due to directors ERES 1,317 - - 1,317
Due to non-controlling shareholders FERT IR AR R 36,939 - - 36,939
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ez BTREMEE
(note) (HizE) 652,885 261,950 21,564 936,399
Interest payments on interest-bearing MEzRITREMEEZ
bank and other borrowings FEeZR 13,225 15,550 431 29,206
Derivative financial instrument fTESRMTIA - 195 - 195
Guarantees given to banks in connection with ~ A EEREREEM
facilities granted to property purchasers RBITEL AR 219,800 = = 219,800

1,190,272 284,004 22,711 1,496,987




48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

Note: Included in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are term loans with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$322,353,000 (2016: HK$115,872,000). The loan
agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses giving
the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any
time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity
profile, the total amount is classified as “on demand” and
have been classified as current liabilities.

Notwithstanding the above clauses, the directors do not
believe that the loans will be called in entirety within 12
months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval
of the financial statements; the Group’s compliance with
the loan covenants; the lack of events of default, and the
fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain
repayment on-demand clauses, the maturity profile of
those loans as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the
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effect of any repayment on-demand clauses, is as follows: (N

Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
—fF

—ENT ZRE BFEHNE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TR
As at 31 March 2017 RZZ—tF=A=+-—H 108,980 253,053 5,791 367,824
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—-R"E=ZA=+—H 40,114 80,673 - 120,787
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. B A b B B HE KRR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
EQUITY PRICE RISK 1% 18 R B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity IR AR (B 4% 3 B 35 A AR R 48 BUK T K (R
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels FBEFEECEIMERREAZS 2
of equity indices and the values of individual securities. AFETKRZER - R-_T—1F=H
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from =t+—H AKEFAEY I BEAERR
individual equity investments classified as available-for- RIVREBDEAAHBERE 2 BRI
sale investments (note 19) and listed equity investments $Txéf (HIEE19) R BRI A FETIRR
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or MRABRPEEZ FTRAKRE (KT
loss (note 20) as at 31 March 2017. 20) °
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock REBEH EMIREH TR L &R
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the R EBROTISREGE-
end of the reporting period.
The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the BT Zm %a’f%?‘a‘@ﬁl (RFERERE
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to AR & IR 5 HEERERERE)
the end of the reporting period, and the respective highest &iWZ%%&EﬂE&?a AT
and lowest points during the year were as follows:
High/low High/low
during the during the
year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2017 2016 2016
REZ REZ
—E-tF “E-RE
=ZA=t+-H =ZA=1+-H
b Ll of 3 LEER | 1% HEER
ZA=1+-H 28/&|=A=1t—8 Zm/ &
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index AE-BEEH 24,112 24,657/19,595 20,777 28,589/18,279
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
EQUITY PRICE RISK (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% change in the fair values of the equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end
of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
for the listed available-for-sale equity investments,
the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and no account is given
for factors such as impairment which might impact the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(4)

f 18 A B (s
TRERFA A B BURS T R Rt
EMBBZYET RERERER
PR HIR Y BREE WRAREZ AF
EEHIRE%EE) Y FBE « AN
= A E FRRARE AR
RABHTHRNEREBHHBERY
& MU EEELMNEEST e
maBNRIEE.

Carrying Changes Increase/
amount of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity*
RERE
FAEE RUENEANEDH BRAE/ B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
2017 ZE-tf
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong BB LM ZRARE
- available-for-sale (note 19) — A E (f319) 222,347 - 11,117
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong BB LWz RAERE
— financial assets at fair value through - BATEIERAEET
profit or loss (note 20) EESBEAE (M320) 59,889 2,994 -
2016 —E-NF
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong BB LMz RARE
- avallable-for-sale (note 19) — A E (F19) 202,347 - 1,117
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong BB LM BRARE
— financial assets at fair value through - BATEIERAEET
profit or loss (note 20) R SBEAE (M320) 51,233 2,562 =

*

Excluding effect on retained profits

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its businesses and
maximise shareholders’ value.

Y TERRARBENCEE

EAEH
AEEEREENERZAR RERA
SEABRERRNEN BEFRRE
BN R UXFHEEBERE  FR&
RV REE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for the undertaking by the Company
under a banking facility letter granted to a subsidiary of
the Group to maintain a minimum consolidated tangible
net worth of HK$2,750,000,000, which has been
complied with during the year. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is defined as the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents, structured
deposits, restricted cash and pledged time deposits as a
percentage of the Group’s total equity. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

48.

WFs R B s P S R BOK
(%)

B A g
AEERBEEBSRNES RIBREE
MEBES EEEEARERBIIEL
Bo AR N ABRERLER NEEA]
FEMEEIRERS  AREREER
HBETHBR -BRARBRAEE 2 —
MBARERZBITEREREMIRE
M EARHRBEBREREEREEF
{82,750,000,0007% 7t (R FE RN B E=F)
SN REBWETRIMNEINZEARTE
Ke#HEZE—_ZE—+tF=A=+—HEZ
TE-RNFZAZ+HULFER IE
AEAEREREBZ BERKEF-

AEBUABARBEL X (AIAREENS
ZIRITREMEERRE MRS FER
B #BNER XRHBRESMEERE
HERREREAEERRREZED
L) BEREARNBER - RNREHRELRE
BRI

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FExT FHET
Interest-bearing bank and B ZRITREMEE
other borrowings 29 1,232,266 936,399
Less: Cash and cash equivalents J& : 3R & M IR &£ EEH 26 (284,215) (158,207)
Structured deposits EBETR 21 (12,129) (14,490)
Restricted cash XRHIRE 26 (5,077) (6,971)
Pledged time deposits EHEFERTR 26 (47,048) (103,706)
Net debt FEE 883,797 653,025
Total equity M RE 3,529,584 3,534,592
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 25% 19%




49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

FES AR A BRA ] | 201748

Notes to Consolidated Fipancial Statemeqts
w0 M Ok

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

49. & A 6] 2 W8k &k

RI|ERR ARA ZM RN EZE
BT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries g 1,869,301 1,810,096
Due from associates JrE L B = N B BR 3R 27,922 27,922
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 1,897,223 1,838,018
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other debtors, deposits and H b U BR 3K -
prepayments Be RIEMRIE 118 129
Due from a director JEU — 2 EEFHIE 1,370 1,371
Dividend receivable JrE W B B - 45,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEIEAEE 1,304 212
Total current assets MENEERE 2,792 46,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Sundry creditors and accruals HiERRR R EER (6,894) (2,863)
Due to directors B ESEHRIA (2,664) (3,883)
Total current liabilities mEBEERE (9,558) (6,746)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE (6,776) 39,966
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT XE#ERGABERE
LIABILITIES 1,890,457 1,877,984
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings e ZR1TEE (98,861) =
Total non-current liabilities FEREBERRE (98,861) -
Net assets BEFAE 1,791,596 1,877,984
EQUITY &
Issued capital B2 ITRR AR 125,389 125,389
Reserves ] 1,666,207 1,752,595
Total equity KA 1,791,596 1,877,984
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49.

2V

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

49. & A5 2 W8 K L& ()

FiE :
DAL EHERENT

Share Capital Share
premium  Contributed redemption option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
RAEEE EHER EABOREE BRERE  REEN h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TET TR TEn TET TER
At 1 April 2015 RZZE-RFMNA—H 1,389,773 59,759 316 9,859 297,834 1,757,541
Profit for the year and total comprehensive A6 [ 5 F| R A €
income for the year XL ONCES - - - - 26,995 26,995
Issue of shares upon exercise RiTEEREMRTRN
of share options 4,526 - - (1,630) - 2,396
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ MIER £ 8 2 EIRER 1 - - = 2,780 = 2,780
- - - (1,944) 1,944 -
Final 2015 dividend declared and paidto AR AR R E R K2 f
shareholders of the Company ZE-RERERE - - - - (37,617) (37,617)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-"EZA=+-AK
at 1 April 2016 RZE-"EEA—H 1,394,299 59,759 316 9,065 289,156 1,752,595
Loss for the year and total TEEBRRAFE
comprehensive income for the year 2EKALE - - - - (50,512) (50,512)
Equity-settled share option arrangements LA ERfE  BRERH - - = 1,741 = 1,74
Transfer of share option reserve upon WENERER SR BRERE
forfeiture of share options - - - (5,009) 5,005 -
Final 2016 dividend declared and paidto AR ARRE R R
shareholders of the Company IRZF-AERBRE - - - - (37,617) (37,617)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+$=A=1+-H 1,394,299 59,759 316 5,801 206,082 1,666,207

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August 1991
and represented the difference between the nomina
value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation, less the effects of
the bonus issue of shares in previous years.

RRABIZEBBHKTDEA-NNA—FN\A
TZBZEEEEMESL  RARR]H
ThAZAEEREESESHENKEZ
MBARZEHEEREZEZR BE
BEFEZABRBITZHE



49.

00.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

COMPANY (Continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders under certain specific circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2017.

49.

50.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

A2 a2 MR R (a0

AN G ()

BEERE—AN— $Qﬂ%(%%
) BHASTRETEEBEASET
AR E -

BRERBREROUERNARITEZER
BAYE FHE-FHRYBHRRW
A2 AU I 2 GFHR - 2R A
REMBREETERERERNEE
AR A B8 B AR A 5 B S 408 WA B 8 3
EREEM -

BB ok 2

MBBRER_T—LFA-TNHE
REEGUEWREEM -




Schedule of Principal Properties
FEDEME

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupasat R-ZE—+F=A=+—BAEBFANK
31 March 2017 are as follows: BYEFFIBIT

Approx. Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type gross area % held completion
BERFE
8/ HR%tE 5l BEEBENH Bolk THER
(m?)
(RFHXK)

Hong Kong
BE

Unit B, 26th Floor Medium term lease | 1,568* 100 Completed
Wyler Centre, Phase I,

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

#REH R EITH A T B
KB HEE2005%

BfaP 0% 5

26/EB=E

Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term lease  C 87* 100 Completed
61 South Wall Road,

Kowloon City, Kowloon

NEENFEHMIM A B R EITH A ] BEK
61573 T M 2

1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, Medium term lease  C 780* 100 Completed
Tak Sing Alliance Building,

115 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

NLEESR DI R HITHAY 5] BIERK
RBER 1155

EREERE

1EE3ME

1518 £ 1818

Notes: B E -

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YRR I-T% R—F=E C-E&%
# Gross floor area PR EE




Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as at

31 March 2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Name/location Tenure

Al ERAKE

Type

]
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FEHEME

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

R-E—+tF=ZA=T-BAREEFANK
BYMEHBWOT : (&)

Effective
% held
BREE
B

Approx.
gross area

Stage of
completion

BEROE
(m?)

(F5)

52 A PR BR

Hong Kong
B

15th Floor and Medium term lease
Car park space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
HAREE

)1 $8381-3895%
BDIT¥RE

158 %

T FE55% SAE AL

hEFE A

Shops No. 1 on G/F Medium term lease
together with the loft

thereto, Beverly Court,

Nos. 151-159 Hai Tan Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRE
H§1BH151-1595%

B

154

EREE

Mainland China
o Bl K B

REEA

Carrianna Friendship Square, Medium term lease
Junction Renmin Road South

and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
RN R (=
ARBEREERBERIA
TEMRERES

Notes:

hEFE A

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial
# Gross floor area

C

2,594% 100 Completed

& ot
=&

104 100 Completed

28,390¢ 100 Completed

BT -

MHERR: I-T% R—EE C—E%
R E R

235



Schedule of Principal Properties
FTEWEME

31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupasat R-ZE—+F=A=+—BAEBEFANK

31 March 2017 are as follows: (Continued) BYREFFIBOT : (&)

Approx. Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type gross area % held completion

BEREE
&8/ HRNE 5l AEBRNH Bl ZTHER
(m?)

(FFHXK)
Mainland China
thE AR
A building at Shi Lien Road, Medium term lease | 4,647% 100 Completed
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,
Shi Lou Town,

Panyu District,

Guangdong Province

URERYE R HITH A T BEK
EBR

AgHE

BIE ¥4

MER s —BETF

Imperial Palace, Long term lease C/R 4,899* 100 Completed
Hong Yi Cun,

Baoan South Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

RN BEE REALD [ =354
ELHK

B

R E

14 Zu Miao Road, Medium term lease  C 6,838" 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

AN R HITHA ] =354
18 R B 1457

Notes: B E -

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YIERER: I-T% R—FE C-E%
# Gross floor area PR EE




Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Name/location Tenure Type

BB ERME i)

Schedule of Principal Properties
FTEWEM ¥

31 March 2017 —ZF—+#=H=+—

R-E—tF=ZA=+—HAXKBERHEES
WE BEMRBZMEFEWT

Approx. Effective Stage of
gross area % held completion
BEREE
BEEBENH Bl THER
(m?)
(RFHXK)

Hong Kong
BB

Unit A, 26th Floor and Medium term lease |
Car park space Nos. 19, 20, 21,

22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and

Lorry Parking Space No. L21

on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase Il

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

AR EAFE A T
REHFE2005%

BfaP0%E 8

26IEAE R2IEE195% -

2055 + 2155 ~ 2255 -

395 RA0SR B AL K

1L EERE L

Mainland China
o K B

Nos. 3-6, 5/F, Medium term lease  C
Carrianna Friendship Square,

Junction Renmin Road South

and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic

Zone

RIS B = R HITRA) 5]
AREE R

BEBEZR

EEFREES

A 1E3-6%%

Notes:

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial
# Gross floor area

812* 100 Completed

1,068* 100 Completed

i3]

YRR I-T¥ R—FE C—mE%
f R T E R

'13.;_1,:
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:
(Continued)

Name/location Tenure Type

BB/ ERANE Yl

R-E—+tF=A=T—BEREEFHEIER
ME- -BERRBZOERFBOT : (&)

Approx. Effective Stage of
gross area % held completion
BREE
BEEBENH Bolk THER
(m?)

(%)

Mainland China
B KR

Units A, B, C and D, Medium term lease R
14th Floor and Unit South B on

17th Floor, Lianhua Building,

Renmin South Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen, the PRC.

HEDRY I B R R4 F
F#EARmEE

BEXE

1418A, B, C, DR 17/ /B

2 Zishan Road, Yiyang Municipal Medium term lease

a5 5 A LU B 255 FEEA

™ O

14 Zu Miao Road, Medium term lease  C
Foshan Municipal

AT AR 4 ]
1 B BE145%

Sales Centre, Medium term lease  C
East of Xin Guang Road/South of

Da Gang Road C section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,

Lianyang Eco & Tech

Development Zone,

Lianyungang

EEE FEIFH A ]
EERLERMAER

REEXRE

FRBERABEACR

PO

Notes:

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial
# Gross floor area

238

577 100 Completed

34,490¢ 100 Completed
BI&RK

12,954% 100 Completed

1,739 83 Completed

i :

MERR I-T% R—EE C—@E%
R E R
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FEHEME

31 March 2017 —ZF—+#=HA=+—H

Particulars of the properties held for sale held by the Groupas R-ZZ—tF=ZA=Z+—BAEEEHIEHE

at 31 March 2017 are as follows: MEFIBWT
Approx. Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type gross area % held completion
BREE
£/ HAKE 5l REROE Bl THER
(m?)
(SF7HK)
Mainland China
B K pE
Carrianna Friendship Square, Medium term lease ~ C/R 3,532¢ 100 Completed
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
AN B R H ERAR 4 B/ E B &K
AREERERERR
FEMFREES
Imperial Palace, Long term lease C/R 1563* 100 Completed
Hong Vi Cun,
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
R R (R REAMA B/ E B &K
)
H—H
RELE
Residential and commercial units Medium term lease  C/R 51,489* 92.21 Completed

and car parks of Grand Lake City,

Yiyang Road, Hunan

Gk SR R EIFR A B/ B &
R EE R B X E T RER

Shopping street of Medium term lease  C 30,987% 92.21 Completed
Grand Lake City,
Yiyang Road, Hunan

WrEnk AR AT 4T ] BEK
LRI S

Notes: (TR

Types of properties: |-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial VIR - T¥ R—FE C—A%

# Gross floor area RIS E AR

2389
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31 March 2017 —F—+#=H=+—H

Particulars of the properties held for sale held by the Groupas RZ-ZZ—tF=ZA=Z+—BAEEEHEHE

at 31 March 2017 are as follows: (Continued) MEFBOT : (&)
Approx. Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type gross area % held completion
BEREE
&8/ HRNE 5l AEBRNH Bl ZTHER
(m?)
(FFHXK)
Mainland China
B AR
Leather Trade Centre Medium term lease  C 35,586¢ 83 Completed

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road B section,

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

BEE R EAR 4 ] EEX
EEERBERMAEREEEXR

LB R A B BER

RERERZRZH L

Building Materials Trade Centre Medium term lease  C 50,556" 83 Completed
East of Xin Guang Road/South of

Da Gang Road C section,

Lin Gang Industrial Area,

Lianyungang Eco & Tech

Development Zone,

Lianyungang

BEE R EAR 4 ] EEX
EEERBERMAEREEEXR

R AEBECR

BMRHF L




Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Schedule of Principal Properties

TEHEME

31 March 2017 —F—+#=HA=+—H

R-E—+tF=ZA=1T-BHAKEHFER

Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: RYEFBLOT
Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
BREE
o B A& THEE 55 Rk R Aot BrtEMRBH
(m?)
(FHXK)
Mainland China
B KR
Tuanyuan Road Commercial/ 356,061 Design work 92.21 N/A
to the east, Yiyang residential in progress
% 5 1 B B & A 1A HME/MEE Rt THEETH TiE R
Yangwuling Village, Commercial/ 120,040 Design work 92.21 N/A
Lucigiao Village, residential in progress
Yiyang
ol DiES AN HE/EE Rt TEETTH TEA
BB
Huanyuan Road to the west, Commercial/ 31,283 Design work 92.21 N/A
Tuanyuan road to the east, residential in progress
Huangjiaxiang to the north,
Yiyang
e mIRERRA HME/MEE Rt THEETH TiE B
EEEAA - sRELA
Qiligiao Village, Commercial/ 15,431 Design work 92.21 N/A
Heshan District, Yiyang residential in progress
&5 kLR 2 A HE/ R Rt TIEETTH TEA
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Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Location

it B

Use

Jick

Site
area

T EE
(m?)

(F5%)

R-E—+F=ZA=1T-BAKEHFER

RYERFBOT (&)

Effective
% held
BEREH
Bl

Stage of
completion

72 B B R

Expected
completion
date

Rt R A

Mainland China
B KB

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road B section,

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

EER
EEBRBRMAEREEERR
H R A B IR B

East of Xin Guang Road/South of

Da Gang Road F section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,

Lianyungang Eco & Tech

Development Zone,

Lianyungang

@K@
ARERMAEREEERXR

ﬁt%ﬁkm%ﬁﬁx

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road C section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

EER
EEBKBERMAEREEERR
IR A B B CB

242

Commercial/
residential

EEVAEE=

Commercial/
residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
residential

EEVAEE=

26,069

77,757

22,731

Foundation work 83
in progress

WETRETS

Foundation work 83
in progress

R TIZETH

Foundation work 83

in progress

WETRETS

N/A

N/A

T

N/A



Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Location

1t 3

Use

Jick

Site
area

T EE
(m?)

(F5)
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Schedule of Principal Properties

TEHEME

31 March 2017 —ZF—+#=H=+—H

R-E—+tF=ZA=1T-BAKEHFER

PYEFHBOT (&)

Effective
% held
BEREE
BOl

Stage of
completion

52 BB R

Expected
completion
date

Rt A

Mainland China
W KB

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road E section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

BEBEE
EEBKBERMAEREEERR
LB RAE B RER

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road G section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

BEBER
EEERERMAEREEERR
B R KB EEGR

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road H section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang

BEBEE
EEBKBERMAEREEERR
LB RATE B R HER

Commercial/
residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
residential

BE/EE

93,643

122,577

83,618

Foundation work 83
in progress

WETRETS

Foundation work 83
in progress

R TIZETH

Foundation work 83

in progress

WETRETS

N/A

N/A

T

N/A
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L N

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general meeting of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Monday, 21 August
2017 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated
financial statements and the reports of the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) and of the auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

2. To declare a final dividend of HK3 cents per share for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

3.  To re-elect the following retiring Directors and to authorise
the board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Directors.

(@) Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

(b) Mr. Wong See King as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

4. To re-appoint Messrs. Emnst & Young as auditors of the

Company and to authorise the board of Directors to fix
their remuneration.
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As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with
or without amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary
resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT

(@)

Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by
the Directors during the Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to purchase issued shares
of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company,
subject to and in accordance with the applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to
time be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be
purchased pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(@) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue
on the date of this resolution, and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the date of passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting; and

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or
the laws of Bermuda to be held.”.

RSB AR A R T | 20174 Ht

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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6.

246

“THAT

(@)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal with
additional shares of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such powers be and is
hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this resolution
shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of such
power after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the approval
in sub-paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(i)  the exercise of any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company; and

(i) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of
the whole or part of a dividend on shares of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number
of ordinary shares of the Company in issue at the
date of the passing of this resolution, and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

6.

(B

(@)

EARRFRC)DBRZERHIT - 2t
— R EEGTIEESEA BN
N(EZR TXOTERRBMA
REABCE - BITIAEMIT B
BARRE BN RIEH IR
A RERBITER SR ZEZ
CEPE Tt X

RREBRQDBRZIERREES
ERBHEAEL SR L ATBEAR
ERHRERRITEZSEN 22
% ek MR A

EEREBETRER @D B ZHAER
BRARTREFRFRTESE (&
R REBREREMT ) 2
PR {EARRE - HEARTE T 5177 A 3%
1TERRSN:

) EEFR(EERLTX):

(i) FTREERRRBERESS
SERURHE MAARF R,
FHAERM B LR 2B E K&
S REERE KBTI K
WA R R 2 R K

(i) RIBEBAR B 2R A 48A B R
BOURKRBEERRRN 22
Bk EB o B% B 2 A AR AR
BRIz

TRBEARTRZREBEE QX
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for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting; and

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or
the laws of Bermuda to be held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the
Company open for a period fixed by the Directors
to holders of shares of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on a fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regards to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised body or any stock exchange, in any
territory outside Hong Kong).”.

“THAT conditional upon the passing of the ordinary
resolutions no. 5 and 6 set out above, the general
mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to
resolution no. 6 be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted in resolution no. 5, provided
that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of the passing of this resolution.”.
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8.

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited
Ng Yan Kwong

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 21 July 2017

Notes:

1.

248

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Monday, 21 August 2017, the Register of Members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 16 August
2017 to Monday, 21 August 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order for
a shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
shares registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 August 2017.

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, the Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 25 September 2017 to
Friday, 29 September 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval at
the Annual General Meeting), all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 September 2017.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled
to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her
behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. If more
than one proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall specify
the number and class of shares in respect of which each such
proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding
ordinary resolutions No. 5 to 7 above will be sent to shareholders
shortly together with the 2017 Annual Report.
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